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‘ Electronics

BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited (“BYD
Electronic” or the “Company”; together with its subsidiaries
known as the “Group”; stock code: 0285) was spun off
from BYD Company Limited (“BYD”, stock code: 1211)
and listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on 20 December 2007. BYD Electronic
is a global leading high-end platform-based manufacturing
enterprise, providing world renowned customers with
innovative materials development, product design and
development, parts and components as well as complete
machine manufacturing, supply chain management,
logistics, after-sales and other one-stop services. Its
products cover four major areas including smartphone and
PC, new intelligent product, automotive intelligent system
and medical and health. Its highly vertically integrated
capability enhances its ability to provide customers with a
full range of services, and quickly and efficiently respond to

changing demands.
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/FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

FIVE-YEAR COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES
IFEFRMBHB LR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 AORES 2017

B | Z2Z2F| ZT-NEF| ZE—N\F| ZE2—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARBTT| AREFTT| AREBTT| AR®ETT

Revenue & ¥ 38 89,056,978 73,121,075 53,028,376 41,047,139 38,774,422
Gross profit 7 6,029,165 9,628,843 3,957,328 4,171,983 4,263,938
Gross profit margin (%) FE =& (%) 7 13 7 10 11
Profit attributable to owners of

the parent A A= B AEL R 2,309,882 5,441,371 1,597,645 2,188,620 2,584,868
Net profit margin (%) /5% & (%) 3 7 3 5 7

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—RHLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

—EC-F| —F-FF £ —E-N\F| ZFTtF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR | ARBTE| ARBTEZ| ARBETT| ARETRE

Net assets & EE 24,027,103 22,272,293 16,989,473 15,825,332 14,191,313
Total assets BE#E 41,175,282 37,976,088 28,026,974 26,051,172 25,386,326
Gearing ratio (%) (Note) BN & FLL & (%)

(P 5E) -10 -3 -5 -30 -20
Current ratio (times) &t =R (%) 1.70 1.76 1.64 1.70 1.50
Receivables collection (days) (Note)

FEMCESREEY (A) (M) 54 60 58 70 84
Inventory turnover (days) FEiB&E HE (A) 39 36 39 48 44

Note: Gearing ratio = Total interest-bearing bank borrowings net of cash and bank deposits/equity
Receivables include trade receivables and receivables financing

Bist - BERABLER=FLRITERLENRR S RRITHER s
EHRFIE R B R E 2B MR R FIaRNE

REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY LOCATION OF CUSTOMERS
REFMEMEITE XA

54% 30%

Overseas

Overseas

= o
46% 70%
The People’s Republic of PRC (including
China (the “PRC") Hong Kong, Macau
(including Hong Kong, and Taiwan)
Macau and Taiwan) FE (BIEBRAME)
hEARIME ([FE])
(BEBRAKE)
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Dear Shareholders,

I, on behalf of the Board of Directors of BYD Electronic (International)
Company Limited (“BYD Electronic” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (which are collectively referred to as the “Group”), hereby
present the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 (the “Year”) to all Shareholders.

Looking back at 2021, the repeated recurrence of the COVID-19
pandemic posed uncertainties and constant challenges to the global
economic recovery. However, China has shown strong resilience
and potential, and has done a good job in pandemic prevention
and control. Besides, it maintained its leading position in economic
development in the world. The gross domestic product (GDP) of China
increased 8.1% year on year, and the economic aggregate exceeded
RMB110 trillion in 2021.

Despite a gradual slowdown in iteration in the global smartphone
market, chip shortage and the pandemic continue to affect the
global electronics industry, and 5G development continues to drive
smartphone sales on the whole. According to the data from research
agency IDC, the global smartphone shipments in 2021 went up by
5.7% year on year to 1.35 billion units. Information released by the
China Academy of Information and Communications Technology
shows the mobile phone shipments in the Chinese market amounted
to 351 million units in 2021, up 13.9% vyear on year, while the
shipments of 5G mobile phones rose by 63.5% year on year to 266
million units, accounting for 75.9% of the mobile phone shipments in
the same period.

With increasing stay-at-home economy demand arising from
the pandemic, remote working, video conferencing and digital
collaboration have become a kind of new normal, driving sustained
growth in laptop and tablet PC sales. According to the data from
research agency IDC, the global PC shipments increased by 14.8%
year on year to 349 million units in 2021, reaching a record high since
2012, and the global tablet PC shipments reached 169 million units,
representing a 3.2% increase year on year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT\
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ETRBREE

During the Year, the Group recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB89,057 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 21.79%,
and the profit attributable to the owners of the parent company of
RMB2,310 million, representing a decrease of 57.55% as compared
with that of 2020. The Board of Directors recommended a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of RMBO0.103 per
ordinary Share (2020: RMBO0.241 per ordinary Share).

As a globally-leading high-end manufacturer based on platforms,
BYD Electronic is well-positioned to provide customers with one-stop
services integrating new material development, product design and
development, manufacturing of spare parts and whole machine,
supply chain management, logistics, and after-sales service. BYD
Electronic, thanks to its globally-leading R&D and manufacturing
strengths, diversified product mix, and quality customer resources,
has thoroughly entered a fast track for fresh development.

In terms of the smartphone and PC business, the Group kept
promoting the partnership with major customers in North America,
further increased its assembly share and shipment of core products
and maintained rapid growth in its overall revenue while continuing
to consolidate its leading position in the Android business industry.
During the Year, revenue from components and parts decreased for
the impact of reduced sales of Android high-end flagship models.
It expanded successfully in new products field of major customers
in North America, and achieved mass production of full series of
products including metal, plastic, glass, ceramics and assembly.
However, given the bigger fluctuations in customer demand due to
the repeated pandemic and the shortage of chips, the Group’s overall
demand was lower than expected and overall capacity utilization was
relatively low, which had an impact on profitability.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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By adopting a positive market expansion strategy for its new intelligent
product business, the Group continued to expand the business volume
of its products including smart home, gaming hardware, unmanned
aerial vehicles, floor mopping robots and commercial equipment,
driving the continuous rapid growth of its new intelligent product
business. The Group continued to explore the huge development
space in the new intelligent product market, deepened cooperation
with customers in research and development and manufacturing,
and smoothly introduced various projects into mass production.
Meanwhile, the Group kept introducing new customers, actively
expanded the market share, and strived to lay out core patents and
build up production capacity for electronic atomization products, so as
to promote the high-quality development of its diversified businesses.

The automotive intelligent system business is moving fast to keep
abreast with the “electric, networked and intelligent” development
trend. With the increasing shipment of new energy vehicles, the market
development of the automobile industry shifted from policy-driven
to market-driven. Over the years, the Group has secured a precise
layout of automotive intelligent systems and seen a growth in the
shipment of multi-media central control systems and communication
modules, reaching a new high in business scale. During the Year, the
Group increased product lines and investment in related research and
development, and proactively advanced international cooperation as
well to power future business growth.

Amidst the Group’s endeavors to consolidate its global presence in
recent years, many of its industrial parks at home and abroad were
introduced into mass production during the Year; the Zhongshan
Industrial Park was put into use; and the construction of a new base in
Vietnam also commenced, and the foregoing development expanded
the Group’s international footprint and helped take its business to
the next level. In terms of corporate responsibilities for economic,
environmental and social sustainable development, BYD Electronic
fully worked towards the Chinese government’s goals of “carbon
peak emissions and carbon neutrality” in terms of green technologies,
products and solutions. In the face of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group actively devoted itself to charity, assisted in the production
of various COVID-19 prevention supplies and facilitated the orderly
resumption of production for enterprises, thus helping China fight
against the pandemic.

EITRBEE
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ETRBREE

Looking forward to 2022, the domestic economy will “focus on
stability while seeking progress”. The government will firmly implement
the strategy of expanding domestic demand to promote high-quality
development, while progressively achieving the goals of “carbon
peak emissions and carbon neutrality”, and will continue to strongly
support industries related to new energy vehicles and electronic
intelligent manufacturing. With the deep integration of 5G, artificial
intelligence and intelligent networking technologies, such application
scenarios as smart home and smart city have moved from concept to
practical application, giving rise to a series of consumer demands and
innovative business models. At the forefront of industry transformation
and upgrading, BYD Electronic will firmly seize the opportunities of
the era, continuously stretch its R&D and manufacturing strengths
accumulated over years, continue to optimize customer resources, and
deepen strategic cooperation, so as to secure long-term development
of all major business segments and drive business innovation and
breakthroughs for the future.

In conclusion, |, on behalf of BYD Electronic, would like to thank our
customers, business partners, investors, and shareholders for their
long support, as well as all of our staff for their contributions and
efforts over the past year.

Wang Chuan-fu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
8 BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED

RE-ZF-_—F BAKEIRFER BF
K| BNBREERBAATER  #I5E
BRR  RBEFER[EE  RHMIOE
B EBANFHFERAERETEERH
EX - -HBEGRALER BB RiIRE
WA BEFE  BERTSERSRCEH
SEMERER  BEE-RIVEEF R LA
EBEN - FREFERTRMAS - LinE
ETHRENRRKSE  HERERFEING
BEMEEE S - BEERLLEPER - RMEBES
BF BRBEREBRANERER  #BHE
FERIF R - BEAARK

Rig - AABRRLTHEFRH —BEHR
MOEP  XEBEH  REELBRE AL
RAH2BETEBE —FONEMER -

*E
IERE

&8 2 _#F#=A=-+hH



C\

\H\
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a global leading high-end platform-based manufacturing
enterprise, providing customers with new materials development,
product design and development, parts and components as well as
complete machine manufacturing, supply chain management, logistics,
after-sales and other one-stop services. The Group offers a wide
variety of businesses ranging from smart phones, smart wearables,
computers, Internet of Things, smart home, game hardware, robots,
unmanned aerial vehicles, communication equipment, electronic
atomization, automotive intelligent system, health devices to other
diversified market areas. The Group focused on technological
innovation and updated intelligent manufacturing. Leveraging on
its industry-leading R&D and manufacturing capabilities, diversified
product portfolio and high quality customer resources, the Group’s
business has stepped into a new round of rapid growth cycle.

In 2021, in the face of a complex situation both at home and abroad,
and challenges from the COVID-19 pandemic and other risks, China’s
economy continued to recover steadily, and China maintained its
leading position in the world in terms of economic development
and pandemic prevention and control, with key indicators meeting
expectations. China’s GDP grew by 8.1% year on year, with economic
aggregate exceeding RMB110 trillion, ranking top among major
economies in the world, demonstrating strong resilience and potential.
In 2021, the Group recorded sales of approximately RMB89,057
million, a year-on-year increase of approximately 21.79%. During
the Reporting Period, the Group adhered to the strategy to further
deepening its relationship with major customers, continued to promote
the global capacity layout by focusing on the needs of its core
customers, and further strengthened the diversification of its products,

£330
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customers and markets. The prosperity level of the smartphone and
laptop business witnessed a slight decline in the second half of 2021,
with growth slowing down through the year. The Group deepened its
strategic cooperation with major customers. Specifically, it continued
to increase its share of major Android customers, further increased its
assembly share and shipment of core products to major customers
in North America, and intensified cooperation in new product lines.
In that context, the Group’s business scale hit a new high. However,
given the fluctuations in customer demand during the Year due to the
recurrence of the pandemic and the shortage of chips in the industry,
the Group’s overall capacity utilization was relatively low, which had an
impact on profitability. The Group constantly expanded the capacity of
new smart products such as smart home, gaming hardware, robots,
unmanned aerial vehicles, etc., with the R&D and commissioning of
electronic atomization products progressing well, opening up a new
growth curve for the Group. With the explosive growth of the new
energy vehicles market, the Group recorded steady growth in the
shipments of automotive intelligent system, and actively invested in the
R&D of several new product lines. As the prevention and control of the
pandemic became a normal course, demands for medical protection
products declined year on year, rendering a significant decrease in the
revenue and profit than those of the previous year. During the Year,
profit attributable to shareholders decreased by approximately 57.55%
to approximately RMB2,310 million as compared with the previous
year.

In respect of the smartphone and laptop business, the global
smartphone market grew increasingly mature as iteration slowed
down. However, with expanding coverage, the 5G network continued
to be a driving force in the mobile phone market. According to the
data from market research agency IDC, the global smartphone
shipments in 2021 went up by 5.7% year on year to 1.35 billion
units, slowing from the 19.4% growth rate in the first half of the
year. Information released by China Academy of Information and
Communications Technology showed that the mobile phone
shipments in China totaled 351 million units in 2021, up 13.9%
year on year, of which, the shipments of 5G mobile phones were
266 million units, representing an increase of 63.5% year on year
and accounting for 75.9% of mobile phone shipments in the same
period. Catalyzed by the pandemic, remote office, video meeting and
digital collaborations became the new normal, and demands from
consumers and businesses promoted the sustained growth of the
sales of laptops. The data from research agency IDC showed that the
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shipments in global PC market in 2021 increased by 14.8% year on
year to 349 million, hitting a record high in respect of the shipments
since 2012, and 169 million tablets were shipped globally, up by 3.2%
year on year, showing a huge overall market. As a leader in global
smartphones and other smart terminals, behind the strong brand,
the Group was backed with its pursuit of ultimate user experience.
The Group’s rigorous attitude from product design to production was
also the key to establishing close cooperation with customers. During
the Year, given continuing disruption from the shortage of chips and
pandemic on the global electronics, the Group made active response
through keeping promoting the partnership with major customers and
improving market shares, rendering fast growth in overall revenue.
In terms of major Android customers, the shipments in electronic
contract manufacturing service and the business scale increased as
driven by the increasing market shares of the Group, while revenue
from Android components and parts decreased for the impact of
reduced sales of high-end flagship models. For major customers
from North America, the Group continued to deepen the strategic
cooperation and proactively expanded the product domains, further
improving its position in supply chains. During the Reporting Period,
the whole series of products of the Group including plastic, metal,
glass, ceramic and assembly products achieved mass production.
The further growth of shares and shipments in core product assembly
drove significant year-on-year increase in the business scale. The
Group recorded revenue from smartphone and laptop business of
RMB71,632 million during the Year, representing a significant increase
of approximately 47.03% as compared to 2020. In particular, the
revenue from components and parts decreased by 10.88% year on
year to approximately RMB15,655 million; the revenue from assembly
increased by approximately 79.69% vyear on year to approximately
RMB55,977 million.

In respect of new intelligent product business, the Group adopted
positive market expansion strategies with a comprehensive layout
of products covering loT, smart home, gaming hardware, robots,
unmanned aerial vehicles, electronic atomization,
etc. Under the impact of

the pandemic, the demand for smart home products from domestic

intelligent
commercial equipment, industrial control,
and foreign residents has increased significantly, driving growth of
the global smart home industry. IDC expected the shipments in smart
home equipment market in China to increase by 14.6% year on year
to reach 230 million units in 2021. Meanwhile, the number of gamers
around the world is steadily increasing to promote the demand for
gaming hardware. According to the prediction of iiMedia Research,

in 2021, the retail scale of global electronic atomization will reach

BEENWED

HESREER14.8% @ EEF|3.4918
2m2¢MXKmMﬁ§§mE ma
M E=E1.601880 - RMLIER3.2% - BEM
BRBERARK - REEARIRE %?%&ﬁ
AR EEE AN RmREE

E ¥ B A FERBR &Emﬂﬁﬂiﬁ
BT ONBRERENREEETPEVER

% 2A
RFIRE

ZREBENER - £ THhERIRIEH
BTE2HEFE  SEBEREY  TEHHkE

BEAEPHEERE  BAMSMOE - BRIl
ANABFREER - REARFHHE - £
T IBMHEFERA “@%%@*ﬁ“aﬁ
EBHHRBRER - XRmERRAEE R DR
@v£$§%#WAﬂmoﬁ%K%ﬁ%%E
H o EEBERLEBKEAE BRAREERSE
- HEE A E—FSRA - BIA - KSEBE
ZR e BE BE AEN2RERD
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁ'ﬁmém@#m1ﬁﬂﬁ
E—HER  FHEBHAEERELLAE
?E FR - EERTEEFRRETERED
BEARET16.32BT2WA BT ZEFF
KNIBERA47.08% o AR THHRANARE
156.55187C * B TF£10.88% : AHEEW AL
559.7718 T * AHIERAT79.69% °

EHUEREREBIE  SERBRERNT
BRRERRE  BZNERMRREDES

BRERE - EEEMN  HEA - BAK - F
THL - DeEEmARE  TEREHF - BB
1 BRINERHERREEMBKBER

® BERERREITEREIERE S - IDC
it R - —2FHEERERERENSH

EE2E23E8 RILIER146% - A &
HEBTRBEEBSEER  HEEEHENS
SKEF - WiHFERTEA  — - —F2RET

2021 5% /
LeER i E 7 (B ARA R 11




/J°

/)

/MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB wmeA D i

US$35.85 billion and the electronic atomization equipment market in
China will increase by 170% year on year to RMB116.00 billion, at a
penetration rate of only 2.2%, demonstrating huge potential of growth.
During the Year, the forward-looking diversified development of the
Group achieved remarkable effectiveness. In particular, the business
volume of smart home, gaming hardware, unmanned aerial vehicles,
commercial equipment and other products expanded continuously,
contributing to the rapid growth of new intelligent product business.
The Group has continuously deepened cooperation with customers
of sweeping robots in terms of R&D, parts and components, and
complete machine manufacturing, and has successfully introduced
mass production in overseas industrial parks, and the market share
has increased year on year. With the increase of market demand,
the gaming hardware product business has maintained good
development. As a strategic core supplier of the leading enterprises
in the field of unmanned aerial vehicles, leveraging on capability in
large-scale precision manufacturing, rich assembly experience, strong
capability in resource coordination, the Group fully met the customers’
rapidly growing demand for capacity, timely delivered high-quality
products, received high recognition from its customers, and recorded
continuously increasing business scale. Taking advantage of vertical
integration, the Group further deepened its cooperation with major
overseas customers in Heat Not Burn (HNB) products, leading to
increased revenue scale and continuous introduction of new projects.
During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the core patent
layout and capacity construction of electronic atomization products,
and cooperated with a number of customers. In 2021, the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB12,445 million from the new intelligent
product business, accounting for 13.97% of the overall revenue and
representing an increase of approximately 31.33% over 2020.

In respect of the automotive intelligent system, there is a continuous
trend for the development of electrification, Internet of Things and
intelligence. The market development of the automobile industry has
shifted from policy driven stage to market driven new development
stage, showing a good development situation of double improvement
of market scale and development quality. Driven by favorable policies,
national trend of domestic products and technological progress,
the sales volume of new energy vehicles continues to increase.
According to the data released by China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers (CAAM), the national automobile production and sales
volume still showed a steady growth trend in 2021, which were
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26.082 million units and 26.275 million units respectively, representing
a year-on-year increase of 3.4% and 3.8%. Among them, the national
sales volume of new energy vehicles in 2021 was 3.521 million units,
representing a year-on-year increase of 157.5%, and the market
share increased to 13.4%. Benefiting from the steady growth of new
energy vehicles, the shipments of the Group’s multi-media central
control system, which served both the parent company and external
automobile brands, remained growing. With the robust growth of
intelligent connected automobile, the shipments of the Group’s
4G communication module continued to increase strongly, and 5G
communication module was introduced rapidly, and the overall scale
of automobile intelligent system business hit a new high. At the
same time, the Group increased its product line and related R&D
investment, including intelligent cockpit, intelligent driving, Internet of
vehicles, automotive appliances, etc., actively promoted international
cooperation and injected power into future business growth. In 2021,
the Group’s revenue from the automotive intelligent system business
amounted to approximately RMB3,770 million, accounting for 4.23%
of the total revenue and representing an increase of approximately
107.47% as compared to the same period last year.

In recent years, the Group has constantly strengthened the global
strategy, enhanced its relationship with customers at home and
abroad and constructed new industrial parks to expand the production
scale at home and abroad and improve its operating efficiency.
During the Year, mass production was introduced in domestic Anyang
industrial park, and overseas industrial parks in India and Malaysia,
boosting the Group’s business to a new stage. Meanwhile, the
Zhongshan industrial park has been put into use and new bases in
Vietnam have been put into construction. The Group will continue its
international expansion, actively promote cooperation with domestic
and overseas leading manufacturers, lead “intelligent manufacturing in
China” (“fRE%F%5") and unleash brand power.

BYD Electronic actively undertook the responsibility for the sustainable
development of economy, environment and society, responded to the
government’s goals of “carbon peak emissions and carbon neutrality”,
and promoted the green and low-carbon development of the industry
through green technologies, products and solutions. Under the
pandemic, BYD Electronic actively participated in charitable and public
welfare causes, cross-border assistance in the production of masks
and other pandemic prevention materials, and promoted resumption
of the work and production of upstream and downstream enterprises
of industrial chain, boosting the nation to fight against the pandemic.
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FUTURE STRATEGY

The COVID-19 recurrence has further complicated and aggravated
the international environment and heightened uncertainty over the
progress of the global economic recovery. While the global economic
recovery is slowing down, the long-term positive fundamentals
of China’s economy have not changed. Looking ahead to 2022,
domestic economy will prioritize stability while pursuing progress.
Firmly proceeding with the strategy of expanding domestic demand,
the government will promote high-quality development and at the
same time, make efforts to gradually achieve the carbon peak and
neutrality targets, with sustained vigorous support to industries
relating to new energy vehicle and intelligent electronic manufacturing.
The Group will continue to cultivate and accumulate top talents and
deeply explore the comprehensive advantages covering materials,
moulds, components, research and development, and automated,
intelligent and large-scale manufacturing and fully unleash its
innovative intelligent manufacturing capabilities to further improve
its comprehensive strength and core competitiveness. At the same
time, following its major customer strategy, the Group will strategically
consolidate and expand its core businesses, capture the business
potential of major customers, maintain a keen market insight all the
time, adhere to a diversified and sustainable development layout, and
continuously introduce new business areas to inject momentum into
the sustainable development of the Group’s business.

In respect of the smart phone and laptop business, 5G replacement
demand in mature overseas markets and the natural growth in
emerging markets will be the key drivers of the smartphone market.
However, IDC expects that components shortages and logistics
delays will continue until mid-2022, and global smartphone volume
growth will be expected to decrease to 3.0% in 2022. In respect of
laptop and tablet market, IDC expects the growth of global laptop
market will begin to slow in 2022, with a compound annual growth
rate (CAGR) of 3.3% from 2021 to 2025, most of which comes from
laptops. IDC expects that consumers gradually develop the habit of
using large-screen terminals in entertainment, education, office and
other scenarios, with obviously higher operating frequency, which
will drive the tablet shipments in China reached 30.64 million units
in 2022,

deeply rooted in cutting-edge technologies for intelligent terminals, the

representing a 7.1% increase year on year. Having been
Group’s strong technological accumulation will provide a sustainable
driving force for its business growth. In terms of the Android assembly
business, the easing of chip shortages is expected to drive the growth
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in the shipment of mid-to-high-end products from customers. The
Group will continue to closely meet customers’ development needs
to actively expand its market share. In terms of Android components
and parts business, focusing on the technological innovation, the
Group will continue to consolidate its leading position in the metal,
glass and ceramics industry. In terms of the major North American
customers, the Group will continue to deepen its strategic cooperation
with customers and continue to develop product areas and business
types. With products put into mass production at overseas bases,
the share of core product assembly business will further increase
and the shipments of supporting metal structures are expected to
grow significantly. At the same time, the Group will accelerate the
construction of production capacity and project development in our
domestic industrial park and actively promote the mass production of
new components, laying a good foundation for the expansion of more
new product types.

In respect of the new intelligent product business, the integration of
5G and artificial intelligence technologies has opened up a window
of leapfrog development for the market. The 14th Five-Year Plan
further specifies the building of a manufacturing power and the
cultivation of “little giant” enterprises with high growth potential,
advanced technology and strong market competitive edge as well as
single-product specialists in the manufacturing industry, which will
deeply empower the transformation and upgrade toward “intelligent
manufacturing in China” and high-quality development and enhance
growth potentials for the Group’s multi-dimensional businesses in the
fields of smart home, Internet of Things, unmanned aerial vehicles
and electronic atomization over the years. IDC estimates that China’s
shipments of smart home devices will approach 540 million units in
2025, with a compound growth rate of 21.4% from 2021 to 2025,
and complete home smart solutions will be one of the key growth
drivers for the market. The global electronic atomization equipment
supervision is becoming more standardized. iiMedia Research predicts
that the global retail scale of HNB will reach US$31.37 billion in 2022,
and the retail scale of the electronic atomization industry will reach
US$42.44 billion, and the market will continue to expand. Looking
forward to 2022, smart home devices, unmanned aerial vehicles
and gaming hardware and other fields will continue to make great
strides in their development. The HNB complete machine project is
expected to enter mass production, driving the business scale to a
new level. Leveraging on the comprehensive advantages in technology
and products, the Group will accelerate the project cooperation

with domestic and foreign customers to capture market growth
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opportunities, and the electronic atomization business is expected to
achieve substantial growth. At the same time, the Group will continue
to increase its investment in R&D to achieve more technological
breakthroughs, continue to expand new customers and new fields,
and further explore its business potential.

In respect of the automotive intelligent system business, along
with positive national policy support to the innovation of the
intelligent automobile industry and successive promotion of 5G
and intelligent networking technology, intelligent vehicles have
been more recognizable to consumers, the penetration rate of new
energy vehicles has repeatedly hit new highs, and electrification,
intelligence, Internet of Things and sharing will reshape the pattern of
the automotive industry. At the beginning of 2022, the State Council
issued the 14th Five-Year Plan for the Comprehensive Work Plan
for Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction ([ +PUH | &5EER

He4r A TYEJTZ)), proposing that by 2025, the sales of new energy
vehicles will reach about 20% of the total sales of new vehicles;
seven departments including the National Development and Reform
Commission issued the Implementation Plan for Promoting Green
Consumption ({R#ELEHEBEHETR)),
removal of restrictions on the purchase of new energy vehicles in

announcing the gradual

various places, promoting the implementation of removal of traffic
restrictions, road rights and other support policies, and strengthening
the construction of supporting infrastructure such as charging and
swapping station, new energy storage and hydrogen refueling. In
addition, IDC predicts that in 2024, more than 80% of the new
cars coming off the production line in China will be equipped with
intelligent networked systems, and the shipment of self-driving cars
in China will increase to 13.44 million units in 2025, with a compound
annual growth rate of 15.1% from 2021 to 2025. Electric vehicles are
entering a golden age of development. In the future, consumers will
put forward higher requirements for intelligent functions of vehicles,
especially advanced assisted driving. On the basis of supporting the
parent company’s vehicle business, the Group will actively develop
new projects and external vehicle enterprise business, strengthen R&D
and design capabilities, and further release the growth potential of
automotive intelligent products. With the continuous advancement of
the trend of electrification and intelligence of automobiles, the Group’s
shipments of central control system and vehicle communication
module will maintain rapid growth. At the same time, the Group
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will seize historical opportunities, actively invest in research and
development, accelerate the promotion of product lines such
as intelligent cockpit, intelligent driving, Internet of vehicles, and
automotive appliances, and continue to strengthen cooperation with
domestic and foreign automobile OEMs to improve market share.

In respect of the medical and health business, the COVID-19
pandemic provided an opportunity for the Group to move into the field
of medical equipment. In the future, it will continue to firmly seize the
opportunities of the era to meet the diversified medical needs of the
people in the post-pandemic era and will empower long-term growth.
The National Health Commission, the National Development and
Reform Commission and other departments jointly issued the 14th
Five-Year Plan for the Development of the Medical Equipment Industry
KM+mf | BEREFEEZEZEERE)), which clearly includes seven key
areas such as diagnostic testing equipment and health convalescence
equipment. The Implementation Plan for Promoting the High-Quality
Development of Medical Device Industry in Guangdong Province (&
REHDEESMEEXESEEEREH S ZE)) also mentioned that
by 2023, the CAGR of the medical device manufacturing industry’s
operating income will reach more than 20%, and a high-end medical
device industry cluster with Guangzhou and Shenzhen as the dual
cores will be formed. The Group has already obtained various
domestic and international medical certifications and professional
medical device development teams. In the future, the Group will carry
out in-depth cooperation with more customers in the medical field and
jointly create a new era of the industry.

As a global leading high-end platform-based manufacturing enterprise,
BYD Electronic continues to expand the shipment of core products of
its major customers from North America while holding its position as
a leader in Android-based products, with a larger overall market share
in continuous growth. The Group relies on its brand advantages to
strengthen its core competitiveness and further expand its long-term
growth space. At the same time, the Group focuses on the automotive
intelligent development, is committed to expanding new business, and
pursues and makes breakthroughs and innovations in emerging market
areas such as unmanned aerial vehicles, robot, electronic atomization
and medical and health products. In 2022, the Group is expected to
fully benefit from the rapid development of various business sectors,
and the overall business has a huge growth momentum.
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Looking ahead, the Group will adhere to its core corporate values,
respond to the market changes in a quick way, and commit itself
to enhancing independent innovation and upgrading intelligent
manufacturing, in an effort to create value for clients and shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue recorded an increase of 21.79% as compared to the previous
year. Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent recorded a
decrease of 57.55% as compared to the previous year, mainly due to
the pandemic and the shortage of chips in the industry, and the lower-
than-expected customer demand, resulting in a low utilization rate of
production capacity and pressure on profitability.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Set out below is a comparison of geographical segment by customer
location of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020:

54% 30%
Overseas Overseas
=28 L2
46%
PRC (including
Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan)
TE (BEBRALE)
\ANNUAL REPORT 2021

18 BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED

BRERK - SR M EBRFEENZO
EBES AREHEHSHEL  BHRTBE LA
e HPERIERLEAL  BEFP K
RElEEE-

Rt %% B

BEBREFEERE21.79%  MBRAFEDZHEAE
ANEE R FEBREF T E57.55% T ERZEM
TESRER  BERPERTRER  EXE
PR RRE - BFEEE -

PHER
NTAREERNBEE S - —FR-_T-TF
+ A=+ BLEFEREFMEMLD TR
5 BBECE -

70%

PRC (including
Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan)

HE (BEERAHE)




C\

KH\

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS\

GROSS PROFIT AND MARGIN

The Group’s gross profit for the Year decreased by approximately
37.38% to approximately RMB6,029 million. Gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 13.17% in 2020 to approximately
6.77%.
pandemic and the shortage of chips in the industry, and the lower-

The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the

than-expected customer demand, resulting in a low utilization rate of
production capacity and pressure on profitability.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group recorded cash inflow from operations
of approximately RMB6,335 million, compared with approximately
RMB3,209 million recorded in 2020. The increase in the cash inflow of
the Group recorded during the period was mainly due to the increase
in cash received from the sale of goods. As of 31 December 2021, the
Group didn’t have bank borrowings (31 December 2020: RMB2,009
million).

The Group maintained sufficient liquidity to meet daily liquidity
management and capital expenditure requirements, and control
internal operating cash flows. Turnover days of trade receivables and
receivables financing were approximately 54 days for the year ended
31 December 2021,
year ended 31 December 2020, which showed no significant changes.

compared with approximately 60 days for the

Turnover days of inventory for the year ended 31 December 2021
were approximately 39 days, compared with approximately 36 days
for the year ended 31 December 2020, which showed no significant
changes.

BEENWED

ERRBERE
LK’E‘EIEWW%%IJTW%? 38%%‘3#’9/\&%
6,029B&ETT e EMER-F_FTFL13.17%
TREHNEC.77% EFEXTHENEEZERARE
ERITERRER  BFHERTREH - &K
EREFARRBIE - BFRE AR

RBEERMBEIR
FRN AEEHFSELERENANARE
6,335 BB L M_T_ZFAFFHARE
3209 T AEEHANRSARALMNES
EHERMPWINRSBINMAH -BHE-T
—¢+ A=+ —RAEBEITERITER
THEF-_A=+—H: AR%¥2,0098
7_E)°

}Ei“\l

AEEHEFTEZHRBEURCEERBES
ERREARAIFR  WIEFHABLEERES R
B -HEZZE-—F+ZA=+—RHILFEE
WESEARREWFIBRENFAEEN A54
H MBE-_Z_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE
Al#AB60H » EBBEE(L -HE-_ZT=—F
+TZA=+—HLFE FEAEBHLNA39
H MBE—Z_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE
A% A36H - MEAREEEL -

2021 5% /
LeER i E 7 (B ARA R 19




/J°

/)

/MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWED

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s Financial Division is responsible for the Group’s financial
risk management which operates according to policies implemented
and approved by senior management. As of 31 December 2021, the
Group had no bank borrowings and its cash and cash equivalents
were mainly held in Renminbi and US dollars. The Group’s current
bank deposits and cash balances and fixed deposits, as well as net
cash derived from operating activities, will be sufficient to satisfy
the Group’s material commitments and working capital, capital
expenditure, business expansion and investments.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net liabilities
divided by equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing
ratio as low as possible. Net liabilities include interest-bearing bank
borrowings, less cash and bank balances. Equity represents equity
attributable to owners of the parent. The gearing ratio was -9.63% as

of 31 December 2021 (-3.24% as of 31 December 2020).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Most of the Group’s income and expenditure are settled in RMB
and US dollar. During the Year, the Group did not experience any
significant difficulties in or impacts on its operations or liquidity due
to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The Directors believe that
the Group will have sufficient foreign exchange to meet its own foreign
exchange needs.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 31 December 2021, a bank deposit of approximately
RMB351,244,000 was pledged for guarantee deposits (RMB487,000
as at 31 December 2020).
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EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 91
thousand employees. During the Year, total staff cost accounted
for approximately 11.53% of the Group’s revenue. Employees’
remuneration was determined based on performance, qualifications
and prevailing industry practices, with compensation policies being
reviewed on a regular basis. Employees may receive bonuses and
rewards, based on their annual performance evaluation. Incentives
were offered to encourage personal motivation. The Company did not
adopt any share option scheme.

In 2021, the Group has standardized a three-tier training framework
for new staff members and has concretely carried out training. The
subjects, hours and assessment methods of the three-tier training
framework are clearly stated, and safety training materials and
examination questions are drafted according to the job nature of
employees. New employees are required to attend the training and
pass the examination before taking on the job.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims
to allow shareholders to share the Company’s profits and the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including (i) the financial performance and overall financial position
of the Group; (ii) the debt-to-equity ratio and return on equity of the
Group; (iii) the liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group;
(iv) the current and future operation of the Group; (v) the business
development strategy and future expansion plans of the Group; (vi)
the general market conditions; (vii) any relevant requirements of the
Listing Rules and applicable laws, rules and regulations as well as
the Company’s Articles of Association; and (viii) any other factors
which the Board deems relevant. The final dividend was approved at
the general meeting after thorough discussion and compliance with
relevant decision-making procedures. Compliant with the conditions
under the dividend distribution policy, the Board may propose interim
dividend distribution based on the profitability and capital requirements
of the Company.
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The Company shall review and reassess the dividend policy and its
effectiveness on a regular basis or when necessary.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of RMB0.103
per ordinary share (2020: RMBO0.241 per ordinary share) for the
year ended 31 December 2021 which is subject to consideration
and approval at the Company’s AGM. Please refer to note 37 to the
financial statements included in this annual report for details of the
final dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31 December 2021, the share capital of the Company was as
follows:

Number of ordinary shares issued: 2,253,204,500 shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company or its subsidiaries did not redeem any of its shares
during the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. During
the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

The Group did not have any significant investments during the Year.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
22 BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED

AABEERAARBEREESL BHTHBE
BERMEEWI -

KERE

EEeRBEMEE_E-_—F+-_A=+—
HIEFEMRBRESHREBRAREO0.103
T(ZEZZF : GREBRARK0.241
) WEARARRKRAFASEZRB - BH

KEARR BHFES  B2HAFERAETBHE
MIEER7 o
[}

RZEBEZ—F+-A=+—8  ARFHERKX
R

BETEBERMER : 2,253,204,500 °

BE  HESEBERRSG

R -_—F—A—BEE-_ZT-_—F+_-A
=+—H1t > ARQFEMNE QA EE R E
EARAD © FA - AR E) ZE AT A BB A a1
EEBRHETMNARRN EMES °
FFEERKRE

FAXREERBEAENRE -



C\

\\\

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS\

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES AND MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OF CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Year, there was no material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries and associates. There was no plan authorised by the
Board for other material investments or additions of capital assets as
at the date of this annual report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2021, the total capital commitments of the
Company were approximately RMB1,191 million, compared with
approximately RMB540 million as at 31 December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Please refer to note 30 to the financial statements included in this
annual report for details of contingent liabilities.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SOCIAL
SECURITY

During the reporting period, the Group had no significant
environmental protection or social security issues.
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ESERSHEERAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WANG NIAN-QIANG

Mr. Wang Nian-giang, aged 58, a Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, a master’s degree holder and an engineer. Mr. Wang
graduated from Central South University of Technology (#F F T 2 K £2)
(now the Central South University (A FA£2)) in 1987 with a bachelor’s
degree in industrial analysis. In 2011, he obtained a master’s degree
in MBA from China Europe International Business School (/7 Bl BIFE T
EEPRT). Mr. Wang worked at Anhui Tongling Institute of Non-ferrous
Metals (Z#REE EEERA]) as an engineer. He joined Shenzhen
BYD Industries Company Limited (RYITithapiaEEBRAE]) (‘BYD
Industries”, renamed as BYD Company Limited on 11 June 2002)
in February 1995 as a chief engineer. He joined the Group in April
2015 and is the chief executive officer and executive director of the
Company and the vice chairman of BYD Charity Foundation.

JIANG XIANG-RONG

Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong, aged 45, a Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, a bachelor’'s degree holder, graduated from Fudan
University (£ B X2 in 1999, majoring in Applied Chemistry, with a
bachelor’s degree. Mr. Jiang joined BYD Industries in July 1999. He
has successively served as the factory director of the precision metal
products factory of Division 1, general manager of the technology
development center of the electronic business group and deputy
general manager of Division 1. Now he is the executive director of the
Company and COO of BYD electronic business group, the general
manager of the first business division and the general manager of the
ALPHA structural parts business division, who is responsible for the
overall operations and manufacturing, project development, module
development and research and development of new technologies and
materials of structural parts (metal, glass, ceramic, plastic) business.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT\

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WANG CHUAN-FU

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, aged 56, a Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, master’s degree holder and senior engineer. Mr. Wang graduated
from Central South University of Technology (/L2 A (currently
Central South University (AR AZ2) in 1987 with a bachelor’'s degree
majoring in metallurgy physical chemistry, and then graduated from Beijing
Non-Ferrous Research Institute in the PRC (FEIL RA @S BT 4A5)
in 1990 with a master’s degree majoring in metallurgy physical chemistry.
Mr. Wang held positions as vice supervisor in Beijing Non-Ferrous Research
Institute, general manager in Shenzhen Bi Ge Battery Co. Limited (ZYIT
LIS B AR A BIAE4CIR). In February 1995, he founded Shenzhen BYD
Industries Company Limited (‘BYD Industries”, renamed as BYD Company
Limited on 11 June 2002) with Mr. Lv Xiang-yang and took the position of
general manager. He has been a non-executive director and the chairman of
the Company since December 2007, and currently serves as the Chairman,
an executive Director and the President of BYD Company Limited (“BYD”,
listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01211); listed on the SZSE (Stock
Code: 002594)), the Chairman of BYD Semiconductor Co., Ltd. (bbanigif
ERERS {7 B PR A]), a director of Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive
Co., Ltd. (FINES IR AEARAR]) (formerly known as “Shenzhen
BYD Daimler New Technology Co., Ltd.” (F3IItt emaE T a R A
7)) a director of China Railway Engineering Consulting Group Co., Ltd. (2
TiRRETFEA5EE AR A 7)), an independent director of Renren Inc. (A AR
7)) and a director of South University of Science and Technology of China (7

FTRHRKR).

Mr. Wang, being a technology expert, enjoyed special allowances from the
State Council. He was awarded “The 2008 CCTV Man of the Year China
Economy Innovation Award” (ZZZ \FCCTVHEEEFEAMFEE
¥48), “Zayed Future Energy Prize Lifetime Achievement Award in 2014” (=
TN H R EAR R EERIZE AL B K FEEE), a founding member of the
United Nations Development Programme’s “Advisory Council for Sustainable
Development” in 2016 (ZZE— NFHABEMAEEB I HERRENZ
B2"AItAR ), a member of the Expert Committee for the 13th Five-Year
Plan for Economic and Social Development of China, an “Outstanding Builder
of Socialism with Chinese Characteristics in the Fifth National Non-Public
Economic Sector in 2019 (ZE—NFFERAEEZEIELAFHIEEALES
PR GHE TR EERERE), Fgure of Innovation Entrepreneurship and
Advanced Model in the 40th Anniversary of the Establishment of Shenzhen
Special Economic Zone (FYIACEFE 257 40 EF BIFTRIZE AV M SR ED
A1), National Advanced Person in the Private Economy for the Fight against
COVID-19 Pandemic (2B BB AR B R ELETHEEA) etc.
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WANG BO

Mr. Wang Bo, aged 50, a Chinese national with a bachelor’s degree
holder. Mr. Wang graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology
(BMEETZKE) in 1993 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering,
specializing in electrochemical engineering. Mr. Wang worked as an
assistant engineer at No. 18 Tianjin Institute of Power Sources (X
B RITFTAT), a senior quality engineer and resource development
manager at Motorola (China) Ltd. (BEFEZER FBIA R A F]). Mr. Wang
joined BYD Industries in September 2001 and is mainly responsible
for marketing and sales. He had focused on marketing and sales
of the Group and the day-to-day management of the commercial
and customer service aspects of our business since our listing on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and served as an executive director of the Company. He has been
appointed as a non-executive director of the Company since 6 June
2019.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
CHUNG KWOK MO JOHN

Mr.
permanent resident of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Chung Kwok Mo John, aged 53, a Chinese national and a

Mr. Chung obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Macquarie
University (BRMZE B IR KE), Australia in 1992 and is also a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA
Australia, with over 20 years of experience in auditing, financial
management and corporate finance. Mr. Chung was an auditor in
Arthur Andersen (an international accounting firm) from 1992 to 1999.
From 2000, Mr. Chung had held several senior management positions,
including chief financial officer, executive director and independent
non-executive director, in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chung is presently a vice president of Yongsheng Advanced
Materials Company Limited (kEFTMEER2AF]), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3608).

Mr. Chung has joined the Group as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since 7 June 2013. In addition, he is also
an independent non-executive director of each of B & S International
Holdings Ltd. (BB ZERAER AR, a listed company on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1705), YTO Express (International)
Holdings Limited (B3R ()R B R A7),
on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 6123), Zhengye International
Holdings Company Limited (IF 3B 1ZE BR A R]), a listed company
on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3363) and Tokyo Chuo Auction
Holdings Limited (3R R RIABZIEAR B R A 7)) (Stock Code: 1939).
\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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ANTONY FRANCIS MAMPILLY
Mr.
degree holder. Mr. Mampilly obtained a bachelor’'s degree and a

Mampilly, aged 72, a United States national and a master’s

master’s degree in physics from Kerala University, India in 1970. Mr.
Mampilly worked at Motorola, Inc. where he held positions as general
manager of the Energy Systems Group, general manager of the auto
electronics business, corporate vice president and chief procurement
officer. He joined the Group in November 2007 and is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company.

QIAN JING-JIE

Mr. Qian Jing-jie, aged 40, a Chinese national without right of abode
overseas. Mr. Qian graduated from Monash University in Australia
(RARFGEENTKRE) and completed his undergraduate studies in
finance in 2006. Since 2006, he has been working at Shenzhen Kind
Care Group Co., Ltd. (—E&EEABR A F]) and is a director and the
president thereof. Mr. Qian has extensive experience in business
management. He has been an independent non-executive Director of
the Company since 27 April 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ZHOU YA-LIN

Ms. Zhou Ya-lin, aged 45, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, bachelor’'s degree holder. Ms. Zhou graduated from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics ((TFEEF4EAER) in 1999, with a
bachelor’s degree in economics. Ms. Zhou joined BYD Industries in
March 1999. She has been the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
since January 2016, and currently also serves as the Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of BYD, a director of BYD Semiconductor
Co., Ltd. (tharsh B ERR D AR A F]), chairman of BYD Auto Finance
Company Limited (tbdpi#/9EB &R BRAF]), a supervisor of BYD
TOYOTA EV Technology Co., Ltd. (thapih @ HEBH T AR A E]) and
a supervisor of BYD Charity Foundation, etc.
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LI QIAN

Mr. Li Qian, aged 49, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, master’'s degree holder. Mr. Li graduated from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (T4 AE) in 1997, with
a bachelor’s degree in economics. He graduated from Guanghua
School of Management of the Peking University (1t AZ2J EEE IR
EB7T) with an MBA in July 2016. Mr. Li was the auditor and business
adviser of PwC China and Arthur Andersen, respectively, and the
securities business representative of ZTE Corporation (FF B3@ A% 1) A
FR A R]). Mr. Li joined BYD in August 2005. He has been appointed as
the joint company secretary of the Company since November 2007,
and currently serves as a secretary to the Board, Company secretary
and general manager of Investment Department of BYD, a member
of the first GEM Listing Committee of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, a
director of BYD Semiconductor Co., Ltd. (FhI5iiEEEmERA
Al), a director of Tibet Shigatse Zhabuye Lithium High-Tech Co., Ltd
(Fa A i RIHL I BR SR X S BB R 2 7)), chairman of Shenzhen BYD
Electric Car Investment Co., Ltd. (RII L anmEETEREBR AR,
chairman of Energy Storage Power Station (Hubei) Co., Ltd. ((E82E ik
(#dE)B R A R]), a director of Meihao Chuxing (Hangzhou) Automobile
Technology Co., Ltd. (FE&FHIT(HUMN)TERHE AR A F]), a director of
Shendianneng Technology Group Co., Ltd. (FE LRI EEHFR A F)
and a director of Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. (&3l
#E B TEREERAR).

CHEUNG HON-WAN

Mr. Cheung Hon-wan, aged 66, a Chinese national, a permanent
resident of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and a
master’s degree holder. Mr. Cheung obtained a master degree in
accounting and finance from the University of Lancaster in the United
Kingdom in 1983. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung worked at various Hong
Kong listed companies and served as a qualified accountant of the
Company. He joined the Group in June 2007 and is a joint company
secretary of the Company.
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The Board believes that good corporate governance is an essential
element in enhancing the confidence of current and potential
shareholders, investors, employees, business partners and the
community as a whole. To this end, we strive to promote and uphold
the highest standard of corporate governance.

The Company has put in place corporate governance practices
to comply with all the applicable provisions and most of the
recommended best practices of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) since the
shares of the Company commenced listing on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the
applicable code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules during the Year, except for deviation from code provision A.6.7.
The code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors should attend general meetings.
Due to travel inconvenience caused by the epidemic or important
business engagements at the relevant time, not all independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors attended the
annual general meeting held on 8 June 2021 and the special general
meetings held on 24 June 2021 of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Accountable to the Shareholders, the Board of Directors is collectively
responsible for formulating the strategic business direction of
the Group and setting objectives for management, overseeing
its performance and assessing the effectiveness of management
strategies. The Board is also responsible for, and has during the
Year performed the corporate governance duties set out in the
terms of reference in code provision D.3.1 of the Code (including the
determining of the corporate governance policy of the Company).

THE DIRECTORS

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors.
There are two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Brief biographical details
outlining each Director’s range of specialist experience and suitability
of the successful long-term running of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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The Group believes that its executive and non-executive Directors
composition is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. All Directors are aware of
their collective and individual responsibilities to the Shareholders and
have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, contributing
to the successful performance of the Group for the Year under review.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as required
under the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board held eleven meetings during this year to discuss the
Group’s overall strategy, operation and financial performance. The
Board also ensures that it is supplied in a timely manner with all
necessary information to enable it to discharge its duties. All Board
meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matter is
specifically addressed to the Board for its decision. Topics discussed
at these Board meetings include: overall strategy; quarterly, interim
and annual results; recommendations on Directors’ appointment(s); the
Board Diversity Policy; approval of connected transactions; regulatory
compliance; and other significant operational and financial matters.

The Directors decide on corporate strategies, approve overall
business plans and supervise the Group’s financial performance,
management and organization on behalf of the shareholders. Specific
tasks that the Board delegates to the Group’s management included
the preparation of annual, interim and quarterly accounts for the
Board’s approval before public reporting; the implementation of
various strategies approved by the Board; the monitoring of operating
budgets; the implementation of internal control procedures; and the
ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
rules and regulations. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing all information and representations of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years respectively and in each case, either the Company
or the relevant Director can give three months’ prior notice at any
time to terminate the appointment without payment of compensation,
and the appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Articles of the Company.
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In accordance with Article 106 of the Company’s Articles of
Association (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors, or if their number is not three (3) or a multiple of three
(8), the number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation at least every three (3) years. A retiring
director shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Chuan-
fu, Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong and Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John shall retire by
rotation, and it is proposed that Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, Mr. Jiang Xiang-
rong and Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John shall be eligible for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Newly appointed Directors of the Company will be provided with
relevant induction materials to assist them to fully understand the
Company’s operations, business and governance policies and their
responsibilities and duties as a director under the requirements of
the relevant laws and regulations, such as the Listing Rules. They
will also be provided with materials to help them to gain insights in
the Company’s business and operation. In order to ensure adequate
performance of duties by the independent non-executive Directors, the
Company will also arrange on-site visits and sufficient communication
with the management for the independent non-executive Directors.
Pursuant to the corporate governance requirements, the Directors
participated in continuous professional development programme to
develop and update their knowledge and skills. The particulars of the
trainings of each Director are as follows:

Name of Director

ESHS

Executive Director BITES

Wang Nian-giang Fo

Jiang Xiang-rong ANEES
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Wang Chuan-fu TERE

Wang Bo F%
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Chung Kwok Mo John ERR

Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Qian Jing-jie (e L]

Antony Francis MAMPILLY

REARE

RBEARRNARER ([ER]) F106 ' 1
HERRAFAKE L —H2—WEE - (W
HEABWIIE=ZQ)H=Q)2EH  BlARKELA
EVRB=H2—MAB) BELE=Q)FHE
RE-REEEAAERBREMT - At - £
EiEiE  TMETERERRTEERFR
T IEFETEREAE  IAEREERERR
EERFEGEBNERERRBFAS LEEET -

RABEFHRER - AAFEEHABELEAN
ME - NEDEZRZ2EBRARAKLE X%
REVRHERIA R LM R FHBEEARERRTE
MEFEME BE URHAMEZRHEREAR
AEBREEBERANER « RERBILIFRNIT
EEZROBTRE  ARRTEABBIIIEHR
TERETENER  YREEEETENE
e RBOEERER  EER2EBERE
BRATE NBREEHEF BN - A
TIE B EFEIIFE

Training/
seminars
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EHNE

Reading
materials
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The posts of chairman and chief executive are held separately by
Mr. Wang Chuan-fu and Mr.
segregation ensures a clear distinction between the chairman’s

Wang Nian-giang respectively. This

responsibility to manage the Board and the chief executive’s
responsibility to manage the Company’s business.

BOARD MEETINGS

To ensure the highest attendance of Directors, written notices are sent
to all Directors 14 days before a regular board meeting. The meeting
agenda is set in consultation with members of the Board. The Board
held eleven meetings in 2021. The attendance of individual Director
at the Board meetings as well as general meetings in 2021 is set out

below:

Members of the Board

EEEHKE

Wang Nian-giang Fa
Jiang Xiang-rong ST )4
Wang Chuan-fu TiEiE

Wang Bo 3

Chung Kwok Mo John fERE
Antony Francis MAMPILLY Antony Francis MAMPILLY
Qian Jing-jie fE3=g7

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has set up a
number of committees, including:

— the Audit Committee;

- the Remuneration Committee; and

— Nomination Committee

Each Committee reports regularly to the Board, addressing major
issues and findings with valuable recommendations for the decision

making of the Board. The particulars of these Committees are set out
hereunder.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee is to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company, and provide advice and comments to the Board
of Directors. As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
consists of five members, namely Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, Mr. Wang
Bo, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie, of whom Mr.
Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian
Jing-jie are independent non-executive Directors and among them,
Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on 27
March 2019 and follow the guidelines set out by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Listing Rules is
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
pursuant to Code C.3.4.

The Company established the Audit Committee on 29 November 2007
and has held four meetings during the Year to review the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020, and the unaudited consolidated financial statements
for the three months ended 31 March 2021, the six months ended 30
June 2021, and the nine months ended 30 September 2021, and the
financial reporting process and the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of Company. The individual attendance of
its members of the meetings is set out as follows:

Member of the Audit Committee
EREZEEBRE

Wang Chuan-fu FER
Wang Bo T3
Chung Kwok Mo John (Chairman of the Audit Committee) #ER (BEZEZE&€TF)

Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Qian Jing-jie RIS

Antony Francis MAMPILLY

REARE

BEREEY
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AN B RERFARRBRER R AL R
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AlETERELE  THEE  ERRELE (F
“ZB8EEF) * Antony Francis MAMPILLY %
HEREEERESE  Hedp o SRR LA - Antony
Francis MAMPILLY 7t & « $8W RS £ BB IE
WITEE  BEBERAEBERELTHRIE
SI0KEFTHEN S EE X ER LG
BEREEMNH -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has also set up the Remuneration Committee on
29 November 2007, which consists of five Directors, namely Mr.
Wang Nian-giang, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John,
Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), of which Mr. Chung Kwok Mo
John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie are
independent non-executive Directors, as at the date of this report.
The Remuneration Committee considers and makes recommendations
to the Board regarding the policy and structure on remuneration
and other benefits paid by the Company to the Directors, Senior
Management and Staff, assesses the performance of executive
Directors, and (with delegated responsibility) approves the terms
(including terms on remuneration packages) of the executive
Directors’ service contracts. The remuneration of all Directors,
Senior Management and Staff is subject to regular monitoring by the
Remuneration Committee to ensure that levels of their remuneration
and compensation is appropriate. The Remuneration Committee
has performed the above duties during the Year. The Remuneration
Committee held one meeting during the Year and the individual
attendance of its members of the meeting is set out as follows:

Member of the Remuneration Committee

FHEESRE

Wang Nian-giang Tk
Wang Chuan-fu FiEE
Chung Kwok Mo John ERE

Antony Francis MAMPILLY
Qian Jing-jie (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
pursuant to Code B.1.3.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
36 BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED

Antony Francis MAMPILLY
EEE (FMEEeXF)

FMEES
KARPERZZEZELF+—AZ+NAEK
VHEMEES  RARSTHERE  Hiz
BERESAATRES BT AE -
TEERAE - EBRLLE - Antony Francis
MAMPILLY e & R BB E (FHMEES
FE) BEFREBKLE - Antony Francis
MAMPILLY 54 REBR A4 BB IFRITE
E-FMEERAREEZRARAMES Rk
EIRAB RIEE IR E A E MRN8 EER
NE# Ut MESEREEBRER UK
AZATESHNRBRBETRERE I AERT
EERBAELHER (BIEHHAE KR -
TEREE  SREEABREBHH A HD
ZEYTFHHER  LUBRESOH B LIRS
AN

B oHFNZEeRNFART—Ag®E HKE

B R BE T

Number of Committee
Meetings Attended

HEZESERRY

—_ a4 4

FMZEenREREDRETRIEBAGRR
B 7 B 32 P B2 IR R4 U,



C\

KH\

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT\

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy for executive
Directors is to enable the Company to retain and motivate executive
Directors by linking their compensation with their individual
performance as measured against the corporate objectives and the
Group’s operating results and taking into account of comparable
market conditions. For the remuneration of the executive Directors
and senior management, the Remuneration Committee make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management (adopting the
model described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code). The
principal elements of the remuneration package of executive Directors
include basic salary and discretionary bonus.

The emoluments paid to each Director of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 9 to the financial

statements.

The Company reimburses reasonable expenses incurred by Directors
in the course of their carrying out of duties as Directors.

Directors do not participate in decisions on their own remuneration.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Remuneration by bands

TEERHRE
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 29
November 2007 with specific written terms of reference stipulating
its authorities and duties in compliance with code provision A.5.1 of
the CG Code. In light of the latest amendments made in 2019 to the
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, the Board has further adopted the revised terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2019. For more details on
such terms of reference, please refer to the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. During the Year, the summary of work of
the Nomination Committee included reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and
Nomination Policy, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and providing recommendations on retiring
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which includes the selection criteria and nomination
procedures of new appointments and re-appointments of directors. The
selection criteria for assessing candidates include, in particular, his/her
educational background and professional qualifications, experiences in
the industry, personality and integrity, as well as his/her contributions to
the diversity of the Board according to the Board Diversity Policy. In the
case of re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee would
take into account factors such as contribution from the retiring Directors.
Where the candidate is appointed for the position of independent
non-executive Director, the Nomination Committee will also assess his/
her independence with reference to the requirements set out in the Listing
Rules. After the Nomination Committee evaluated the candidates based
on the selection criteria, the Nomination Committee will nominate one or
more qualified candidates for the Board’s consideration and the Board will
determine and agree on a preferred candidate. The Company and/or the
Chairman of the Board will then negotiate the terms of appointment with
the preferred candidate. Finally, the Chairman of the Board, in consultation
with the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee, will then finalise a letter of appointment
for the Board’s approval. The Nomination Committee shall ensure the
transparency and fairness of the selection procedure and continue to adopt
diverse selection criteria during the appointment procedure, taking into
consideration a range of elements such as age, educational background,
professional experience, industrial skills and professional knowledge. Since
its establishment, the Nomination Committee has assumed the role of
reviewing such diverse selection policy at the nomination level, maintaining
a diversified spectrum of varying perspectives, educational background and
professional knowledge in the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises five
members, namely Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu (chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Antony
Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie, of which Mr. Chung Kwok
Mo John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie are
independent non-executive Directors as at the date of this report. The
Nomination Committee has performed the above duties during the
Year.

THE BOARD’S DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy on 29 October 2013. In
light of the latest amendments to the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules in 2019, the Board has further adopted the revised Board
Diversity Policy in 2019.

The Company recognises the importance of diversity to corporate
governance and an effective Board. The Board Diversity Policy aims
to set out the approach to achieve Board diversity, so as to ensure
that the Board members possess appropriate skills, experience and
diverse views necessary for the business of the Company. To realise
Board diversity, all appointments of the Board members will be made
based on merit, and measurable objectives will be discussed and
negotiated on an annual basis. Such measurable objectives shall
include, but are not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
terms of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merits and
contributions that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Board has confirmed the arrangement of skilled and experienced
senior management, as they will facilitate a more comprehensive and
diversified development. Having considered the business needs of
the Company, the Nomination Committee considers that the current
Board is sufficiently diversified in terms of its skills, experience,
knowledge and independence. Moreover, the skills they are equipped
with will prepare them prior to participating in senior management and
commencing their roles as directors.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year and
the individual attendance of its members of the meeting is set out as
follows:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZBEEHE

REZBENFRBIT REHE - HK
JERBEININT

5 H)H

\

Number of Committee
Meetings Attended
HEZESEFNEH

Jiang Xiang-rong pREES
Wang Chuan-fu (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Chung Kwok Mo John

Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Qian Jing-jie

IR

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were revised on
27 March 2019 and follow the Listing Rules, and is published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company pursuant to Code
A.5.3.

INDEPENDENT INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS AND
THEIR REMUNERATION

As at the year ended 31 December 2021, the total remuneration
paid and payable by the Company to the international auditor,
Ernst & Young, was RMB1,240,000 for audit services. The audit fee
was approved by the Board. During the reporting period, the total
remuneration in respect of the non-audit services was RMB200,000.

IERERZEEER)

Antony Francis MAMPILLY
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200,0007T °

=T HIRA

Review of interim results

H At IR ARTS

Other non-audit services

The Board has proposed and approved to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as the independent international auditor of the Company for 2022,
which is subject to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. There was no disagreement between the Board
and the Audit Committee on the selection and reappointment of the
external auditors during the Year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board confirms its responsibility for risk management and
internal control systems, and for reviewing their effectiveness for the
current year through the Audit Committee at least annually. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in performing its responsibilities for
supervision and corporate governance, covering financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and internal control, as well as internal
audit functions of the Company.

Various measures have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting
records and for the reliability of financial information used within
the business or for publication. The Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
errors, losses or fraud. The Board considers that the Company is fully
compliant with the provisions of risk management and internal control
as set forth in the Corporate Governance Code.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FRAMEWORK
The Company’s risk management system is composed of a

INTERNAL CONTROL

well-established organizational structure as well as all-rounded policies
and procedures. The responsibilities of each business and functional
department are clearly defined to ensure effective balance. The
Company’s risk management and internal control structure comprise
of:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

e FEvaluating and determining the nature and magnitude of the risks
to be assumed by the Company, to achieve its business and
strategic goals;

e Ensuring that the Company has established and maintained
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems;

e Supervising the designing, implementation and inspection of the
risk management and internal control systems by the management
team.
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DIT COMMITTEE
Assisting the Board in performing its duties of risk management
and internal control systems;

Supervising the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, to provide opinions and suggestions
with regard to the improvement of the risk management and
internal control systems;

Reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems at least once a year;

Ensuring that the Company has sufficient resources, staff
qualifications and experiences in accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Designing, implementing and inspecting the risk management and
internal control systems;

Identifying, evaluating and managing risks that may exert potential
impacts on major operational procedures;

Responding to and following up in a timely manner with regard to
the investigation results of risk management and internal control
issues raised by the Internal Audit Department;

Providing opinions to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
acknowledgment of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems.

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

42

Reviewing the due effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

Reporting the audit results and making suggestions to the Audit
Committee, to improve major drawbacks of the systems or identify
the deficiency of the control.
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IDENTIFICATION, EVALUATION AND MANAGEMENT
OF MAJOR RISKS

The management team and relevant staff identify risks that may exert
potential impacts on the Company and its operation, and evaluate and
monitor risks in the environment and process. Through comparison
of the risk appraisal results and risk prioritization, risk management
strategies and internal control procedures are determined to prevent,
avoid or reduce risks.

Major risks and related control measures are reviewed and upgraded
on an ongoing basis to ensure proper internal control procedures in
place. Based on the testing results, persons in charge confirm with
the senior management that internal control measures have played
their roles as expected, their weakness identified in the control have
been corrected, and risk management policies and internal control
procedures have been revised, in the event of any major changes.
The Board and the Audit Committee supervise the control activities
of the management team to ensure the effectiveness of the control
measures.

ANNUAL ASSESSMENT

In 2021, the Board reviewed the soundness and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, covering
financial, operational and compliance control, with a self-evaluation
report issued on the internal control. Meanwhile, the Company
retained an auditor to audit the effectiveness of the internal control
related to the Company’s financial reports, and to provide independent
and objective assessments and suggestions in the form of auditor’s
report. The Board considers that the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has an Internal Audit Department which, equipped with
an independent internal audit system, plays an important role in the
Group’s risk management and internal control framework. The Internal
Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee. Major audit
findings will be reported on a timely basis. Based on its consideration,
the Audit Committee will provide advice for the Board and the
senior management, with subsequent measures taken to review the
implementation of the rectification and improvement plans.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by its Directors. Having made specific
enquiry, all Directors complied with their obligations under the Model
Code regarding their securities transactions during the Year.

Specified employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with terms
of the Model Code. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the
Company in 2021.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has put in place a set of policies for the disclosure of
inside information which sets out the procedures and internal control
for the handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely
manner and in compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Unless the inside information
falls within any of the safe harbors as permitted under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, the Group is required to disseminate such
information through the electronic publication system operated by the
Stock Exchange to the public in a timely manner. All Directors, officers
and relevant employees are required to take reasonable precautions
for preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication. If the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained, the
Group will immediately disclose the information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable. The policy and its effectiveness are subject
to review on a regular basis.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Articles and the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”), the Directors shall, on the requisition of members of
the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than 5% of the total voting rights of all members having the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly
to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company. The
requests, must state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting, may be sent to the Company in hard copy form
or in electronic form and must be authenticated by the Shareholder(s)
making it.
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Further, Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the members having a right to vote, or, at least 50
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote, may put forward
proposals at general meetings; and circulate to other Shareholders
written statement with respect to matters to be dealt with or other
business to be dealt with at general meetings. For further details on
the Shareholder qualifications, and the procedures and timeline, in
connection with the above, Shareholders are kindly requested to refer
to Sections 580 and 615 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Furthermore, a shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting. For such
purpose, the shareholder must send to the Board or the company
secretary a notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his or her
willingness to be so elected, no earlier than the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the relevant general meeting and no later than 7 days
prior to the date appointed for the relevant general meeting.

To safeguard Shareholders’ rights, the Company adopts the policy
of voting by poll for all resolutions put forward at any Shareholders’
meetings.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests requiring the
Board’s attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office in Hong Kong at Part of Unit 1712, 17th Floor, Tower
2 Grand Central Plaza, No. 138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, New
Territories, Hong Kong. Other general enquiries can be directed to the
Company through our Investor and Media Relations Consultant, whose
contact information is disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with investors is
essential for enhancing investors’ knowledge and understanding of the
Company. To achieve this, the Company pursues a proactive policy of
promoting investor relations and communications. The main purpose
of the Company’s investor relations policy, therefore, is to enable
investors to have access, on a fair and timely basis, to information that
is reasonably required for making the best investment decisions.

During the Year, there has not been any significant change in the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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The businesses of BYD Electronic cover smartphones, computers,
new intelligent products, automotive intelligent systems, medical
health, etc. Leveraging its all-round research capability, ultra-large
precision manufacturing capacity and industry-leading automation
and intelligent manufacturing abilities, BYD Electronic provides global
leading brand clients with one-stop services in terms of product R&D,
material innovation, precision molds, parts and components, EMS &
ODM, supply chain management, logistics and after-marketing. BYD
Electronic is the largest EMS foundry in China (according to MMI data)
and the only company in the world to offer large-scale solutions to
the design and manufacturing of whole-series structural parts and
complete machines including metal, glass, ceramic and plastic.

The Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan for National Economic and
Social Development and Vision 2035 of the People’s Republic of
China (Draft) sets forth major quantified objectives and tasks for
economic and social development during the “14th Five-Year Plan”
period, with “promoting green development and ensuring harmony
between humanity and nature” as the main environment objective
during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period. 2021 is the first year of the
14th Five-Year Plan. One of the major goals this year is to further
improve the ecological and environmental quality, decrease the energy
consumption per unit of GDP by around 3% and continue to lower
the emissions of key pollutants. In this year, given global supply
chain interruptions caused by the repeated epidemic outbreaks,
the Group has kept its original aspiration, continued to pursue the
harmonious development between its employees, society and nature,
taken practical actions to repay society, cared for nature, created a
harmonious environment for development, better met the requirements
of customers and assumed the responsibilities to the stakeholders and
society as a whole, so as to achieve sustainable development of the
company and the society.

REPORTING PERIOD:

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting period of this report is from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

SCOPE OF REPORT

Unless otherwise specified, this report covers BYD Electronic
(International) Company Limited and its principal subsidiaries. For
details, please refer to Note 1 Information about the Company and the
Group to the 2021 Financial Statements.
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REPORT STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities) released by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), and fully supports all
the provisions of the latest revised “comply or explain” indicators in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and observes its reporting principles:
“Materiality”: During the preparation of this report, important
stakeholders have been identified and important ESG topics have
been determined through importance evaluation;

“Quantitative”: This report demonstrates key indicators of our
environmental and social performances with quantitative information
“Balance”: This report observes the principle of balance and

objectively reflects the status quo of the Group’s ESG management;

“Consistency”: Unless otherwise specified, this report uses the same
data statistics method as that adopted for the 2020 ESG Report,
without any significant changes.

CALCULATION STANDARDS

The data used in this report include the internal statistics and
relevant public data of the Group and its main subsidiaries. The
Group reasonably promises that this report contains no false records,
misleading statements or material omissions. Unless otherwise
specified, all amounts in this report are denominated in RMB.

CONTACT

If you have any questions or suggestions on this report or the Group’s
ESG management, you are welcomed to email us at BYDEIR@byd.
com.

BOARD STATEMENT

China is aiming to peak carbon dioxide emissions before 2030 and
achieve carbon neutrality by 2060. In April 2021, President Xi further
noted that China’s commitment to achieve the “carbon peak emissions
and carbon neutrality” goals is “a major strategic decision based
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on China’s responsibility to promote the building of a community
with a shared future for mankind and the inherent requirement to
achieve sustainable development”, and the time to achieve the goals
is “much shorter than that used by developed countries, requiring
China to make strenuous efforts”. This requests all walks of life in
China to make concerted efforts and work hard to achieve the green
transformation of the entire society and the goals of “carbon peak
emmissions and carbon neutrality” as per the committed time and
to blaze a high-quality development path supported by low energy

consumption and carbon emissions.

As a global leading platform-type high-end manufacturing enterprise
BYD Electronic is
well aware of its great responsibility in energy saving and emission

and the largest domestic EMS manufacturer,

reduction and the necessity to keep up with the nation in achieving
In 2021,
through persistent hard work in green transformation of the Group,

the goals of “carbon peak emissions and carbon neutrality”.

the subsidiary, Huizhou BYD Electronic Co., Limited, went on the list
of 2021 Green Manufacturing released by the General Office of the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (https://www.miit.gov.
cn/jgsj/ins/gzdt/art/2022/art_1df75ea854364e1eae43d0dd319bd2a3.
html).

The Board of Directors fully recognizes that the inclusion of
ESG matters into business strategies is crucial to the long-term
development of the Company. The Board of Directors is in charge
of assessing and determining the nature and scope of risks that
the Company can tolerate, reviewing the Company’s existing ESG
management methods, strategies, priorities and objectives, and
evaluating the relevance between these matters and the overall
business strategies. The Board of Directors is responsible for
identifying, assessing and managing the ESG risks that have a
significant impact on the Company’s businesses and is ultimately
accountable for the Company’s ESG control.
social responsibility performance is under the administration and
supervision of the ESG Committee. The ESG Committee reports
relevant circumstances to the Group’s management and then the

Qur corporate

management reports the same to the Board of Directors to review and
handle the practices, progress and objectives of our corporate social
responsibility work.
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In March every year, the Board of Directors regularly reviews and
evaluates the corporate social responsibility work of the Company as
per the annual working plan and the importance of relevant topics.

IDENTIFICATION OF KEY TOPICS

BYD Electronic fully recognizes the importance of listening to all
parties in the development and promotion of ESG projects. By ongoing
contact with various internal and external stakeholders, the Group
takes stakeholders’ feedback into consideration, makes commitments
in the key areas of ESG and evaluates corresponding progress. The
cooperation also provides insight into how to effectively convey the
ESG information expected by the stakeholders. The Group actively
manages the relationships with clients, staff, suppliers, investors,
regulators, people within the operating area and other stakeholders
who may be affected by the Company’s business in the regions in
which it operates.

Stakeholder

Stakeholder Communication

Primary Topics

Channel/Method of

RIR - HERERBRE
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Stakeholder
Primary Topics

NEAEBES REATRE

Channel/Method of
Communication

BEREFRX

Stakeholder
F = AERE A

Communication Frequency
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BRBREE e Major reverse roadshow TEHREE M
KA R [A) 5 8 e lrregular surveys
e Regular information disclosure N TE B A
EE BT e Irregular phone and email
e Daily email and phone interviews
communication 7€ B 5 B EL 1 75 ]
AFMEM REFHERE
e  Supply chain management e Field research e lrregular training sessions
HrEg e IR 35 F TEHE
e Product liability e Quality communication e Quarterly supplier
' EmEE EERB satisfaction surveys
{S;J;;p;%ers e Supplier meeting and review BREE —F R ER
e HER S EEZ BEHAE
e  Supplier contract and
questionnaire survey
HEMEFEFERS
e Supplier training
Hrem sl
: e Green production e Government policy discussion Irregular
o mEstE BRBREBE N TEHA
|| || | e Green operation e Input for government
E— HEEE standard and negotiation
Government e Results of operations BBTIEE T FHE R
sectors KRR A
BT e Compliance operation e Government and cross-
BRKE government meeting
B RBBNEE
e Participation in government
projects
2 INBATE B
e |nvitation to visit and inspect
BAELBRE
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Stakeholder Channel/Method of
Stakeholder Primary Topics Communication Communication Frequency
FlzsAEBE T MR AEBA 5 X BAERE BERE AN BEEE RE
e Green production e Participation in e lrregular volunteer service
- — GEHEE communities programs activities
| | | e Social welfare St RIER TEHAHRERRBEES
HEAR e Participation in meetings of
NGOs andl ' Volunteer services NGOs, and inviting NGOs to
oommu?‘mes EREAR 7% participate in meetings
FEURER SIERTABHEE - B
iEbadi)

FIEBTAZ2 NG S

e Discussion of each party’s
specific concerns
BE Yl S ol

e Responding to requirement
of information
OEFEEBK

e Social welfare activities
HEREED

We conduct dedicated research for multiple stakeholders, identify ¥ Z @R AR S ETEIEAN - WL
important topics and make relevant responses to the topics identified [FIZEM®HEFH A HMESCGEEZ#E @ RIE[ A
in the report taking into account important ESG topics identified mARBAMEE M| RIHARMEEER ] RE
by our peers and based on two factors, namely “importance to the #EMGEEE R EZHHBOHF - I
stakeholders”, and “relevance to the Company”. The results of the FLFBITH AR @ WS P IMTD AR LFE -
assessment on the list of important topics have been submitted to EZHHBEEMNTHERERIEEZTSER
the Board of Directors for confirmation and approval. We will regularly — EEEE#t - P TEATRELEE - WREA
review these topics and make adjustment as per the Company’s latest ~ RIHRITERIGEAETHE ©

development conditions.

2021 %% /
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Governance-related Topics

EREREE

Environment-related Topics
RIFHEARE

Community-related Topics
HEMHEERE

Research, development, and
intellectual property

Bt 8 B 8k E

Compliance operation

A

Supply chain management

Mg E R

Supplier evaluation & selection
e R AT (h B

Customer service and satisfaction

B REEmEE
Client privacy
BT

Product safety and quality
EnirHEES
Anti-corruption

k&S

Waste management
REEYE IR

Greenhouse gas emission
management

RERBHNERE

Energy consumption and resource
management

BEFRHEREIE

Management of water resources

IKEIRERR

Climate change

RixE(E

Package materials of finished
products

K mBEME

Salaries and benefits
E=a R

Labor standards
5 TR

Employee occupational health
and safety
BTBERERERZS
Employee development and training
B T REEI
Employee rights
BI#ER
Diversity and equal opportunity
Zrlb R TFEkE

Communication channels
BIRERE
Community contribution

adio= )
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ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION AND ENERGY
SAVING

For the sake of a green earth and a better future, the Company
is always committed to environmental protection and sustainable
development, as well as creating a healthy and safe working
environment for the employees. The Company attaches great
importance to the building of an ecological civilization and
its incorporation into the overall corporate planning for future
development. The Company is fully aware of the importance of
environmental protection with a high sense of social responsibility,
and invests a large amount of capital resources in environmental
protection in order to achieve harmonious coexistence between
the corporate and the environment. In 2021, the Company did
not encounter any relatively major or more serious environmental
pollution or ecologically damaging accidents.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS

Since its founding, the Company has always held on to its obligations
and social responsibilities to protect the environment. With the
interests of the State and society identified as the top priority, the
Group actively coordinates the economic interests of individuals and
the whole group, while constantly raising its capital investment in
environmental protection to advance pollution prevention and ensure
environmental safety, thereby striking a balance between economic
benefits and environmental considerations. The Company strictly
complies with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other laws & regulations, by restricting the emission of waste water,
waste gas and solid waste through rational management and control,
so as to protect our ecological environment and keep our planet
green.

Al.1 Types of Emissions and Respective Emissions Data
Waste emissions include waste water, waste gas, solid wastes
and noise. Waste water can be further divided into production
waste water and domestic sewage;

Waste gas mainly includes nitric oxide, sulfur dioxide and
suspended particles; and solid wastes include recyclable waste,
hazardous waste and general waste.

A1.2 Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions
The Company regularly reviews its greenhouse gas emission data.
The data of the Company’s greenhouse gas emissions are as
follows.

RIR - HERERBRE

EBEA1 : BEBY

RABIAKRIMAKR - IHERIEBARIRBRES
BMAENHSEEHIAL  RERNTE
KM 2R B - TRR T R ER EL R RS 2 R R AT
FIZBEE - MRRRESHRA - (RESEE
BRBRELZD  BRTLEESIRERIEN
BRRELS c AARBRETF(hEARK
MERRSRAZE) - (PEARKLMEKS
AaE) (PFEAREMBEREREEL)E
ERAR BRAEREE  BERII=E (E
CBER O BY)MEBERE MREBLERR
B EBZEHIR

S X

A1 B FEIE RAG BT I B 5
BEmEBREREK  BER BERBER
)~ REE o BEKBEERKIAIRISK

BERIZE/AANY —SlmEETE
Fio EREERYABAICKRNEERY  BF
REEYM—REEEDY) -

A1.2)B ER BRI E
ARBEHFBEERBEREE - TH
RARFRERBINERE -

2021 %%
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Identification Unit

Bl FFTEE

Scope | greenhouse gas emission (carbon dioxide equivalence) Tons

HEAERBHNE (ZaRES Mg 29,947.34

Scope Il greenhouse gas emission (carbon dioxide equivalence) Tons

HE AERBHNE (Z8/RES 7 1,547,363.97

Scope Il greenhouse gas emission (carbon dioxide equivalence) Tons

HE=ZB=REHHE (CR/LKREE WA 1,830.06

Total greenhouse gas emission (carbon dioxide equivalence) Tons

REREHNEE (ZS(RES A 1,579,141.38

Greenhouse gas emission intensity Tons/persons

BRERBHEREE Wa & A2 17.40
Remarks: R

1. Scope | mainly covers fixed combustion and effusion emissions. Scope 1 BE-F2RETMRIZHAN  BE_-A%
Il covers electricity emissions and Scope Il only covers trial check of DB BE=REETERMBH MRS -

employee travel and commuting.

The coefficient of electricity emissions is from www.tanjiaoyi.com %15 R EHURR A B 5 Fhttp://www.
(http://www.tanjiaoyi.com/article-25420-1.html). Emission coefficient  tanjiaoyi.com/article-25420-1.html = § /7 [&
of the southern power grid in 2019: 0.8042 kg CO2 equivalence/kWh;  HEHE =T —NFHMFE - 0.8042 kg CO2
emission coefficient of the northwest power grid in 2019: 0.8922 kg & & kWh » PRI EH —F — N FHK
CO2 equivalence/kWh and emission coefficient of the central China 52 : 0.8922 kg CO2E & kWh - Ef[&1F

power grid in 2019: 0.8587 kg CO2 equivalence/kWh; BR-T—NFHMER : 0.8587 kg CO2%E
=,/ kWh :

A1.3 Discharge of Hazardous Waste Al.3 B EEZR YL
The Company actively enforces emission reduction policies, RAREEREERBEBE - BBYHEER
and has reduced the emission of air, land and water pollutants EEENEEMETHR M 2EK
by effectively identifying, evaluating, categorizing and managing B ORDKRR - DHMIKT R B
wastes generated in the production process. All hazardous wastes M HEEBRTEENBREDZHRR
generated during the production process are transferred to and HEEEMNEREMREREBETRE
treated by qualified hazardous-waste processing companies, and EENEERKFEREARRANGKEE R
industrial sewage is discharged to our sewage treatment station WRBEREER  —F - —FREKERE
for processing. Treated sewage is discharged if the required HEP 8 494513534860 -

standards are met. In 2021, the volume of sewage treated and
discharged was approximately 1,353,486 tons.

The total amount of hazardous solid wastes generated in 2021 TECHFELACRERBEVRED
was approximately 14,431 tons, with a density of 0.159 tons/ 1443108 - ZRE0.159MF /A A& - Rk
person, and all the wastes were transferred to and treated by EXNENEHZARAAERENEE
companies licensed for disposal of hazardous wastes. AAREHRARAREITRES °

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021

54 BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED



< N

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT\
RE - HERERRSE

A1.4 Discharge of Non-hazardous Waste Ald EFEZEZYEN

While maintaining tight control over hazardous solid wastes, TEHEREBEDEENRE  —T_-—
the Company controlled the emission of non-hazardous wastes FARRNRIRFSIEGESEEMOER - 2
in parallel in 2021. The total amount of non-hazardous wastes FHEABEEZEYEELNK123781 -
generated throughout the year was about 12,378 tons, with a ZE0.1364M8 / AAZ 2R LTS
density of 0.1364 tons/person, all of which were transferred FIRATMWARIEE - ERBETE L ARA A
to and treated by companies authorized by the government. THER  BRELEERERRETPRARE
The Company continued to explore various ways of reducing REANSTXNRBYE - BOBEEMNE
emissions, and managed to cut back on waste production by BRI AERMNEEFEABRBIE
recycling materials in the manufacturing process. An excellent MEFEE -

example is the use of plastic frames and recycled cabinets during
the production process.

A1.5 Emission-reduction Measures and Achievements A1.5 B HE I E 15 H R AT 13/ R
The Group has formulated its annual energy conservation goal B IER(PEAREMBEEDORE)H
and implementation plans in strict compliance with Article 49 of W+NtEFEREBEZEMEETE -
the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China BEEFRHBRTEMERNEE - RERKF
KR ZE AR KEFBEELEERE)), tightened up energy consumption ERgeREEMRAME o

measurement and monitoring management, and reported the
annual energy consumption report in a timely manner.

The Company has passed the third-party certification of 1ISO50001 AR R)BARISO50001 LR E IR EE REM(L
energy management system and integration of informatization REEERERF-FRE  ALELT —
and industrialization management systems, based on which ERE - A ATRENRE - KR
it has established a set of scientific, specific and operable THEEEIERNEEYE  EFREE
regulations, significantly reducing the randomness in energy BHEEREEPEE - TR PEE
management, facilitating the early detection of problems in energy 7o WHE St | R MA RS SIE
management and tapping the potentials of energy saving and B #EgeRE T —FWiTAH
emission reduction. The Company has also conducted “intelligent” RPEFE T -

transformation of typical application scenario projects and
promoted green manufacturing. In 2021, it was rated as National
Green Factory.

2021 5% /
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In 2021,
policy for energy saving and emission reduction, established the

the Company duly implemented the new national

corporate governance philosophy based on the rule of law, and
rationally formulated the annual energy-saving targets. It sensibly
set the target of internal coal-saving and technology improvement
project for the year at 2,000 tons of standard coal, drew up a
work plan and closely followed it up, which enabled it to surpass
the energy saving targets of 2021. Greenhouse gas emissions
were reduced by 22,700 tons of CO2e. In 2022, the target of
internal coal-saving and technology improvement project was set
at 2,100 tons of standard coal, and greenhouse gas emissions
were reduced by 23,000 tons of CO2e.

The examples of the main achievements of the Company in
reducing greenhouse gas emissions are as follows:

Case |: Electricity feedback energy saving and improvement
project for charging and discharging detection cabinet

When discharging, the product adopts the DC-AC inverter module
to directly convert the electricity released by the product into utility
power, then directly feeds it back to other equipment in the grid
for reuse or the equipment’s charging channel for feedback and
reuse, like recharging the product. During the discharging phase,
up to 90% of the electricity released by the product is converted
into electric energy and reused, saving a lot of expenses on
utility power consumption. This can also reduce equipment heat
release, the consumption of air conditioner cooling, investment
in air conditioners and air ducts, and costs of electricity for air
conditioners. Specifically, 2,620,800 kWh of electricity and 322.1
tons of standard coal are saved every year, respectively.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Regular tgstgguipment Channel 1 Tested energy storage product 1
ERAARE I

HRIFEEE M1

Charging 1
FE1

c
Utility power/
corporate power grid
HE/LEEH
-

Power supply
HE

Charging 2
%82
Channel 2 ' Tested energy storage product 2

mE2 HWRIFREEM2

Before improvement
BUE A

ergy feedback test equipme Channel 1 Tested energy storage product 1
a5 2 [T 65 0] 5 20 15 i1 ) BORlRBEER 1

Charging 1'

&1

Utility power/
corporate power grid  [SUACVY=1Y
==

b

Discharging
HWE

—

Charging 2

82 )
Channel 2 ' Tested energy storage product 2
®is2 WORIHREE M2

Excess discharging energy is
fed back to the power grid

ZHHERENEEEHR

After improvement
HEIE
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Case lI: Ventilation energy-saving transformation project =H = PERETREMUETR B

Ventilation system energy-saving transformation: Obsolete and R RGE seE - IK198 3RBEFER
replace 19 grade-3 energy consumption fans with 8 variable WEHASE MRS REAHE  BE
frequency high-efficiency fans of grade-2 energy consumption. BleafBCERREZHRA R HEE -
Pipelines are improved, combined and transformed and excess EE#S BEINERABOKWHM R AN RIFE
parts are removed to reduce the air volume. Now, 8 fans are EEREREMNESBRFR_FER -
installed, with a total power of 160KW, equivalent to the original a/ﬁﬂﬁﬁ—wc@%% cfiEE 125688 TH
total power. The pipeline-improved fans are mounted with variable C BiBERRES ¢ 1.7 1HIIZ M o

frequency motors and secondary motors are replaced. The
measured load has decreased by 25%. 258,000 kWh of electricity
and 31.71 tons of standard coal are saved, respectively.

Comparison before and after Improvement of the Ventilation PERETETE B BE iR E L E]
Energy-saving Project

PR
BEE

d %/’L

o

Before Transformation During Transformation After Transformation
B A HiE HiE &
Case lllI: Injection molding machine motor servo frequency == : ,f#l@% RIREFAMETE B &
conversion transformation project and centralized vacuum air ERETTHIXSEENEIERE - FE5ifE
=

supply system energy-saving transformation project, with 222.92 Az 7%222 92 @ETT R o

tons of standard coal saved every year.

Injection molding machine motor servo frequency conversion IV E AR S SENGETEE ¢
transformation project:

Content of the transformation: At present, there are 40 injection HEAR  FTEEMBAEETE#A0
molding machines in the injection molding workshop. Before the & BUERATE DT B AT IRET - BBIR
transformation, the injection molding machines in the workshop RBERE E%TEF'TOQ/E;M%L?T%@E
operate at a constant frequency, leading to huge energy waste. i IBRERREERNAERREESE

Now, energy-saving transformation has been made on 10 HEEBERIVENRERELK -

injection molding machines in the workshop by changing the
original motors into servo variable frequency motors to save the

unnecessary energy loss during production.
\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Comparison before and after improvement of the machine motor BEMMAREAREE I NEZI R Y
servo frequency conversion transformation project: :
Overall Picture of the Equipment before Picture of the Equipment Motor before
Improvement Improvement

HERREERE R HERREERE

¢ Panoramic vjew vy Original three-phase motor with
of the machine y unchanged energy efficiency

REKERRE - RE =B

Servo Motor Controller after Picture of the Equipment Motor after
Improvement Improvement

hE 1R (AR AR 2R HERREBERE

3 )
& ’ ‘

Controller

ZlER

Servo motor

fRIAREHE

2021 5% /
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Centralized vacuum air supply system energy-saving transformation
project:

Currently, the centralized vacuum air supply system is used to
generate vacuum instead of compressed air to generate vacuum
through vacuum generator. It utilizes electric energy to drive the
vacuum pump and produce vacuum. Normally, it is connected to
the workshop by pipelines. This effectively saves energy and is
free of noise and steam pollution.

Centralized vacuum energy conversion process: electric energy to
vacuum

The transformation of centralized vacuum air supply system is to
remove the vacuum generator inside the engraving machine, and
cut off the compressed air supplied by the air compressor station
to disuse the vacuum generated by the vacuum pump, thus
reducing the losses of secondary energy conversion.

In the centralized vacuum air supply system, vacuum generated
by 10 vacuum pumps (8 in use and 2 for backup) is connected to
the machine to convert electric energy directly into vacuum.

Comparison photos before and after energy-saving transformation
of the centralized vacuum air supply system:

Production unit before transformation
MERAERE

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Production process after transformation
HOEREETS

RIR - HERERBRE

A1.6 Methods for Disposal of Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes,
Emission-Reduction Measures and Achievements
The Company actively took measures to reduce waste water
discharge. Take the project on overflow regulation of the washing
line for example, given that the overflow volume of the original
washing line was too large; the overflow volume was adjusted
through the overflow valve without affecting the quality, reducing
waste water discharge by 38,976 m®.

ASPECT A2: USE OF RESOURCES

To use resources effectively, the Company has formulated and
implemented Management Procedure for Implementation Plan
Concerning Energy Targets, Energy Index and Energy Management,
Energy Assessment & Control Procedure and Control Procedure for
Energy Baseline & Energy Performance Parameters, Management
Regulations on Energy-saving Work and other relevant regulations and
policies.

AlCREHER & REFEZEZEY ) 5% BIEEL

B iR AT IR R

TR R B RO BEFE BE - 20)E SRR R i R
MIEE  RBEABRTKERERBA £
“FEREMNBRATRARAE R REIZES
mKE - R EE KPR E 389763 FOK o

BEA2 : ERER
ARRHEALERECEIRBIR © BEIRIERMAE
REBERTRERIZEF) - (LR HFZEHIZ
Fr ReREEE - BB 2 BUESIIEF) - (HigE
BRTIFEERE)SRELBRRARERE
IR e
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A2.1 Energy Consumption A2.1 BEJFAE

2021 Energy and Resource Consumption

“EC-FRRERERE

Category Name Measurement Unit Energy Data
Bl =18 FTEEM BEIR B
Direct Energy Natural gas 10,000 m?
BHiEALR RAR, BT 361
Indirect Energy  Electricity 10,000 KWH
B RE IR 5 & TR 164,200
Power consumed by the air compressor 10,000 KWH
Bz RAE BT RE 25,473
/ Total energy consumption tons of standard coal
RLIRHAEAS MR AR AELE 237,909
/ Energy consumption density tons of standard coal/person
R EREEE WERRAERL (B A B 2.62
/ Water 10,000 m?®
7K RV P 985
/ Water consumption intensity mée/person
RKREE SR AN 108.5
Due to the increase in production capacity, the comprehensive HAER Tzﬂ —E - —FFEERRBEERE
energy consumption in 2021 increased slightly compared with that HR - -F iﬁﬁtﬂ BHEEE_T
in 2020, but the sales volume increased by about 21.79% in 2021 T FHER S _ZTF AL ROA
compared with that in 2020. Therefore, the comprehensive energy 21.79% * FTAZE B HE B G ER
consumption density based on unit sales volume is lower in 2021 ET - FH_E_FTF ERLEEAK

than that of 2020.

A2.2 Water Resources Consumption A2.2 K &) 1EH
The Company’s goal of “improving the efficiency of water usage ARARETIREKERMARE - BHKE
and attaining sustainability in the use of water resources” was RS EF A BEF R A EEE S IRE
reflected in all aspects of production and operations. The total TR —FHEREKEHARI84T7067LH
amount of water consumed in 2021 was approximately 9,847,067 Ko AKBEAR108.5 K MAANE -

m?3. Water consumption intensity was 108.5 m¥/person.
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A2.3 Energy Conservation

The 2021 energy-saving technological transformation project
aims to reduce energy consumption by more than 2,000 tons
of standard coal. Guided by the ideology of improving quality
and efficiency and LEAN management, the Company actively
implemented energy conservation and emission reduction. A series
of measures have been taken from three aspects: management
energy conservation, technical energy conservation and structural
energy conservation. These measures include:

1) Establish the Company’s Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction Committee

2) Set the Company’s energy-saving objectives and assign
specific energy-saving tasks to subordinate units

3) Carry out energy-saving assessment and link energy-saving
work with the performance of departments and individuals

4) Vigorously carry out energy-saving inspection, training and
publicity activities

5) Actively adopt advanced technology to transform energy-
consumption equipment

6) Increase efforts for the research and development of products
with low energy consumption and high added-value

7) Build an energy management center to realize the online
management of energy consumption of the enterprise

8) Promote the construction of energy management system and
implement energy conservation management

In 2021, 122 energy-saving technological transformation projects
were carried out, saving 3,587 tons of standard coal per year,
with a target completion rate of 179%.

Case 1: The energy saving and improvement project of electric
power feedback for charging and discharging cabinet saves about
322.1 tons of standard coal per year.

- HERERRE

A2.3 BT AIEEIR

TE - FHERNABRHEERES
2000MEIRER - KRBAREER - 15
B EERBAES  BEFAREERET
- (eEIEERE - RATEfRE M B IBENRE =
BEREETF - W7 —RIOFER - G
IR

1) B AREREFREZES

2) #HIEREERE BRI ERD B

3) FREAEE X - A ENRE T 1EELEEPIAN
(EPN:OEES e=:5 2

4) RAFREERE - HIMNEFED

5) MEIRRALERM - HHEREETT
&

6) MAEMEEEFE - & INEE m B0 3
hE

7) EREREEBL  EREELEMARE
MFEARE 12

8) iﬁaﬁﬁéﬁafﬂ% ER o BEReE
R FHEMEREMREEEB 122
T - FEIRE R ARETE B F AN
2 H3587TMEIZEER « BIZRAEAR179% °

=01 - RRERAEE R BN EIR
E - FERLE24AE322. 1 BEIZEH o
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Case 2: The ventilation energy-saving transformation project saves
about 31.71 tons of standard coal per year.

Case 3: The transformation project of motor servo frequency
conversion for injection molding machine and the energy-saving
transformation project of centralized vacuum air supply system
saves about 222.92 tons of standard coal per year.

A2.4 Water Resources Conservation

64

The main water source of the Company is municipal water supply,
so obtaining sufficient water is guaranteed. The Company has
always attached great importance to green production and
vigorously introduced technology that can not only improve
economic benefits, but also reduce environmental impact. For
water use management, the Company adopts measures such
as same water for more purposes, cascade use, closed-circuit
circulation and sewage reuse, so as to maximize the utilization
rate of water resources and reduce the consumption of water
resources in the operation process, which can help achieve the
water-saving goal of the water-saving technological transformation
project in 2021. The benefit goal of the water-saving project in
2021 was 162,500 m2. In 2021, the Company’s water-saving
project saved water of 233,500 m®, with a completion rate of
144%. The water-saving projects carried out by the Company in
2021 include:

Case 1: Water-saving project of washing line: After washing, the
hot water in the hot water tank at the rear section of the plane
line was imported to the oil removal tank at the front for cleaning.
After use for multiple purposes and cascade use, the cleaning line
can help improve the water consumption efficiency, saving water
of 145,152 m?® per year.

Case 2: Concentrated water reuse project: the plant reused
the concentrated water produced by the pure water system for
water replenishment for the water tower and for other cleaning
purposes, saving water of 43,750 m?® per year.

Case 3: The condensate water produced by the air conditioner
was collected and filtered every day, and then pumped to the cold
storage tank for reuse, saving water of 5,616 m® per year.
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A2.5 Packaging Materials of End-products
The Company used a total of approximately 439,745 tons of
packaging materials for our end-products in 2021, with an
estimate 4.846 tons/person per production unit. The main types
of packaging are: packaging boxes, packaging boards, packaging
protective materials, packaging bags, and packaging straps.

ASPECT A3: ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Climate change is related to the survival and development of all human
beings. BYD launched the “Cool the Earth 1” initiative as early as 2016
at the C40 Mayors Summit in Mexico. Wang Chuan-fu, Chairman
and President of BYD, called on everyone to pay more attention to
global climate change at the summit and try to reduce the warming of
the earth. Over the years, BYD has firmly followed the path of green
development and made every effort to deal with climate change.

After China announced to the world that it would strive to achieve
carbon peak emissions by 2030 and carbon neutrality by 2060, BYD
responded quickly and launched a carbon neutrality planning study
in February 2021 to explore carbon footprint standards for the new
energy vehicle industry. On 10 August 2021, BYD’s Carbon Emission
Control Committee was established, officially starting the company-
wide management and control to achieve the goals of carbon peak
emissions and carbon neutrality. In addition, BYD actively participates
in international conferences to discuss with the international
community on addressing climate change.

On 6 November 2021, we obtained China’s first SGS certificate of
conformity statement for carbon neutrality commitment. During the
reporting period, Huizhou BYD Electronic Co., Limited was awarded
the honor of national-level green factory.

The Company has introduced an environmental risk management
system covering the whole process of our construction projects. We
adopt the “three simultaneousness” system, whereby environmental
protection facilities and main constructions are designed, constructed
and put into production/operations simultaneously, so as to ensure
that environmental risks are under control. In addition, the Company
has established an integrated environmental management system
(EMS) and obtained the ISO14001 certification for the system in 20083,
and the upgraded system was certified in October 2018.
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The Company adopted various forms of publicity activities. In
particular, green office was vigorously promoted within the Company,
and signs such as “take the lead to save energy” were posted in
prominent positions. The Company summarized energy conservation
work and commended outstanding individuals.

Recognition of outstanding

individuals in energy conservation and
emission reduction

EiREfERESTEEMAREY

ASPECT A4: CLIMATE CHANGE

In response to the vision of “peaking carbon emissions by 2030
and realizing carbon neutrality by 2060” announced by President
Xi Jinping, the Company earnestly promoted pollution reduction,
practiced energy conservation and emission reduction, and insisted
on green and low carbon development at all levels. It put forth solid
effort in organizing publicity activities with rich content and in diverse
formats in line with its commitment to building an ecological civilization
and an environment-friendly society. The public events include a
vigorous campaign promoting green office practices within the
Company and posting labels such as those carrying the message “take
the lead to save energy” in prominent locations. In August 2021, the
Company organized a green and low-carbon declaration campaign to
highlight the importance of green and low-carbon development.
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Global warming and climate change are profoundly affecting the world
environment, human health and global economic sustainability. The
Company is committed to starting from its own operation and supply
chain to explore and use smarter, safer and more efficient methods to
reduce the “footprint”.

The Company has formulated the Emergency Plan for the Relief of
Disasters and established the emergency rescue system and operation
mechanism for sudden natural disasters to standardize the emergency
rescue behavior, improve the emergency rescue ability, and implement
the emergency rescue in a quick, orderly and efficient manner, so
as to minimize casualties and property losses of the Company, and
maintain the stability of the Company.

Il. SOCIAL SECURITY

BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited (BE) always
adheres to the orientation of solving social problems, is committed
to the “people-first” operation policy and values every employee
in the Company. Every employee is the resource and wealth of
the enterprise. We strictly abide by the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Trade Union Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the labor laws of the countries where overseas
bases are located, and other relevant laws and regulations,
and respect and safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of
every employee, so as to ensure that the legitimate rights and
interests of every employee are fully protected. BYD Electronic
has formulated a sound and systematic human resources system
under the labor legal system, covering recruitment, training,
promotion and transfer, salary, performance and other fields,
providing system guarantee for the legitimate rights and interests
of employees.
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Category

E5l

Recruitment

g

Training

=l

Promotion and
Transfer

BAREY

Remuneration

oM

Performance
1B

File Name and Number

Xt BB R Am

Management Rules for Recruitment of Operators of BYD

(LB AR IE T 1R E R E )

Management Rules for Recruitment and Employment of Recent Graduates of BYD
(H 35281 23 B JE J 4 70 72 B 7 ] & FE A 7 )

Management Rules for External Recruitment of Management Personnel and Skilled Workers of BYD
(tamd 2 A BTN B BRI TA S0 551578 A E )

Management Rules for Qualification of Electronic Business Group
(BEFEXHTBESERHE)

Centralized Training Plan

(55 E1 &)

Training Management Procedures for Electronic Business Group
(BFERHIEEEIZF)

Management Rules for EHS Training of Electronic Business Group
(EFELFHEHSIEHEEHE)

Management Rules for Induction Training for New Employees of BYD

(LS 2\ EIFT B TABIEINE L E )

Internal Training Instructor Certification and Training Course Remuneration of BYD
(32281 23 m] A BB 15 Al B B e a2 R 15 AR BN )

Management Rules for Qualification of Electronic Business Group
(BEFEXHTBESEREHE)

Management Rules for Human Resources Pool of BYD

(BB R RIA ) B EFEAE )

Management Rules for Level Adjustment of Employees of BYD

(e m] B TERFEEIEHRTE )

Measures for Implementation of Transparent Management of Talents of BYD
(LN EIA T EIEA I B L)

Management System for Remuneration of BYD

A PNTE =R g

Management Rules for Reward of Electronic Business Group
(BFERHBHEERT)

Reward System of BYD

(Hitid 2 r] BB #IE )

Management Rules for Work Attendance and Leave of BYD

(LRI ZBINERE R E )

Management Rules for Performance of Employees of BYD

(T r] B THENERHE)

Management Rules for Assessment and Rating

(ZRAREEHRTE)

Management Rules for Competitive Evaluation of BYD

(TR FIEFZRETERE)
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DISTRIBUTION OF EMPLOYEES
BYD Electronic actively responds to the national call of “ensuring
employment and promoting employment” and is committed to
solving the employment problem of society. With a view to effectively
regulating the employer-employee relationship and protecting their
legitimate rights and interests according to law, the Group has
signed labor contracts with all employees upon commencement of
employment to specify the rights and obligations of the enterprise
and employees and provided reliable legal evidence and basis for our
employees in settling labor disputes and protecting their legitimate
In 2021,
with employees of BYD Electronic was 100%.

rights and interests. the signing rate of labor contracts
BYD Electronic
always respects the privacy and beliefs of employees and prohibits
any discrimination based on age, gender,
customs, religion, political affiliation, etc. As of 31 December
2021, BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited had 90,751

employees, of which 64% were male employees and 36% were female

native place, nationality,

employees. Middle and top management accounted for 12% and
grass-roots employees accounted for 88%. The number of male and
female employees at all levels is shown in the table below.
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Number of Employees of BYD Electronic in 2021
—E_—-FBEEIZE

Category Employee Structure Number of Employees
il BI& BIHE
Gender Male
(= Sk 58081
Female
pegi 32670
Age Group < 30 years old
FheAa Rl < 305% 49739
31-40 years old
31-40%% 29194
41-50 years old
41-507% 11431
> 50 years old
> 501% 387
Region Domestic
Hh[& AN 90715
Overseas
551 36
Level Senior management
& BEEEAS 282
Middle management
FEEEAB 10608
Grass-root management
AEET 79861

BYD Electronic currently has 90,715 Chinese employees across the fthZniiE FIREHRBIEANE TH0715A + £
country, mainly in Guangdong, Shaanxi, Henan, Hunan, etc. and 36 ZE&EHRIEEER - Beig - A/ - HEE - B
employees overseas, who are primarily technical R&D personnel and  #EBI AT/t : IBBEEINET36A  TEE
business development employees, mainly distributed in South Korea, T ABMEBFEAE » TEHMHAE

Hungary, Malaysia, India, the United States, etc. CRIEF - BREDE - HE - EREFINE
% o
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Distribution Diagram of Employees in China
BERNE THME

Distribution Diagram of Employees Overseas
HINE T HHE
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EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

BYD Electronic encourages and advocates equal opportunities,
diversity and opposition to discrimination, and solemnly promises to
treat every employee equally, and that their employment, treatment
or promotion will not be affected due to their social identity such as
nationality, race, country, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation,
political spectrum or marital status. The Company advocates equal
communication, respects employees’ personality, listens to employees’
opinions, accepts employees’ reasonable suggestions, and does not
take punitive measures, management methods and behaviors such
as abuse, corporal punishment, violence and mental oppression on
employees for any reason.

WORKING HOURS AND HOLIDAY:

In BYD Electronic, employees work five days a week, and the normal
working hours are 8 hours a day. We formulated Management Rules
for Work Attendance and Leave of BYD to ensure that employees can
enjoy local statutory holidays and rest days. Employees work overtime
on a voluntary basis. If they need to work overtime, they need to apply
in advance and get the confirmation and approval of their superior
leaders. Overtime pay is calculated on a monthly basis according to
the actual overtime work. If it is impossible to arrange compensatory
leave or the employee doesn’t apply for compensatory leave, the
overtime pay is calculated according to laws and regulations and
reflected in the salary.

PROMOTION AND DEVELOPMENT:

The company attaches importance to the development of employees,
establishes a perfect promotion system, comprehensively assesses
employees’ personal quality, ability and achievements in work, follows
the principle of combination of step-by-step promotion and skip-level
promotion, vertical promotion and horizontal promotion. We select
personnel with outstanding performance and excellent ability every
year and promote them after they pass the evaluation of the promotion
committee, so as to ensure employees’ career development and
promotion opportunity.
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TURNOVER RATE

BYD Electronic introduced the internal competition mechanism to
stimulate the vitality of the organization, realize the benign flow and
optimization of internal talents, and eliminate employees whose
personal ability and work performance are not competent for the job
requirements. At the same time, we implemented a sound salary and
welfare system and employee care strategy, vigorously carried out
the management and control of turnover rate, and actively improved
employees’ benefits and working environment, with a view to avoiding
and reducing the vicious loss of employees. As of 31 December 2021,
the total annual turnover rate* of employees in BYD Electronic in 2021
was 7.62%. The annual turnover rates of employees at different levels
are shown in the table below:

Turnover Rate in 2021

—E-FREE
Category Employee Structure
il BT#E
Gender Male
]l S
Female
g
Age Group < 30 years old
FheAa Rl < 30%%
31-40 years old
31-405%
41-50 years old
41-505%
> 50 years old
> 505%
Region Mainland China
& B K B
Other regions
Hithib =
Level Senior management
[& 4. SEEEAB
Middle management
FIEERAS
Grass-root management
EEET

RIR - HERERBRE

BER =

LB S F ol AR EE A HI - B E
5 BEAIBATHRMERSAMENL  EKE
ANBENMTERETEBITEUERHET
FINHETTENFMNEFNBRME THIER
B KN THBEEEIE  BRREE
TIHRFBIMIRE #B#E BRLPEIH
BERL BHEZZE-_—F+=-A=+—8"
LM EFETI S - —FEEARBXR A
7.62%  TRBANEIHFEHBR RO TR
Z]—\Z

Employee Turnover Rate
BT RKE

4.96%
2.65%
5.46%
1.69%
0.38%
0.00%
7.62%
0.01%
0.00%
0.13%

7.49%
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LeER i E 7 (B ARA R 73




% ;

/ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - HERERHE

*

The annual turnover rate is the annual average value of the monthly
statistical turnover rate

Leaving rate of all categories of employees = number of employees of all
categories leaving the company/(total number of employees on their post
+ number of voluntarily-leaving employees + number of involuntarily-leaving
employees)

The turnover rate shall be correct to two decimal places by rounding off

SALARY AND BENEFITS

BYD Electronic adheres to the employment concept of “attracting
employees by salary, retaining employees by welfare and creating
employees by career”, and establishes and practices a perfect salary

and welfare system.

BYD Electronic has a perfect salary and performance system. The
Company determines the amount of monthly performance bonus
of employees according to the overall income of the department,
employees’ performance, employees’ morals and attitude, employees’
level, etc. At the same time, in order to ensure sufficient return for
employees, the Company adjusts the basic salary of employees every
In addition, the

Company collects, on a monthly basis, the list of employees with

year according to the income of the previous year.

excellent performance and special contributions submitted by their
superior leaders, and gives additional performance rewards to the
nominated employees in accordance with the Management Rules for
Reward of Electronic Business Group. In addition, there are clearly
oriented reward systems such as President Award, Technology

Innovation Award, etc.
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Patent
Award

£l

Reward System of BYD Electronic
thER i E R R R

In addition to the perfect salary system, BYD Electronic has also
established a comprehensive welfare system for employees covering
clothing, food, housing, transportation, medical treatment, education,
daily entertainment and so on.

e Clothing Employees will be provided with winter and summer
work clothes when they are employed, and the clothes will be
replaced regularly for free

e Food Staff canteen are set up in the park. There are Western
food, Cantonese cuisine, Hunan cuisine and other cuisines, which
are high-quality and inexpensive

e Housing The Company provides free dormitories and free WIFI,
and offers preferential benefits for house purchase for internal
employees

e Transportation Employees enjoy internal discounts when
purchasing cars, free of down payment, and those having new
energy vehicles are provided with monthly subsidies

e Medical Treatment Employees can purchase the Company’s
healthcare fund when they are employed, and sick employees can
enjoy the support of healthcare fund
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e Education Employees have the priority to have their children
be enrolled in Yadi School and Yadi Kindergarten based on their
points

e Entertainment The park has basketball courts, badminton
courts, volleyball courts and other sports fields and sports facilities

e Festival Benefits The Company distributes seasonal food gift
boxes to employees on festivals

e Activity Funds The Company grants to each department the
special activity funds for team building activities

COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

BYD Electronic adheres to the people-oriented human resources
concept. While paying attention to the salary and benefits of
employees, we also attach importance to the psychological care for
employees. BYD Electronic encourages employees to pay attention
to and express their reasonable demands. Therefore, we have
established a variety of effective online/offline communication channels
for employees to jointly build an open and transparent communication
environment.

Employees can report demands or make suggestions to or ask
for consultations from the general manager, HR department, etc.
through online channels such as the complaint hotline, the enterprise
WeChat, the general manager’s mailbox, the HR face-to-face online
consultation platform, the e-Lufanghua WeChat official account.
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At the same time, BYD Electronic has set up offline employee [Af @ tharBEF AL TR T ETEEE
reception rooms and psychological consultation rooms, and appointed 8 T/ ODIEFEAE 0 WRAEMNERFRIER
ad hoc persons for complaint handling to receive the employees inreal & @ BEERFE T HEEETIHLE » fARE8
time, listen to their voices, and address their concerns. BYD Electronic T HJFFK o b E FLAFE BB - THH
regularly carries out HR face-to-face reception activities on a weekly REHREXHEZEFEE - AASPFIEEFHRE
basis. Leaders of employment departments and HR communicate with BEETEHER K  EREISZEETNES -
employees face-to-face to listen to the most authentic voices of the HEHB)E TR E - HMEBHEF[EVM] (Every
employees and help them solve problems. We adhere to the principle  Voice Matters)fR Rl » @ 2BEE M —(ET
of “Every Voice Matters” (EVM) and try not to ignore the voice of any K& F o

employee.
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ENTERTAINMENT AND WELFARE

The Group always puts employees first, continues to increase
investment in employees’ spiritual wellbeing, improves employee
entertainment facilities, and continuously enriches leisure activities for
employees. In 2021, the Group held more than 20 cultural and sports
activities to provide a broad development platform for employees and
enhance their sense of wellbeing and satisfaction, which significantly
increased their satisfaction with the Company and enabled them to
identify themselves with, take root in and contribute to the Company.

BALL GAMES FOR BETTER COHESION

To further enrich the spare time life of employees, relieve their work
stress, the Group carried out “Lean Cup” ball games during the Year,
including badminton games, basketball games, ping pong matches,
and volleyball games. The grassroots employees actively participated,
and the senior management vigorously responded. These games not
only cultivate the quality of unity, hard work, and collaboration among
employees, but also deepen the friendship between the teams, fully
reflecting the competitive sports spirit of BYD Electronic staff.
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FLOWER ARRANGEMENT COURSES FOR CULTIVATING
SENTIMENT

In March 2021, the Group held the “Flower Arrangement Salon”, and
specially invited professional flower arrangement teachers to give
lectures. Under the teacher’s careful guidance, the students carefully
created beautiful artistic works with flowers and green leaves. This
activity shows the creative flower arrangement skills and positive spirit
of BYD Electronic staff.
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SINGER CONTEST SHOWING CHARM

From August to September 2021, the Group held the preliminary
contest, semi-final and final of the fourth “Voice of BYD” Singer
Contest, providing a stage for music lovers to show themselves. The
singers showed their love for music by giving full play to their singing
abilities, and expressed their expectation for a better future with their
voice under the beautiful spotlight.

RFREREAK

—E--FN\RENA AKEERTENE
[HFBZ|RFABNE BELRE RT%
ENERERTECHNES - RFMAREED
HIEIBE ) REHTENAR - £X&RE
AMBIRET - AIBIEERLARN -

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021

80 BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED



0\

K\

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT\

FESTIVAL BENEFITS WARMING HEARTS

In order to make our employees feel the warmth of home in a strange
land, the Group distributed “Full Moon in E-Hometown” gift boxes
to all employees (covering more than 100,000 people) in 2021 Mid-
Autumn Festival, in order to express our deep concern for employees.
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On the eve of the New Year’s Day, BYD distributed gift boxes bearing
its wishes of “Be like a Tiger that has grown wings” and “To prosper
with the vigor and vitality of the Tiger” to employees. The specially
customized cultural and creative supplies and high-quality gift packs
of grain, oil and snacks carry BYD’s good wishes for the new year.
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Human kindness warms the hearts of employees. On the eve of the
Spring Festival, BYD sent a special thank-you letter to the family
members of the front-line employees, thanking every employee who
works hard in the production line for his/her contribution to the
Company, expressing its gratitude for their family members’ support
and understanding, and sending sincere wishes for the Spring Festival
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WALKING TOUR FOR PHYSICAL FITNESS fELEB R

Adhering to a vision of igniting the spirit with sports and conquering
the world with their feet, BYD Electronic staff around the globe do
exercises to refresh their bodies. The Group held an online walking
tour in May and December, respectively, with tens of thousands of
people participating without limitation of time and place, constantly
challenging themselves as a team. In the two events, all participants
covered a total distance of 620,000 kilometers on foot, which perfectly
reflected the Group spirit and the positive and indomitable spirit of
BYD Electronic staff.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company firmly believes that it is obliged to protect people’s
health and safety, including each employee of the Company and
everyone involved in the Company’s business operations. Therefore,
the Company adheres to the concept of safe development,
implements the “Three-year Action Plan for Special Improvement in
National Production Safety” of the Work Safety Committee of the
State Council, fulfills its responsibility as a safe production entity,
duly implements work safety standardization initiatives, strengthens
production safety publicity and education, potential safety hazard
investigation and management, occupational health protection and
supervision of employees taking up posts, standardizes third-party
management, improves and perfects various safety precautions,
and creates and improves conditions and the environment for safe
production and operation.

COMPLIANCE WITH OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND
SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Based on the OHSAS18001:2007 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System - Requirements and by learning from and
analyzing the management models of excellent enterprises, the
Company has finalized its management policy and objectives in
ensuring the occupational health and safety of staff; it has also
developed a range of standards and management procedures as
well as an integrated occupational health and safety management
system so that well-defined rules are laid down for everyone to follow,
and everyone can shoulder their own responsibilities. In January
2007, the Company obtained the OHSAS18001:2007 certification; in
2019, the Company obtained the 1SO45001:2014 certification; and
in October 2020, the Company was monitored and approved by the
ISO45001 and 1SO14001 systems. In order to evaluate and verify
the EHS Management System’s continuous compliance with relevant
standards and requirements, the Company conducts internal audits
on its environmental and occupational health and safety management
system on every quarter.

DEFINING THE SAFETY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTION
Systematic management: With the PDCA management mode, the
management capability and efficiency are improved through the
established safety environment management system. Internal audit is
implemented quarterly on the environmental and occupational health
and safety management system.
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Safety strategy planning: Determine the safety development direction
and goals of the electronic business group in 3 to 5 years based
on the status of the electronic business group and following the
Company’s safety development strategy model; Determine the
medium — and long-term safety development blueprint and quantitative
indicators, while working out an annual implementation schedule for
each task and following up the implementation.

Building a safety-oriented culture: Implement the Company’s safety
policy, philosophy, mission, vision, and principles; Determine the
annual safety and environmental management implementation plan for
the electronic business group based on the Company’s core values of
safety (responsibility, competence, prevention, and implementation).

STRENGTHENING RISK IDENTIFICATION AND
HIERARCHICAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

The Group has, according to the annual occurrence of internal and
external accidents, new major hidden dangers, process/equipment
changes, updated the hazard identification list, analyzed the potential
failure mode, consequence and potential failure mechanism of
the hazard, evaluated whether the existing measures meet the
requirements of risk control, and formulated effective risk control

measures.

The Group has enhanced on-site safety management. For all the high-
risk operations (fire, limited space, climbing, hoisting, circuit breaking,
ground breaking, etc.), relevant work permits must be obtained, and a
strict ticket management system shall be implemented to ensure the
operation safety. For all the high-risk operations, clear procedures shall
be established, strict control shall be implemented, tight prevention
shall be ensured, clear responsibilities shall be defined, and relevant
measures shall be implemented, forbidding formalism or going through
the motions, and conducting without prior approval, or blind and
reckless risky operations. We shall continue to implement emergency
supplies for high-risk operations, make reasonable work arrangement,
and enhance the management of cross-regional operation, cross
operation and job change periods.
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We shall strictly implement the construction access of external units,
safety and environmental agreement signing, safety training and safety
management in the process of construction. We shall implement the
system where the construction unit undertakes full responsibility and
the competent business department manages the whole process,
and carried out safety and environmental supervision. Stiffer penalties
shall be imposed to promote the code of conduct management for
production and construction safety.

All kinds of safety inspection activities, such as daily inspection,
inspection led by factory manager and holiday inspection, are
organized and carried out. Greater efforts are made in the education
of and punishment for those who are involved in “three violations”
(“command in violation of rules, operate in violation of rules, and
violation of labor discipline”). The predictability of production safety
management is increased, and preventive measures are taken in
advance to eliminate possible accidents (problems) in the bud.

Further efforts are made in EHS review for change. The risk review for
change is carried out according to the system to identify risks in time
and incorporate them into management and control. Moreover, more
training and publicity activities are carried out for production, process,
equipment and project departments to improve their awareness of
safety and environmental risks and ensure the implementation of risk
review for change, and to keep change risks under control.

The business divisions and the factories continue to carry out EHS
management review and EHS internal audit to fulfill their management
commitments and keep the system in compliance and effective
operation.
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STRENGTHENING ACCIDENT MANAGEMENT TO AVOID
REPEATED ACCIDENTS

The accident reporting system is strictly implemented, and
concealment, false reporting, omission and delay reporting are
prohibited. The principle of “identifying causes, punishing persons
held liable, implementing rectification measures and educating relevant
personnel” is followed in accident handling. Relevant responsible
personnel will be pursued for liability, especially those managers
and persons-in-charge who do not conscientiously perform their
production safety responsibilities. We require that managers at all
levels earnestly perform their duties of production safety, increase
their responsibility consciousness, and strengthen the prevention and
management of production safety accidents.

There were no work-related death accidents from 2019 to 2021, and
the number of days lost due to work-related injuries in 2021 was 2,190
(the injury rate per thousand people was 0.275%o). Interviews are
held with units that are responsible for general or serious accidents,
and accidents (problems) are dealt with by drawing inferences from
other facts, so as to expand the scope of education and rectification.
Accidents should be handled in a “factual, detailed and strict”
manner. “Factual” means to seek truth from facts and to be based
on facts rather than practice fraud or act rashly. “Detailed” means to
be careful and meticulous without missing any clues or letting go of
any suspicious signs. “Strict” means to impose strict punishments
on those held responsible for the accidents without appeasement or
perfunctory treatment. When pursuing liability for some accidents, it
is necessary to sort out the cause-and-effect relationship and take
into account related factors, so as to further enhance the sense of
responsibility of the relevant personnel.

The scope of accident handling not only covers grade-level
accidents but also restricted work incidents and medical and first-
aid kit incidents. In case of an attempted accident, it is required to
analyze the causes of the problem in strict accordance with accident
handling procedures to prevent its occurrence. All kinds of production
accidents are strictly investigated and held accountable.
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INTRINSICALLY IMPROVING SAFE STANDARDS THROUGH
TECHNOLOGICAL PROGRESS AND INNOVATION

We shall,
summarize the successful technology and transformation experience

through technological progress and innovation, further

of safe production within and outside the Company, eliminate or
reduce the source of danger as much as possible, and promote
the essential improvement or upgrading of the safety of high-risk
workplaces, equipment and facilities, and dangerous processes by
promoting automation and mechanization to reduce the occurrence of
mechanical injury accidents, strengthening the safety management of
hazardous chemicals storage and use sites, and further improving the
monitoring measures of key hazardous sources. We shall eliminate the
potential safety hazards such as aging infrastructure and insufficient
supporting construction of safety facilities, install eye-catching safety
signs, and strengthen safety checks before the construction and
operation of new infrastructure projects.

We shall strengthen the inspection, supervision and management
of special equipment (boilers, pressure vessels, pressure pipes,
lifting machinery, etc.) and its safety accessories on schedule. The
equipment with defects should be disabled or downgraded for use
under supervision in time, and the maintenance work should be
carried out in a planned way.

For safety protection devices, safety accessories, fire-fighting
equipment and emergency treatment equipment for accidents, it
is necessary to appoint ad hoc personnel for management and
maintenance. These devices, accessories and equipment are
examined and replaced on a regular basis to ensure that they are
intact, are working properly and are readily available. The signing of
the Scheme for Management and Control of Repair, Commissioning
and Maintenance by Equipment Technicians and matters related to
the Safety Commitment for Equipment Technicians are underway.

We shall continue to carry out safety and environment assessment
of equipment and facilities, including newly purchased, self-made,
leased and customer supplied equipment and facilities, on the basis
of system. We shall strictly implement the principle that the unqualified

assessed equipment shall not be put into use.
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CARRYING OUT THE PROGRAM OF “SAFETY OFFICERS
ARE BUILT ON TEAMS” DEEPLY, AND LAYING A SOLID
FOUNDATION FOR TEAM SAFETY

The team is the grass-roots organization of the Company. It is the
foundation of strengthening enterprise management and ensuring
safe production, and also the final foothold of enterprise safety
management. A large number of facts show that more than 90% of
the accidents occurred in the teams. Therefore, the team is the main
battlefield of our safety management. We shall focus our energy and
efforts on the team safety management. Strengthening team safety is
the key to strengthen production safety management, and is also the
most practical and effective way to reduce casualties and all kinds of
disasters and accidents.

We shall deeply implement the program of “safety officers are built
on teams”, carry out overall and thorough safety management, and
constantly consolidate the foundation of grass-roots management.
Each team leader is responsible for keeping and learning the team
safety management ledger. We shall strengthen the safety awareness
and hidden danger identification ability of the team leader, and carry
out the daily safety management of the team according to the ledger

manual.

In order to improve the safety knowledge and skills of the team leader,
Special Training for Safety Management Ability Improvement of Team
Leader shall be organized continuously, and only those who passed
the examination may work on their posts.

Dual certification of safety training ability is implemented for the team
leader. Compulsory courses: Company “Safety and Environmental
Protection” Credits and Special Training for Safety Management
Ability Improvement of Team Leader. In order to clarify the identity of
the team leader, the team leader shall wear the “team security officer

armband”.

Focus should be on the safety management and control of equipment
operators, technicians, porters and other supporting personnel, as
well as on raising their risk awareness and imposing standardized

operation requirements.
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ENSURING OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE PREVENTION AND
LABOR PROTECTION FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group conscientiously implements the Law on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases to strengthen the prevention
and control of occupational diseases. It improves the occupational
disease prevention and management system construction and file
construction. It carries out occupational disease assessment and
safety assessment, occupational disease prevention facility design and
safety facility design, occupational disease control effect evaluation
and safety acceptance evaluation for the new, expanded, reformed
and relocated construction projects to ensure that the program meets
the requirements of the work safety regulations.

It keeps monitoring various dust and poison monitoring points on a
regular basis. It works to put an end to the phenomena of gas release,
water spraying, dropping liquid, and liquid leakage. It enhances the
construction of occupational health protection facilities, to see that
dust and poison monitoring points are up to standard.

It reinforces the management of labor insurance supplies. It
establishes a standard for allocating labor insurance supplies level by
level, strengthens the inspection and management of incoming labor
insurance supplies, and supervises and guides employees to wear and
use labor insurance supplies as required.

It organizes employees to participate in before-post, at-post and
after-post occupational health inspections systematically. Employees
at all levels shall timely report the demand of occupational health
inspections to their superior management department. It guards
employees with abnormalities, and puts into effect the regulations
concerning injury insurance for all employees.

It continues to promote the establishment and perfection of
occupational health surveillance archives for employees taking up
poisonous and hazardous posts, and standardizes the management of
occupational health surveillance archives.
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STRENGTHENING THE CULTIVATION OF SAFETY
AWARENESS AND SAFETY SKILLS TRAINING FOR ALL
EMPLOYEES, AND CREATING A SAFETY CULTURE
ATMOSPHERE

Each department implements safety education according to the
needs of personnel in different categories and at different levels
and positions. Each workshop shall describe and prepare the
position hazard factors, occupational hazard factors, and operating
procedures, and provide training and education on protection
knowledge, by taking into account their own actual production
situation and giving prominence to the key points. This aims to make
employees more aware of safety and standardize their operations.

The three-level education rate for new employees (including
contracted labor, staff of lease contractors, hourly workers, summer
and winter part-timers and interns) must be 100%. Those who
have not been educated and those who fail the exam are forbidden
to operate at their positions. The training and education program
regarding safety technology for personnel engaged in special types
of work (electricians, welders, climbing operations, pressure vessels,
hazardous chemicals, etc.) and those at other key positions must
be carried out in strict accordance with industry requirements and
relevant national laws and regulations. Those who have passed the
education and training program provided by a qualified department
must hold relevant certificates before operating at position.

Regular on-the-job training and education programs regarding
safety and environment ensure employees to master corresponding
knowledge and technology, and turn themselves from “being required
to be safe” into “wanting to be safe”. Just as a saying goes “let
every tub stand on its own bottom”, every employee farms his own
“contracted land” well, “not hurting himself or others, or being hurt by
others”.

Work has been done to enrich the safety knowledge of safety
management personnel at all levels and provide safety knowledge
training for them, with the focus on refreshing their management
concepts, updating professional knowledge, and managing and
controlling key risks. Continuing education is provided for safety
management personnel annually, to strengthen their understanding of
new regulations, standards, and safety management requirements.
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The Notice on Implementing the Requirements for the Three-level
Training Program on Safety Production for New Employees (Electronic
Business Group EHS Tong [2021] No. 15) is implemented. Operators
as well as workers of process, mechanical and electrical, and quality
divisions that work on posts with medium risks (inclusive) and above
must be assessed for practical operation. The team leaders of each
department shall be in charge of the assessment of their own team
members. The safety and environmental protection department of
the Business Division conducts random inspections on the three-
level training on safety production in the factory and reports on the
implementation of practical operation assessment for new employees.
Personnel on secondment from different business groups need to re-
accept the three-level training program before they can take up their
posts. Personnel on secondment within business groups need to
re-accept the team-level training of the three-level training program
before they can take up their posts.

A safety training quality traceability mechanism is enforced strictly,
under which relevant departments and personnel will be pursued for
liability if relevant training program is not implemented or contents of
the training is not qualified. In case of any kind of safety production
accident, an investigation will be conducted to see whether safety
production training program has been implemented.

Themed activities such as “Safe Environment Month” and “119 Fire
Protection Month” are organized. Through various safety knowledge
contests and publicity and educational activities, we increased
employees’ consciousness of observing labor discipline, process
discipline, safety discipline and environmental protection discipline
and improving their operation skills. Furthermore, we sum up and
propagate advanced experience in safety production to ensure the
long-term safe operation of the enterprise.

IMPROVE EMERGENCY RESPONSE AND RESCUE
CAPABILITIES

Targeted emergency rescue drills for accidents are organized. The
Business Division formulates annual emergency drill plans and follows
up their implementation to improve the emergency response and self-
rescue capabilities of organizations and personnel at all levels.
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The Group intensifies the automatic monitoring of gas in flammable
and explosive places and the interlocking of emergency ventilation
facilities. It strengthens the provision of on-site emergency supplies,
such as sprinklers, eye washers, first-aid kits, oxygen (air) breathing
apparatuses, and other emergency devices, and ensures they are
readily available.

It continuously strengthens the training for emergency teams at
each plant of the electronic business group in the manner of special
emergency drills, and improves the level of emergency response. This
aims to achieve early detection and control of accidents at the initial
stage, prevent the spread of the impact of the accident, and improve
the emergency plan file system.

It standardizes and improves visual safety management by setting up
safety risk bulletin boards, notification cards and emergency response
cards regarding positions risks, occupational hazard notification
cards, and safety signs in prominent locations and areas of key risk
workplaces. In this way, employees are informed of the particulars
of safety risks of the workplaces and positions and prevention and
emergency measures.

SN ZBGMREHNEBLER - BB
R RR HE Bt SR AU RR o MR EIRIG RSB MV
o EREE - RS SR AR(E
R RRERSRE  WHRARBHERER -

FERLEFFERS IHER KO
R NEREZERTARRER  ReESRBR
K MEBIRER o RS BEBEGED
R - M ERFENER  TERSER
XA -

REZ2BBRLER  #HLE2ARLERK
¥ EBHERSAHER L E MRS IR
EXERBASHE  MUEXRREMAR HE
fEREZREER BECTEARRZ2E
o EHETERSAEELFERZRRE
EXNBERLHE - B -

Scene of skill training for volunteer firefighters
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Figure 1: Push-ups

water hoses by a single person
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Figure 4: 100-meter fire extinguishing
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Figure 2: Connection of two reels of

Figure 5: Dressing in place
B : RibER

Figure 3: Wearing an air breathing
apparatus in place
B= - R & =R RS

Figure 6: Sit-ups
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STRENGTHEN TARGET ASSESSMENT MANAGEMENT
AND IMPLEMENT SAFETY RESPONSIBILITIES

We further perfect the target responsibility system management for
safety production. In addition, we improve the responsibility system,
seriously implement the safety production responsibility of each post,
and sign the safety production responsibility letter at every level
through the establishment of the safety production responsibility letter
for each post.

The Business Division has established an EHS management
department, which is equipped with full-time safety and environmental
management personnel who have passed the training and examination
and have professional EHS knowledge. Part-time safety and
environmental management personnel are designated for workshops
and teams, and corresponding appointment letters are signed
according to the assignment of duties to clarify responsibilities.

The management of accidents and incidents is strengthened. In the
event of a near accident, the causes of the problem should be strictly
analyzed in accordance with the accident to prevent its occurrence.
All kinds of accidents for production responsibility should be strictly
investigated for accountability.

Factories with prominent safety problems are blacklisted for special
governance according to the Company’s blacklist management
system. The person in charge of the factory is interviewed and
warned, and the relevant factory is listed as a key governance object.
Factories with accidents and poor safety production management are
interviewed to strengthen their awareness of primary responsibility and
improve their safety production management.
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Safety and integrity files are established, and safety commitments are
carried out level by level. The leaders of each unit should make public
safety commitments to the employees, and the employees should
sign the safety commitments before the shift. In addition, we improve
the assessment and evaluation of safety and integrity level by level,
and promptly notify and give early warning to all units and individuals
that fail to fulfill their safety commitments or report false information.
With the established safety and integrity files, the personnel involving
serious “three violations” and repeated violations of the rules should
be included in the individual annual safety and integrity file. Emphasis
should be put on regulating substandard units, which should accept
external supervision, and actively accept the supervision of local
safety supervision departments to build a safe and honest external
environment.

The Electronic Business Group continues to strengthen the safety
and environmental protection assessment of all factories, treats
hidden dangers as accidents, strengthens building of the system
for eliminating hidden dangers and controlling hidden dangers,
and encourages self-inspection and self-correction. The evaluation
activities are carried out continuously, and outstanding projects and
units are commended and rewarded every year.
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Picture 19: Group photo at the summary and awarding ceremony for 2021 annual safety and environmental

management
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

BYD Electronic attaches great importance to the learning and
development of every employee and is committed to exploring the
potential of employees. Adhering to the talent training concept of
“people before products”, we encourage our employees to learn
and improve themselves in their spare time. We have created a
variety of learning channels, such as experience exchange meetings,
online learning platforms, and lectures by famous teachers, and
provide employees with career planning, special training, education
promotion, skill training and other training contents to meet the different
development needs of employees at different levels. For new employees,
we develop the “tutorial system” and “teaching and mentoring” system
to help them quickly integrate into the enterprise and adapt to the new
environment and new work. BYD Electronic has developed the Qingyun
Project, Tenglong Project and other training projects for middle and
senior personnel to select excellent talents with good performance and
strong development intention, carry out long-term management ability
training, and cultivate middle and senior management backbones who
are dynamic and adaptable to the development of the times and the
development needs of the Company.

Regular training
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External training
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“People before products”
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In 2021, BYD Electronic organized a total of 150,000 training sessions
in industrial parks across the country, including 260 external training
sessions, covering more than 20 kinds of training contents including
safety and environment, finance, legal affairs and personnel system
management. The Company has accumulatively organized more than
650,000 hours of training involving a total of 3.13 million participants,
with an average of 35 training sessions per person per year.

Lean management

RREE

Experience sharing

REMD=E
Qingyun Project
R
Operation
management
EgER
Customer first
EFZL
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In order to meet the development needs of employees in the
Company, let employees fully demonstrate their abilities and promote
the construction of talent echelon in the Company, BYD Electronic
develops a current career development channel with complementary
technology channel and management channel, combines with
the characteristics of the employees themselves, and formulates
systematic, scientific and comprehensive training plans, to promote
the development of factory manager/director-level talents, and deliver
excellent backup talents to achieve the strategic goal of the business
group for a hundred billion of output value. In this process, we
constantly summarize and improve the existing training mechanism,
and establish a talent training system suitable for the Electronic
Business Group to provide knowledgeable, young and internationa
qualified talents for the development of the business group.

o tional Single-field talents
perationa S
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@ By job field
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Sales
SHER Management talents
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Comprehensive @ By talent
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In order to meet the rapid development of the Company and
constantly improve the training system, the targeted, differentiated and
professional all-round training will be conducted according to different
development channels and specialties to improve the working ability
and performance of all employees. Key categories of training in 2021
were:

1. Training of “Qingyun Project”: 50 middle and senior managers,
with 68H per capita, including lean production, quality
management, financial management, operation management,
leadership, etc.

2. External training of Six Sigma Project: 71 middle and high-level
employees, 480H per capita, 64 trained with black belts and 54
with green belts, with a financial balance of RMB586 million

3. Lean production training for middle-level engineers: 13 classes
with 1,908 training participants

4. Fresh graduates training: A total of 29 classes with attendance of
1,229 persons, including general education, quality, technology,
project and management;

5. On-the-job training of other suitable posts, new apprentices, and
grass-roots: The number of employees is over 90,000, and the
annual total training hours were 13,574,534 hours, with 149 hours
per capita.
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Annual Per Capita Class Hours
(Hour/Person)
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LABOR CRITERIA

BYD Electronic strictly abides by the labor laws and regulations of
various countries, respects employees’ privacy and beliefs, prohibits
any discrimination based on age, gender, native place, nationality,

customs, religion, political affiliation, etc., as well as any forced

labor or disguised forced labor, in order to actively promote local

employment and social and economic development.

BYD Electronic insists on “zero tolerance” attitude towards the
employment of child labor, and the identity information of new
employees will be strictly checked at the time points of entry, interview
and employment, so as to prevent the employment of child labor from
the source. Once the phenomenon of employment of child labor is
discovered, the labor contract will be terminated as soon as possible,
and the responsible person will be held accountable.

The Company fully respects employees’ freedom in terms of choice of
employment, beliefs, association and personal privacy. The Company
undertakes not to employ prison labor, indentured labor or bonded
labor in any form, and not to employ child labor. The Company also
strictly forbids seizure of credentials, collection of money or objects as
security, withholding of wages, surveillance, interception, body search,

access restrictions or acts of forced labor in any form.
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I1l. OPERATING PRACTICES

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

BYD Electronic manages suppliers and the procurement process on
the basis of a series of supplier management systems formulated
by the Company, such as the BYD Requirements for Suppliers, the
BYD Administrative Rules for Performance Appraisal of Suppliers,
and the BYD Supplier Social Responsibility Management Practices.
Such management systems are updated and optimized annually
with new laws and regulations of international, national, local and
industry associations, as well as the requirements of customers
included. The supplier management systems define the social
responsibility requirements for supply chain partners from the aspects
of labor standards, occupational health and safety, environmental
management, trade safety, anti-corruption and anti-commercial
bribery. The Company clarifies in relevant documents that suppliers
shall not purchase conflict minerals. The same prohibition extends to
their lower-tier suppliers, whom will be investigated by these suppliers.
We have publicized BYD’s corporate social responsibility requirements
and BYD’s high attention to corporate social responsibility to all
suppliers through various ways.

Respect the rights
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BYD has established the risk management committee and a
procurement taskforce, and formulated the BYD Company
Procurement Risk Management Procedure. The procurement taskforce
of the risk committee is responsible for collecting the risk management
information of the supply chain and conducting risk assessment,
setting risk thresholds and devising corresponding countermeasures,
regularly summarizing and analyzing the effectiveness and reasonability
of the existing risk management strategies, and constantly revising and
improving them according to the actual situations. Risk management
has been transferred from offline manual control to online control to
ensure closed-loop risk management through information system.
In 2021, the procurement taskforce identified 8 risks, analyzed the
causes and effects of these risks, and formulated risk strategies and
countermeasures.

BYD Electronic currently has more than 3,400 suppliers, 61% of which
are located in Southern China, 18% in Eastern China and 21% in other
regions by the end of 2021. In recent years, with the development
of new businesses, the proportion of suppliers of BYD Electronic in
other regions maintains an upward trend. BYD Electronic boosts local
economic development and increases job opportunities through the
industrial chain.

21%
Other regions
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PRACTICE OF HIRING SUPPLIERS

BYD has always adopted strict labor practice standards, human rights
standards and environmental standards for screening our suppliers,
required suppliers to establish a management system that meets
the requirements of 1ISO14001, promised to apply and promote a
corporate social responsibility management system that meets the
requirements of SA8000, and abided by BYD’s Corporate Social
Responsibility Clauses in the Supplier Access Agreement and the
General Rules of Procurement.

Suppliers are required to ensure that they do not use any form of
forced labor, prison labor, bonded labor (including debt mortgage)
or indentured labor. They shall not use child labor at any stage of
the business process. They shall treat employees fairly and provide
employees with a safe, healthy and pollution-free environment to
minimize potential hazards in the workplace.

Suppliers are required to consider the impact on the environment
in the process of product design and production, and implement
continuous improvement programs to deal with these impacts,
including replacing materials, reducing carbon emissions and
improving the treatment and control methods of waste affecting air,
water and soil. The raw materials or products provided by the supplier
to BYD must comply with the national standards and local regulations
of the place where sales are conducted and BYD’s requirements on
toxic and hazardous substances.
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SELECTION OF NEW SUPPLIERS

Before introducing new suppliers, BYD will investigate and verify the
supplier’s qualifications and violations of laws and regulations, and
require the supplier to fill in the Corporate Responsibility Questionnaire
of BYD Suppliers. Those who fail to meet the requirements will be
rejected.

BYD will also sign the relevant cooperation agreement which contained
CSR provisions (the Supplier Access Agreement and the General Rules
of Procurement) with such suppliers before the introduction, to guide
and supervise the suppliers to respect human rights, treat employees
preferentially, and protect the environment.

The BYD Supplier Audit Form will be used to audit whether the
supplier meets the requirements of BYD. The Form features dedicated
modules of “corporate social responsibility”, “safety, information,
and intellectual property rights”, “process control of hazardous
substances”, to conduct on-site audit and verification on the social
responsibility management of suppliers and their downstream supply
chains from various aspects like humanity, environment, safety, law
observance and compliance, hazardous substance, and trade safety.

The one-vote veto is provided in multiple provisions.

For materials with HSF requirements, we confirm the compliance of
the supplier’s HSF data at the sample certification stage, and require
the supplier to submit relevant questionnaires, test reports, analysis
reports, etc. Those who fail to meet the requirements will not be used.
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ROUTINE REVIEW AND EVALUATION OF SUPPLIERS

BYD regularly evaluates and investigates suppliers’ corporate social
responsibility performance and audits suppliers on site by comparing
against CSR provisions of the BYD Suppliers Audit Form. Those
failing the audit will be provided with interviews, tutoring, and training
from BYD to facilitate improvement. Suppliers failing to rectify to the
standard within the given time may be severed from BYD’s supplier
network, depending on the actual situation.

Among the qualified suppliers, BYD drafts a list based on the nature
of source materials, such as those with high pollution and energy
consumption, like PCB, FPC, and connectors. Suppliers of listed
materials will be reviewed as per BYD Annual Report on Important
If the
investigation results do not meet the requirements or the energy

Performance Indicators of Environment and Humanities.

consumption of the supplier increases significantly, the supplier will be
asked to implement rectifications, a process that will be followed up
by BYD.

A conflict mineral survey was conducted on all suppliers of tantalum,
tin, tungsten and gold materials. The survey results showed that 3TG
used in the supply chain came from conflict-free mineral smelters
recognized by CFSI.

For materials that have HSF requirements, the HSF compliance of the
materials is confirmed during incoming inspection. When the HSF data
is changed or expired, the supplier is required to provide HSF data
again.

BYD regularly inquires about its suppliers on the government website,
to check whether any of its suppliers is included in the government’s
blacklist, or there are violations. If any, BYD will require the supplier to
rectify in time. If the rectification does not meet the requirements, BYD
will stop its cooperation.
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=4 National Enterprise Credit Information Publicity System
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SUPPLY CHAIN PLATFORM

In recent years, BYD has transitioned from price-based procurement
of productive materials to value-based procurement. Certain key
components and parts are entirely procured from leading suppliers
in the industry, focusing on risk and strategic management. All
manufacturers of BYD’s productive materials shall pass the 1ISO9001
quality system certification.

BYD continues to vigorously promote sunshine procurement and
green procurement, and the life cycle management of suppliers is
conducted in a closed-loop feedback mechanism to create a highly
efficient, collaborative and mutually-beneficial supply chain platform.

Efficient coordination and
mutual benefit
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SUNSHINE PROCUREMENT

As we push forward the “sunshine procurement” initiative, new
suppliers onboard now must sign an access agreement containing
sunshine procurement terms. As a member of the “Anti-Fraud
Alliance”, BYD puts suppliers violating its “sunshine procurement”
policy on a blacklist, and makes it public to other members of the
Alliance depending on the severity. Employees violating the “sunshine
procurement” policy will be removed, and even be transferred to the
public security organs or judicial authorities in severe cases. The
Company prioritizes public tendering, supplemented by other forms
of competitive procurement. System operation has been realized
to achieve traceability in key stages of the procurement process,
improving efficiency and transparency.

BYD has set up two organizations/departments under the direct
control of the president, namely the Purchasing Committee and the
Audit Inspection Division, for in-house supervision over supply chain
management. BYD posts complaint signs at various production bases
of the Company, and publicized various complaint channels such as
the complaint hotline and mailbox, and WeChat official account. All
violations of the sunshine procurement policy will be severely punished
upon verification, to get all employees involved in the supervision of
management and procurement of the supply chain, thus the sunshine
procurement will be effectively implemented and monitored.
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GREEN PROCUREMENT

In terms of supply chain and raw materials, BYD always adheres to
green procurement, establishes a sound green procurement system
of “green suppliers and green raw materials”, and standardizes
various environmental management in procurement, to ensure that
every purchased component and part meets the green environmental
requirements.

Green logistics: BYD is committed to providing more environmental-
friendly modes of transportation. For example: we are actively
promoting low-carbon marine transportation and increasing the
proportion of railway transportation. The low-carbon marine
transportation reduces carbon dioxide emissions by 46% per container
by using new carbon neutral fuels (such as methanol) instead of fossil
fuels.

Green packaging: BYD actively promotes the recycling of logistics
packaging boxes. For example, we have gradually replaced the
cartons, wooden packaging boxes and iron frames used in products
transit with the recyclable blister boxes, greatly reducing resource
consumption.

IV. PRODUCT LIABILITY

The Group strictly abides by national laws and regulations such
as the Product Quality Law, Standardization Law, Metrology Law
and Consumer Protection Law. BYD strictly enforces the product
standards to firmly establish the idea of “quality first”, continuously
raises the awareness of quality and social responsibility, ensures
and improves product quality, fulfills the enterprise’s subject
responsibility for quality, to meet customer expectations and
demand for high-quality products and enhance consuming
confidence of customers. The 100% customer satisfaction is the
goal that BYD will always pursue.
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PRODUCT QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Based on standards of IATF 16949 and ISO9001, BYD has
established and implemented a quality management system.
Meanwhile, BYD has established a special quality management
system according to the requirements of large customers, with all
products of the electronic business group passing the ISO quality
management certification and vehicle-borne products passing
the IATF 16949 certification. We conduct regular evaluations on
the quality management system on weekly, monthly, half-yearly
and other basis, the criteria of which are quality management
standards and customer management system standards. Our
quality management level has been praised and recognized by
customers, including the annual Excellent Supplier Award from
customers, HUAWEI Implementation Award on Lean Improvement
(ZE BFE R E HETT 8%), Pengcheng Craftsman Award (H572 T [F %),
etc.
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2. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT QUALITY CONTROL
Each business unit has established a new product management
program and adopted the PLM management system for consumer
electronics products. The research and development quality of
products are ensured through relevant procedures established
for early concept, project proposal, proofing, trial production
and mass production transfer as well as material development
and product changes. When participating in new projects/early
development of products of customers, suppliers are also invited
to participate in early product development to ensure quality
meets customer needs and early identification to avoid later

Project schedule management
REEEER

Project task assignment

HEEB R

changes.

PLMZh &

Control on fulfillment conditions
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Project data query
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Functions of PLM
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Visual project monitoring
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Diversified project templates
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Rational utilization of resources
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Key point tracking by phases
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Platform of development process management and control-the PLM system
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Project development process
HERBRRE

Confirmation of
project plan and
master plan

Initiation of the program
and early-stage
preparations

Proofing implementation

(trial production and ramp up)
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Mass production
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Project development process
HERERE—E

The R&D of in-vehicle products followed the related processes
of the Group’s automotive business, and we have set strict
quality thresholds from product design to prototyping and mass
production. Risks are identified through FMEA. Components of
high risk must undergo multi-staged evaluation from the research
and development E process. Those with medium risk will be
evaluated in the quality capability of prototyping. Components
with low risk are inspected and rectified by the factory. The
quality capability evaluation for new products is intended to
inspire factories to focus on yield and pacing, so as to prepare
them for mass production of vehicles and ensure components will
successfully pass PPAP approval.

overview
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Process-oriented, multi-staged control

The principle of quality control is in-depth understanding of
mechanisms, systematic planning, thorough execution, full
accountability, company-wide participation, fast response, closed
loop management, and positive cycle. Employees are encouraged
to report potential issues, replay failure, and counter unknown
risks through trial and error. The Company is pushing forward
automated manufacturing with the utilization of SPC and MSA
tools and error proofing means, with the objective of delicate
manufacturing facility management, intelligent on-site quality
control, legal compliance, and meeting customer demands.

Rigorous inspection process, effective inspection method

The Group’s Finished Product Inspection Procedure ensures
that all products conform to regulatory requirements and are
sufficiently inspected before they leave the factory through
standardized inspections, particularly in terms of inspection
preparation (inspector credential, equipment, environment, basis,
and procedure), product inspection requirements, shipping
inspection requirements, handling of anomalies during inspection,
analysis of inspection data, and archiving of inspection records.

Ensuring zero defects based on strict control

The Group rigorously inspects all manufactured products, with
zero tolerance to defects. The inspection process is empowered
by state-of the-art equipment and intelligent monitoring systems.
Products are tested in a comprehensive manner for quality before
they leave the factory.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED

BEEH  BETE
EMEERAKE ZHERE - BEHR
T BEIK 2EB28 RREE B
TER FTRAERNESEREEIK -8
BETRFEH - BEHES - AEEHE
ERAMRR  RAXEED RS  ER
SPCHIMSATE - [F#iF & - BIR TS
EETEBMAL  BEmEEETEet
UmREBMERE K -

BERR TR - BB E
AEERTA(RRRBELRE) X
HRBEE RBA B - RRES B
BES - RREBARRBREASSR)
REBRRER  HERRER  RRBARE
SEMIE - RBEEAN - RBRERE
SHERTTRE  ABRBERRT B
MBS - RRFTEERE A8
5 R -

BRIEIESE - MR ERIE

AN ER B 4 O LH RRGEE 1T BR AR RO FE I R
HREMBETER - MALERRESS
mEBEEERL - EESETI00% R -
EREMDBME o



0\

K\

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT\

S ENEEMED
oo

AFTERSALES SERVICE

The MES system traces the whole material system where
the Customer Complaint Handling Procedure defines the
responsibilities and processes of receiving, handling and feeding
back customer complaints, responds to customer complaints
in a timely and effective manner, and formulates corrective and
preventive measures to ensure customer satisfaction. There
was no complaint from HSF customers throughout the year,
the improvement rate of customer complaints was 100%, and
customer satisfaction was >95 points.
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SOUND RECALL MECHANISM

The Group has established the Return Handling Operation
Process and the Management Procedure for Non-compliance, and
the product quality should conform to the Product Quality Law
KEE’%)), so as to ensure that customers’ returned products
(including related suspicious inventory) are handled in time, and
corresponding analysis and improvement are carried out to
prevent the same problems from happening again and enhance
customer satisfaction. During the year, no product was recalled
for safety or health reasons, and the percentage for the aggregate
amount of sold or shipped defective products which were recalled
for safety and health reasons was zero.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

The Intellectual Property and Legal Department is established
in the Group. The intellectual property system is based on
three aspects, i.e., institutionalization of work, system flow and
electronic flow, to ensure the Company’s operational safety and
enhance the market competitiveness.

INFORMATION SECURITY AND CONSUMER PRIVACY
PROTECTION

BYD Electronic attaches importance on protecting the information
security of organizations and customers, and strictly follows the
Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Data
Security Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws
and regulations. In order to improve the Company’s information
security management level, guarantee the business operation,
service and daily management activities of enterprises, and
prevent business interruption or security accidents caused by
the interruption of information system, data loss and leakage of
sensitive information, the Company has established a perfect
information security management system with reference to
ISO27001 information security management system standard,
and actively promoted the implementation and continuous
improvement of the information security management system.
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BYD Electronic implemented the information security policy of
“full participation, active prevention, compliance with laws and
regulations, safeguarding the rights and interests of the Company
and customers”, organized the establishment of an information
security executive committee led by the top management, and set
up measurable and communicable information security objectives
for the purpose of protecting the confidentiality, integrity and
availability of information security assets. According to the
ISO27001 standard, a systematic documented information security
management system was established, and the Information Security
Manual was formulated as the program and code of action to
guide the Company to establish and implement the information
security management system. From the aspects of terminal
security, access control and change management, the Regulations
on Terminal Security Management, Regulations on Data Security
Management of Electronic Business Group, Regulations on
Computer Room Management and Control, Regulations on
Production Network Management, Regulations on Information
Asset Backup Management, Regulations on Management of
User Access Control and Regulations on Management of Change

Control of Equipment and System were formulated.

The Company’s information security management system is
business risk-oriented. Every year, it organizes all divisions and
factories to carry out asset identification and risk assessment,
take corresponding control measures for identified risks, and
formulate the Information Security Risk Disposal Plan; carry out
annual internal audit of information security, make cause analysis
of non-conformance reports in internal audit, and formulate
corrective and preventive measures and rectification plan; review
certain problems in the operation of the information security
management system, and assess the opportunities for continuous
improvement and the need for change. The Company implements
100% enrollment information security training for new employees,
and organizes each department to conduct information security
training every quarter; the rate of signing key post confidentiality
agreements is 100%. Since the operation of the Company’s
information security management system, customer satisfaction
has been maintained high, no complaints from customers about
information security incidents have been received, and no
information leakage incidents have occurred.
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At the same time, in order to improve the information security
management and meet the development requirements and
business needs of the enterprise, BYD Electronic has passed the
certification of ISO/IEC 27001:2013, 1SO28000, C-TPAT, TISAX
AL3, ISO/SAE 21434 and other standard management systems
respectively, which escorts the rapid development of enterprises.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group regulates all commercial activities with the highest
integrity standard, strictly prohibiting corruption, extortion and
fraud in any forms. Offenders will be punished and prosecuted
in accordance with rules and contracts. BYD Electronic strictly
prohibits offering, accepting or claiming bribery, gifts, hospitality
and any other forms of activities that are intended to affect or may
affect the relevant business decision in order to acquire abnormal
or inappropriate advantages. BYD Electronic complies with
overseas anti-bribery laws and regulations, and must not offer
bribery to or demand bribery from local governments in overseas
regions.

The Group ensures the anti-corruption and anti-commercial
bribery work through a series of measures.

ORGANIZATIONAL SETTING

BYD Group sets up the audit supervision division as the
Company’s specialized anti-corruption department oriented by
risk management and with compliance as the basic requirements.
The Company independently carries out the audit and supervision,
and directly reports to the president (chairman) of the Company
without interference from other departments or personnel,
ensuring the independence, objectivity and authority of anti-
corruption and other audit and supervision.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY POLICIES
In order to ensure the standardization, normalization and
institutionalization of anti-corruption work, the Group has
formulated a series of rules and regulations which also apply to
its partners in accordance with relevant laws and regulations,
international standards and the actual business needs, strictly
prohibiting any form of corruption, and providing comprehensive
institutional support for the Company’s anti-corruption work.
For example, policies such as BYD Code of Conduct, the BYD
Employee Professional Ethic Guidelines, the BYD Guidelines for
Employee Business Activities with External Entities, the BYD
Executive Economic Activity Guidelines, the BYD Corporate
Punitive Measures, the BYD Whistleblower Protection and
Incentive Measures, the BYD Company Compliance Management,
the Regulations on Compliance Management of BYD’s Commercial
Partners, the Internal Communication Rules for BYD Employees
and the BYD Internal Investigation Management Regulations have
ensured that there are standards for enforcement, procedures for
investigation and grounds for punishment. Meanwhile, according
to business practices and regular review, BYD constantly
improved its system construction.

In business contacts with personnel of other units, employees of
the Group are required to protect the interests of the Company,
promote the Company’s integrity communication regulations, do
not engage in improper contacts with personnel from other units
in pursuit of personal gains, do not offer or ask for benefits in
any name or way, and do not offer or accept gifts and hospitality
beyond the scope of laws and business practices. And the
contacts should be made upon the principle of openness and
transparency.
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The Group regards partners as business partners, regards honesty
as an important prerequisite for cooperation, and strives to jointly
create a fair, just, honest and win-win cooperation environment.
We sign integrity cooperation agreements with our partners to
clarify BYD Electronic’s anti-corruption stance and requirements.
We hope that our partners and the Group will maintain a common
anti-corruption attitude and determination, be honest and self-
disciplined, supervise each other, and jointly build an “anti-
corruption fence”. For units that violate the principle of integrity,
the Group shall, in accordance with the contract or relevant
agreements, pursued for liability of cooperative units for breach
of contract, such as deducting liquidated damages, canceling
the cooperation qualification, and putting them on the blacklist of

cooperative partners.

ANTI-CORRUPTION PUBLICITY AND EDUCATION

The Group has been insisting on advocating and upholding the
construction of Company’s integrity culture. The senior managers
of the Company practice their words and actively practice and
pass on the value of integrity. For employees, the Group sets
up an ‘“Integrity BYD” website, WeChat official account for the
publicity of anti-corruption of the Company, publicizing the
Company’s integrity culture and integrity regulations, publishing
the integrity news, case reports, integrity systems as well as laws
and regulations related to integrity and warnings during festivals
about integrity. We teach employees to consciously abide by laws
and regulations and the Company’s rules and regulations, work
impartially and honestly without favoritism or seeking personal
gains, and resist temptations consciously. In 2021, via “Integrity
BYD” WeChat official account, we issued more than 60 original
feeds through text, pictures, videos, cartoons and so on to
spread its integrity culture. Meanwhile, as a compulsory course
for new employees, over 500 Honesty and Self-discipline training
sessions were organized in 2021. BYD determines each January
as its “Integrity Month”, during which a series of integrity related
activities will be organized. An integrity lesson was held in 2021
“Integrity Month”, in which senior managers gave speeches on
compliance and honesty and took the lead to take an oath to
abide by relevant regulations and sign a letter of commitment
on integrity and self-discipline. Moreover, prize contests on
integrity knowledge were held and articles related to integrity and

compliance were solicited with awards.
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The Group carried out integrity publicity and education activities
through various approaches, continuously improved employees’
awareness of integrity and self-discipline and built a solid defense
line of ethics for employees, so as to create a good atmosphere
of integrity, compliance and discipline and serve for the steady
development of the Company.

REPORTING, SUPERVISION AND ACCOUNTABILITY
The Group takes a zero-tolerance attitude toward corruption,
implements anti-corruption policies that apply to all staff, and
rewards the whistleblower. We will ensure strict punishments for
fraud and corruption, and hold accountable dereliction of duty,
such as neglect of duty and abuse of duty. In order to give full play
to the supervisory role of all employees and relevant parties, BYD
has opened special channels for honesty supervision (including
via telephone, email, WeChat official account) to encourage BYD
employees, employees from other units and insiders to perform
the integrity supervision system of BYD, and actively report
cases of embezzlement, corruption and other violations of laws,
regulations and the rules and regulations of BYD and actions that
damage the interests of BYD. Whistleblowers shall be protected
and rewarded in accordance with the BYD Whistleblower
Protection and Incentive Measures. In order to ensure efficient,
standardized and fair handling of the information reported,
case management procedures will be established, and ad hoc
personnel will be assigned to accept the cases reported, so as to
achieve case filing, investigation follow-up, closure, assessment
and archiving, and ensure the closed-loop management of the
information reported.

For employees who violate integrity and discipline, BYD will
terminate the labor contract with them in strict accordance
with the rules and regulations, and those who are in serious
circumstances and suspected of violating laws and committing
crimes will be handed over to judicial organs. In 2021, 2 cases
involving employees in dishonesty issues and serious violations
were investigated and transferred to judicial organs.
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CONTRIBUTING TO THE COMMUNITY

The Company always maintains close communications with
organizations such as general labor unions, general charity
federations and the Communist Youth Leagues in different
regions, and actively participates in social activities such as
skill competitions, charity works and youth services. These
activities served to establish a positive image and garnered public
recognition for the Company, fulfiled the social obligations and
demonstrated the leadership of a civilized national unit.

In 2021, the Company proactively fulfilled its social responsibilities.
Since it was listed, the Group has proactively published the social
responsibility report on an annual basis, and accepted supervision
by the media. During the reporting period, it did not receive
any report from mainstream media outlets regarding any non-
compliance with social responsibilities. The Company also strictly
complied with the requirements of and met the standards of state
laws and regulations during the reporting period. No material
environmental or safety incident or issues warranting penalties
imposed by environmental or labor authorities have occurred.

In 2022, the Company undertakes to continuously strengthen its
abilities in fulfilling social responsibilities in various aspects, and to
abide by social morality and professional ethics. Furthermore, the
Group is committed to contributing to regional economic growth,
and maintaining ecological balance, promoting harmony across
communities, safeguarding employees’ healthy development, and
to actively participating in social welfare activities. The Company
undertakes to further enhance its protection of the legitimate
rights and interests of all shareholders, creditors and employees,
and treats its suppliers and customers in good faith; make active
efforts to protect the environment, and actively participate in social
welfare activities, and promote harmonious development of the
Company and the society.

CQ: Lack of key performance indicator B8.2 Resources (e.g.
money or time) contributed to the focus area.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED

A HEBERAE

K@ﬁ*ﬁéﬁiﬂfm@l’% CREMRE K
FHERFETHRE  BHR2EE
n% BENH REBFSHEEDY

ELERMHLTRENXALR - B
BAEERBTHEXE  ROBETE
BIXPAEM & BEREE MRE5RE
o

R —F ARAEBBEITESEEN
MHEBEET LTARSFEFHRELEE
s THEGESREMNEE - 3REH
WARZEIREREEEHQARBEITHEEMTD
HEREMRE - MEHA - RRLEKE
TFWRITEREREROERKMELE - K
HIRBEBRRRMELEZFW - KRR E BT
RIR - BEEFIFIRTAORIE -

TECF ARRIEREHBEEMSY S
EANSHIAETRS  BTFHLEAE

PIBERE  REMELEIER - AR
Tl RELEMGE BEEIRER
B 2EMEEAE - E—PRERE - &
BANMBING EZRRE  HAEHEFHE

BHBP BRRERE AL 28Ede
NIEE  REAFEPHEESHMELRE -

CQ: MZBREMNIEERBB.2ER
PRER (N EARMHE) -

ST E IS P



C\

KH\

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS\

The board of directors (the “Board”) of BYD Electronic (International)
Company Limited would like to present its annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in Hong Kong
on 14 June 2007. By virtue of the reorganisation implemented in
preparation for the listing of the shares of the Company on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) for the purpose of streamlining the structure of the Group,
the Company became the holding company of the Group. The shares
of the Company commenced listing on the main board of the Stock
Exchange on 20 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is a
global leading high-end platform-based manufacturing enterprise,
providing customers with product research and development,
innovative materials, parts and components, complete machine
manufacturing, supply chain management and logistics, after-sales
and other one-stop services. Its business covers smart phones,
smart wearables, computers, automotive intelligent systems,
Internet of Things, smart home, game hardware, robots, unmanned
aerial vehicles, communication equipment, electronic atomization,
medical devices and other broad market areas. Leveraging on its
industry-leading R&D and manufacturing capabilities, diversified
product portfolio and high-quality customer resources, the Group's
business has entered a new round of rapid growth cycle.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the financial position of the Group and the Company as at 31
December 2021 are set out in the consolidated financial statements
and their notes on pages 157 to 267 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of final dividend
of RMBO0.103 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020: RMBO0.241 per ordinary
share). The proposed final dividend is subject to the consideration
and approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company.
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The Company will publish announcement, circular and notice
regarding the AGM in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Company will also make
separate announcement regarding the record date and date of closure
of register of members for the payment of the final dividend. It is
expected that the final dividend will be distributed before 31 August
2022.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and note 29 and note 40 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL/PAID-IN CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital during the Year are set out
in note 28 to the financial statements.

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021,
calculated under the provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”), amounted to approximately
RMB20,161,596,000 (2020: RMB18,394,736,000).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wang Nian-giang
Jiang Xiang-rong

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wang Chuan-fu
Wang Bo

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Chung Kwok Mo John

Qian Jing-jie

Below is a list of directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during
the Year and up to the date of this report in alphabetical order:

He Zhi-gi, Huang Zhengyi, Jiang Xiangrong, Li Ke, Li Yongjun, Lv
Xiang-yang, Ning Xin-jie, Shan Jie, Sun Yi-zao, Tang Jianguo, Wang
Bo, Wang Chuan-fu, Wang Nian-giang, Wang Zhen, Wang Wei, Xia
Zuo-quan, Xu Fenglin, Yu Cangsheng, Zhang Jie, Zhao Jian-ping,
Zhao Tong, Zhou Ya-lin, Zhao Ruofei, Zhao Yue

In accordance with Article 106 of the Articles of Association at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or if their number is
not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), the number which is nearest to
or is at least one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at least every
three (3) years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years. Either party has the right
to give not less than three months’ written notice to terminate the
agreement. The particulars of these agreements are in all material
respects identical and each of the executive Directors is entitled to a
salary and, at the discretion of the Board, a bonus payment.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter with the Company.
None of them has entered into any service contract with the Group.
The term of office of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors is for a period of three years. In each case,
either the Company or the relevant Director can give three months’
prior notice at any time to terminate the appointment without payment
of compensation, and the appointments are subject to the provisions
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles of the
Company.

The terms of each of the appointment letters of each of such
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are in all material respects identical. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee whereas none of
the non-executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee.

No Directors who proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group is set out in the following sections
of this annual report: Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion
and Analysis, the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and
note 36 to the financial statements. The corresponding discussion
and analysis as referenced shall form an integral part of this Directors’
Report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with relevant laws
and regulations and the impact of non-compliance with such relevant
laws and regulations on the business. The Group has been allocating
system and human resources to ensure ongoing compliance with laws
and regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with
regulators through effective communication. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group has complied with, to the best of our
knowledge, all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group.

The Company recognises that our employees, customers and
suppliers are key to our corporate sustainability. We strive to engage
our employees, provide quality services to our customers and
collaborate with our suppliers.
\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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The Company places significant emphasis on human capital by
promoting a diverse, non-discriminatory and fair environment to
our staff, as well as providing a range of opportunities for career
advancement based on employees’ merits and performance. We also
provide continuing training and development opportunities on the
latest developments in the market and industry, including courses
organized by external organizations and internally.

We value the feedback from customers and have established a
mechanism handling customer service, support and complaints.
We also proactively collaborate with our suppliers to continue to
deliver quality products and services. We have developed certain
requirements in our standard tender documents. These requirements
include regulatory compliance, labour practices, anti-corruption and
other business ethics.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 26 to 30 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of each
of the directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or associated
corporation (within the meaning of Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered into the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Name of Director Name of Company Capacity

Approximate
percentage of

Number of total issued
issued shares shares of that
held company
EZARE BT
HBEERIT PR3 48 B Y
KRB A BB
17,102,000' 0.76%
(long position)
(4F2&)
18,299,740? 0.63%
(long position)
(458
2,805,000° 0.12%
(long position)
(458
518,351,550* 17.81%
(long position)
(4F8)
5,000 0.00%
(long position)
(FE)

B4
Mr. Wang Nian-giang The Company Beneficial owner and
TRt ¥ N/NE] beneficiary
BEREAEARR®A
BYD Beneficial owner
Lt a5 ERERA
Mr. Wang Bo The Company Beneficiary
EREE PN 2@ A
Mr. Wang Chuan-fu BYD Beneficial owner
TERELE [ kY ERERA
Mr. Qian Jing-jie The Company Beneficial owner
BEELEE PiN/NC] EREBA
Notes: Bt -

1. Of which 8,500,000 shares are held by Mr. Wang Nian-giang and 1.

8,602,000 shares are held by Gold Dragonfly Limited (“Gold Dragonfly”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by BF
Gold Dragon Fly (PTC) Limited (“BF Trustee”) as the trustee of BF Trust,
the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wang Nian-giang.

2. These are the A shares of BYD held by Mr. Wang Nian-giang. 2.

The total issued share capital of BYD as at 31 December 2021
was RMB2,911,142,855, comprising 1,813,142,855 A shares and
1,098,000,000 H shares, all of which have a par value of RMB1 each. The
A shares of BYD held by Mr. Wang Nian-giang represented approximately
1.01% of the total issued A shares of BYD as at 31 December 2021.
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3. These shares are held by Gold Dragonfly, a company wholly owned by BF
Trustee as the trustee of BF Trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr.
Wang Bo.

4. These are the 513,623,850 A shares, 3,727,700 A shares held in No.1
Assets Management Plan through E Fund BYD and 1,000,000 H shares
of BYD held by Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, which represented approximately
28.53% and approximately 0.09% of total issued A shares and H shares of
BYD as of 31 December 2021, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as at 31 December 2021.

SHARE OPTIONS
During the Year under review, the Company did not adopt any share
option scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2021 was the Company, its holding
company or any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company or their associates to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2021, so far as being known to the Directors of RZ-ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—H MARFE=SE
the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors and Fifl» A A+ (TMNBEEARRNEEZNESTT
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the B A &) RARQ R L@ LABBERNDST  HE
ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company which were 1BIEES M HEIEIEHIEXVEIE2 K EID EER
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange EAMARNF MBI EN BN ART
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, RIEFHFILAEKEMNEICIKAEFTEESLMA
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the HIREZIAE -

Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Number of ordinary

shares in which the Approximate

interested party has or is percentage of

deemed to have interests total issued

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest or short positions CHECH]

EaBEAREIRARSE HERTRSG

BRERE B EEMtE EEAENEEREE | FBNBEAB DL

Golden Link Worldwide Limited Beneficial interest’ 1,481,700,000 65.76%
(“Golden Link”) BEmfEn (long position)
Golden Link Worldwide Limited (4 R)

([ Golden Link]J)

BYD (H.K.) Co., Limited (“BYD HK") Interest of controlled 1,481,700,000 65.76%
BYD (H.K.) Co., Limited ([BYD HK) corporation’ (long position)
RiEhEEER (HF&)

BYD Company Limited (“BYD”) Interest of controlled 1,481,700,000 65.76%
thEpE R BR AR ([Hhied ) corporation’ (long position)
RiEhEEER (HF&)

Notes: Hia -

1. BYD is the sole Shareholder of BYD HK, which in turn is the sole 1, t@EhABYD HKEM—RE - MBYD HKE|A

Shareholder of Golden Link. As such, both BYD HK and BYD were Golden Link#ME—R% 5 o At - BYD HK & 25
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Golden SR AR Golden Linkis A B AR QR $
Link. A o

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021

128 BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED



C\

KH\

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS\

2. The shares are held by Gold Dragonfly, a company wholly owned by BF
Trustee as trustee of BF Trust, the beneficiaries of which are 27 employees
of BYD, its subsidiaries and the Group. As such, BF Trustee was deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Gold Dragonfly.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Report for the corporate governance adopted by the Company is set
out on pages 31 to 45 of this annual report.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Remuneration Policy for
Directors” in the corporate governance report in this annual report for
the details of the Group’s remuneration policy for Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total remuneration of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in notes 9
and 10 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, every Director or
other officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against any liability, loss or expenditure incurred by
him in defending any legal proceedings which relate to anything done
or omitted to be done or alleged to have been done or omitted to be
done by him as an officer or auditor of the Company and in which
judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred
in connection with any application in which relief is granted to him by
the court from liability in respect of any such act or omission.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The top five largest customer groups and the largest customer
group of the Group represent approximately 77.54% and 38.92%
of the Group’s total sales of the Year respectively. The top five
largest suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group represent
approximately 61.62% and 31.44% of the Group’s total purchase of
the Year respectively.

BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company indirectly
interested in approximately 65.76% of the issued share capital of the
Company and one of the top five largest suppliers of the Group. Mr.
WANG Chuan-fu, being a non-executive Director of the Company and
an executive director and chairman of the board of directors of BYD,
and Mr. WANG Nian-qgiang, being an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company, are interested in approximately
17.81% and 0.63% of the total issued share capital of BYD as at the
date of this report, respectively.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their close
to the
knowledge of the Directors, own 5% or more of the issued shares

associates or any shareholders of the Company (which,

of the Company) had any beneficial interest in the top five largest
customers and suppliers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and operation of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

BYD Company Limited declared that it has complied with the
Lv
Xiang-yang in favour of the Company (for itself and as trustee for

non-compete deed given by it to Mr. Wang Chuan-fu and Mr.

the benefit of its subsidiaries from time to time) (as described in
the prospectus of the Company dated 7 December 2007) (the
“Non-compete Deed”).

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
compliance by BYD Company Limited, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu and Mr.
Lv Xiang-yang with the Non-compete Deed and the independent
non-executive Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can
ascertain, there is no incidence of non-compliance with the
Non-compete Deed by any of BYD Company Limited, Mr. Wang
Chuan-fu and Mr. Lv Xiang-yang.
\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 32(a) to the financial
statements constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of
the Company and the Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of such transactions.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are as follows:

THE FOLLOWING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OF THE

COMPANY ARE SUBJECT TO THE REPORTING AND

ANNOUNCEMENT REQUIREMENTS UNDER CHAPTER

14A OF THE LISTING RULES

(i) Purchase of assets by the Group from BYD
On 7 January 2021, the Company entered into assets purchase
agreement with BYD for the purchase of die-casting machine
and peripheral supporting, vertical machining center, drilling
machining center, 6-axis robots and other related equipment from
BYD Group by the Group at a consideration of RMB36,671,335,
which was determined with reference to the unaudited net asset
value of the transferred assets as at 31 October 2020, subject
to a downward adjustment on the day of assets delivery due to
accumulated depreciation before the delivery.

The considerations in relation to the aforesaid acquisitions were
financed by internal resources of the Group.

EEEHRE

REITRS
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As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, it is a
connected person of the Company and therefore the purchase of
assets constitutes connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The purchases under the assets
purchase agreement entered into in January 2021 was aggregated
with the February 2020 Assets Purchase Transaction (the details
of which were set out in the announcement of the Company dated
21 February 2020) and the July 2020 Assets Purchase Transaction
(the details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 23 July 2020) for the purpose of calculating
the percentage ratios as stipulated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios calculated on
aggregation basis were all more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the purchases were subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but is exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements as set out under Chapter 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules.

On 13 August 2021,
purchase agreement with BYD for the purchase of 6-axis robots,

the Company entered into another assets
drilling machining center, selective wave soldering machine,
rotary jig, LK CNC machines, disc type fully automatic drilling and
tapping machine, energy storage module welding line from BYD
Group by the Group at a consideration of RMB106,835,440, which
was determined with reference to the unaudited net asset value of
the transferred assets as at 31 July 2021, subject to a downward
adjustment on the day of assets delivery due to accumulated
depreciation before the delivery.

The considerations in relation to the aforesaid acquisitions were
financed by internal resources of the Group.
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As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, it is a
connected person of the Company and therefore the purchase of
assets constitutes connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The purchases under the assets
purchase agreement entered into in August 2021 was aggregated
with the July 2020 Assets Purchase Transaction (the details of
which were set out in the announcement of the Company dated
23 July 2020) and the January 2021 Assets Purchase Transaction
(the details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 7 January 2021) for the purpose of calculating
the percentage ratios as stipulated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios calculated on
aggregation basis were all more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the purchases were subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but is exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements as set out under Chapter 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2021, the Company entered into another assets
purchase agreement with BYD for the purchase of die-casting
machines, die-cutting machines, machining center, pipe
bending machines, welding machines and gas shielded welding
machines from BYD Group by the Group at a consideration of
RMB5,296,000, which was determined with reference to the
unaudited net asset value of the transferred assets as at 31
October 2021, subject to a downward adjustment on the day
of assets delivery due to accumulated depreciation before the
delivery.

The considerations in relation to the aforesaid acquisitions were
financed by internal resources of the Group.
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As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, it is a
connected person of the Company and therefore the purchase
of assets constitutes connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The purchases under the
assets purchase agreement entered into in December 2021 was
aggregated with the January 2021 Assets Purchase Transaction
(the details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 7 January 2021) and the August 2021 Assets
Purchase Transaction (the details of which were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 August 2021) for the
purpose of calculating the percentage ratios as stipulated under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage
ratios calculated on aggregation basis were all more than 0.1%
but less than 5%, the purchases were subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but is exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements as set out under Chapter
14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

Purchase of equity interest in BYD Auto Finance Company Limited
(“BYD Auto Finance”) by the Group from BYD

On 16 April 2021, the Company convened a Board meeting at
which the Board considered and approve the purchase of equity
interest in BYD Auto Finance by BYD Precision Manufacture
Co., Ltd. (“BYD Precision”) (as the purchaser), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, from BYD, representing 3.00% of the
total registered capital of BYD Auto Finance. The total consideration
for the Equity is RMB80,800,000 payable by BYD Precision to BYD.
The consideration was determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties on normal commercial terms, having regard
to (i) the size of the registered capital of BYD Auto Finance; (ii) the
economic benefits and expected revenue in the next ten years; (iii)
the business prospects of BYD Auto Finance; and (iv) the valuation
of the Equity Interest of approximately RMB80,900,000 as at 31
December 2020 evaluated by the independent valuer appointed by
the Company.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, it is a
connected person of the Company and therefore the equity
transfer transaction constitutes connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As certain
applicable percentage ratios stipulated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the Equity Transfer Transaction are
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Equity Transfer Agreement
is only subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
but is exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements as set out under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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According to the Company’s announcement dated 28 October
2021, it was proposed that, BYD Precision, BYD and Bank of
Xi'an (the “Existing Shareholders”) would enter into the capital
contribution agreement with BYD Auto Finance, pursuant to
which the Existing Shareholders which were agreed to make a
capital contribution of RMB2,500,000,000 in aggregate to BYD
Auto Finance in accordance with their respective shareholding
on a pro rata basis. The signing date of the Capital Contribution
Agreement was on 3 November 2021. Upon completion of the
Capital Contribution, the registered capital of BYD Auto Finance
increased from RMB1,500,000,000 to RMB4,000,000,000, and
the respective shareholding percentage of each of the Existing
Shareholders in BYD Auto Finance shall remain unchanged, that
is, BYD Auto Finance is held as to 77% directly by BYD 20% by
Bank of Xi’an and 3% by BYD Precision. The Capital Contribution
is beneficial to the Group in riding on the development trend of the
auto financing industry to further increase investment yield of BYD
Precision and enhance its profitability and overall competitiveness.
Meanwhile, it can promote the diversified and comprehensive
competitiveness of the Group, facilitate the sustainable
development of the Group and create greater value to investors.
The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
consider that the terms of the Capital Contribution Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder are entered into
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company,
were negotiated on an arm’s length basis and are on normal
commercial terms, and are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole. As BYD Auto
Finance is held directly as to 77% by BYD, BYD Auto Finance is
also a connected person of the Company. As such, the Capital
Contribution constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratios stipulated under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the Capital Contribution Agreement exceed 0.1% but
are less than 5%, the Capital Contribution Agreement is subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt from
the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement set out in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:

A.

136

THE FOLLOWING CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS OF THE COMPANY ARE SUBJECT

TO THE REPORTING AND ANNOUNCEMENT

REQUIREMENTS UNDER CHAPTER 14A OF THE

LISTING RULES

(i) Leasing of premises from BYD Group (other than the Group)
Pursuant to the New Property Leasing Framework Agreement
dated 26 November 2018 between the Group and its
subsidiaries and BYD Group and its subsidiaries, BYD
Group and its subsidiaries have agreed that the Group may
from time to time lease the properties of the BYD Group
in the PRC, predominantly factory and office space, for its
daily operations purposes during the period from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021. Meanwhile, the Group shall
enter into individual property leasing agreements in respect
of each leasing arrangement in accordance with the terms
of the New Property Leasing Framework Agreement. Each
individual property leasing agreement shall contain, amongst
other things, the specific details of the leased property and
must comply with the terms of the New Property Leasing
Framework Agreement, the Listing Rules and applicable laws.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the annual cap of
total amount of the rental transactions of the Company was
set at RMB345,127,000, and the actual aggregate amount
was approximately RMB278,427,000.
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Sharing of ancillary services with BYD Group (other than the
Group)

The Company and BYD entered into the New Comprehensive
Services Master Agreement on 26 November 2018, pursuant
to which BYD Group has agreed to provide to the Group
ancillary services required for its operations during the period
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company.

The annual cap of the total expenditure for acquiring the
ancillary services for the year ended 31 December 2021
was RMB35,414,000, and the actual aggregate amount was
approximately RMB30,394,000.

Provision of processing services for BYD Group (other than
the Group)

Pursuant to the New BE Processing Services Agreement
dated 26 November 2018 between the Company and BYD,
the Company has agreed that the Group will provide to BYD
Group automation equipment design services, processing
services, testing services and research and development
support for certain products of BYD Group, and waste water
treatment facilities during the period from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021.
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(iv)

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company. The annual cap of the total
amount of the processing services provided to BYD Group
was RMB103,659,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021, and the actual aggregate amount was approximately
RMB60,567,000.

Provision of purchasing service by BYD Group

Pursuant to the New Supply Chain Management Service
Agreement dated 26 November 2018 between the Company
and BYD Group, BYD Group has agreed to provide certain
purchasing services to the Group during the period from 1
January 2019 to 30 December 2021.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company.

The annual cap of purchasing service fee payable to BYD
Group by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
was RMB142,736,000, and the actual aggregate amount was
approximately RMB58,409,000.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED

(iv)

AL ERERND A MR E - &
b REWB AR (REERIN &
AARMBEEAL HE-_ZT=-—F
TZA=T—HLEFE  AtiHEsf
ERENMIESNESHENEE LR
B AR103,659,0007T @ BERE A4
TR A AR60,567,0007T °

L 55 30 5 (B AR (IR B R 7
BEAQAEETHERN T —N
F+—AZ+ "BEITHHEREE
REER  HEHEERER_-T
—NEF—A—HBEZZE=—%+=A
=t+HILEHARASEERME TIRE
AR 7% °

MR AR AR A IERRE -
Lo o R BB A A (REBERSN) B
ARANBIEANL ©

HE-_Z-_—F+_A=T—HIF
B ARRN T REEBENFEER
BENEE LRAARE142,736,000
T EBRBLEBSBENAARE
58,409,0007T °



C\

KH\

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS\

(v) Provision of available-for-sale automotive core components

and special purpose electric vehicles by BYD Group to the
Group

Pursuant to the New Automotive Core Components and
Special Purpose Electric Vehicles Purchase Agreement dated
26 November 2018 between the Company and BYD, the
Group agreed to purchase certain goods from BYD Group
including automotive core components and special purpose
electric vehicles and certain other materials during the period
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries are connected persons of the Company.

The annual cap for the total amount of the products
purchased from BYD Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 was RMB522,569,000, and the actual aggregate amount
was approximately RMB269,725,000.
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(vi) Provision of glass products by the Group to BYD Group

Pursuant to the New Glass Sales Agency Agreement dated
26 November 2018 between the Company and BYD, the
Group agreed to supply glass casing products to BYD Group
during the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021
for its onward sales by agency to the overseas customers as
designated by the Group.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company.

The annual cap for the total amount of the products supplied
to BYD Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
RMB330,000,000, and the actual aggregate amount was
approximately RMB14,222,000.

(vii) Purchasing products from BYD Group (other than the Group)

Pursuant to the New Purchase Agreement dated 26 November
2018 between the Company and BYD, BYD has agreed that
BYD Group will supply materials used for the production
of handset casings, plastic structural materials, packaging
materials and certain other products and materials to the
Group during the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2021.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount of the purchases of
products from BYD Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 is RMB1,034,717,000, and the actual aggregate amount
was approximately RMB325,030,000.
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(viij) Provision of utility connection and/or utility by BYD Group

(ix)

(other than the Group)

According to the New Ultility Services Master Agreement
dated 26 November 2018 between the Company and BYD,
BYD Group has agreed to provide to the Group certain utility
or utility connection (as the case may be), including water,
electricity and gas during the period from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company.

The annual cap of the total expenditure for acquiring utility
connection and/or utility from BYD for the year ended 31
December 2021 is RMB1,023,521,000, and the actual
aggregate amount was approximately RMB646,605,000.

Provision of processing services and special processing
services by BYD Group (other than the Group)

Pursuant to the New Processing Services Agreement dated
26 November 2018 between the Company and BYD, BYD
Group has agreed to provide certain processing services for
certain products (including handset metal parts) and facilities
(including waste water treatment) of the Group during the
period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021, whereby
some steps in the production process of such facilities are
further processed by BYD Group.

Following related agreement, the Company and BYD entered
into another Supplemental BYD Electronic Processing Services
Agreement on 16 April 2021 to adjust the existing annual
cap stipulated in related agreement for the year ended 31
December 2021. Except the adjustment of the existing annual
cap for the year ended 31 December 2021, all other terms
and conditions under the original BYD Electronic Processing
Services Agreement remain unchanged.
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As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company.

The annual cap of the expenditure of the processing services
provided by BYD Group is RMB750,495,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021, and the actual aggregate amount
was approximately RMB533,193,000.

(x) Provision of power supply services for BYD Group (other than

the Group)

Pursuant to the Power Supply Services Agreement dated 1
March 2019 entered into between the Company and BYD,
the Company has agreed to provide power supply services to
BYD Group during the three years ended 31 December 2021
to satisfy the day-to-day operations and production needs of
BYD Group in the Shenzhen Baolong Industrial Park in the
PRC.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company.

The annual cap for the total amount of the power supply
services provided to BYD Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMB117,658,000, and the actual
aggregate amount was approximately RMB83,637,000.
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(xi) Supply of batteries by BYD Group to the Group

Pursuant to the Batteries Purchase Agreement dated 6 August
2020 between the Company and BYD, BYD Group shall
provide batteries according to the specifications as requested
by the Group from time to time for certain new intelligent
products produced by the Group from 6 August 2020 to 31
December 2021, unless terminated earlier in accordance with
the terms of the Batteries Purchase Agreement.

On 13 August 2021, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement with BYD to further revise the
existing annual cap. Except the adjustment of the annual cap
for the year ended 31 December 2020, all other terms and
conditions (including the annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2021) under the Batteries Purchase Agreement
remain unchanged.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company.

The annual cap for the total amount of the purchase of
batteries by BYD from the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMB1,500,000,000, and the actual
aggregate amount was approximately RMB1,498,328,000.
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(xii) Provision of Deposit services by BYD Auto Finance to the

Group

Pursuant to the framework agreement entered into between
BYD Precision, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and BYD on 14 May 2021, the BYD Auto Finance agreed to
provide term deposit services to BYD Precision within the
scope as permitted by the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission and in accordance with all relevant
rules and regulations for the period from the effective date
of the relevant framework agreement to 31 December 2023.
The relevant interest rates shall be determined in accordance
with the relevant benchmark rates prescribed by the People’s
Bank of China and shall not be lower than the interest rates
offered by other mainstream commercial banks in the PRC for
comparable deposits with similar nature for the same period
and the interest rates offered by BYD Auto Finance to any
other successful applications from shareholders of BYD Auto
Finance (other than the Group) for comparable deposits with
similar nature for the same period, and is subject to all rules
and regulations set by the People’s Bank of China and/or all
other domestic rules and regulations in the PRC.

As BYD is the controlling shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company. As BYD Auto Finance is a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of BYD, BYD Auto Finance is also
a connected person of the Company. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the maximum daily deposit balance of
the time deposit services provided by BYD Auto Finance to
the Group during the Year was RMB4,000,000,000 and the
actual maximum deposit balance incurred during the Year was
approximately RMB2,500,000,000.
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(xiij) Construction services provided by BYD to the Group

Pursuant to the Construction Services Framework Agreement
dated 15 June 2021 between the Company and BYD, BYD
Group shall provide the Group with the construction services
relating to the Group’s plants and production facilities located
in the PRC (whether existing or to be opened in the future)
from 15 June 2021 to 31 December 2021, unless terminated
earlier in accordance with the terms of the Construction
Services Framework Agreement.

As BYD is the controlling shareholder of the Company, BYD
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected
persons of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
total amount of construction services provided by BYD Group
to the Group was set at RMB106,000,000, and the actual
aggregate amount was approximately RMB81,415,000.

the annual cap of

B. THE FOLLOWING CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS OF THE COMPANY ARE SUBJECT
TO THE REPORTING, ANNOUNCEMENT AND
INDEPENDENT SHAREHOLDERS’ APPROVAL
REQUIREMENTS UNDER CHAPTER 14A OF THE
LISTING RULES

Provision of products by the Group to BYD Group (other than the
Group)

Pursuant to the New Supply Agreement dated 26 November 2018
between the Company and BYD, the Company has agreed that
the Group will supply products used for the production of rotary
display screen, plastic injection parts, moulds and certain other
products and materials to BYD Group during the period from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2021.
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As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap for the total amount of the products supplied
to BYD Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
RMB3,451,879,000, and the actual aggregate amount was
approximately RMB2,747,155,000.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions are:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements entered into on
terms which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter and confirmed
that for the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

1. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Board;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes
the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group;
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3. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors
to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out in the attached
list of continuing connected transactions, nothing has come
to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the annual cap as set by the Company.

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, a non-executive Director of the Company, has
also been an executive director and chairman of the board of directors
of BYD. As Mr. Wang Chuan-fu held certain interests in the shares
of BYD as at the dates of the aforesaid connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, being the
Director who may have a material interest in the aforesaid transactions,
has voluntarily abstained from voting on the board resolutions of the
Company concerning the aforesaid transactions.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the period
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. During the Year, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save for the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions described in this report, no Directors or entities
connected to the Directors have direct or indirect material interests
in any material transactions or arrangements conducted or material
contracts entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries at
any time during or at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each independent non-executive Director has provided a statement
confirming his/her independence to the Company pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company assessed that each
independent non-executive Director continues to be independent.

INDEPENDENT INTERNATIONAL AUDITOR

Since the incorporation of the Company, all its financial statements
have been audited by Ernst & Young. A resolution will be proposed
regarding the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s
independent international auditor for 2022 at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By the order of the Board

Director
Wang Nian-giang

29 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT\

To the members of
BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BYD
Electronic (International) Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 157 to 267, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BB RS
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

R T F IR

Provision for impairment on trade receivables EUE 5 R 5

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded trade
receivables of RMB9,279,580,000 and provision of
RMB39,231,000 in the consolidated financial statements
account.

R—_FB-_—F+=-_A=+—8 "
FREEE AR#9 279,580,000 T HI BN E 5
39,231,000 T H & o

E%ENWFEM%#&%%
SN

Management uses a provision matrix to calculate expected
credit losses for trade receivables. The application of
provision matrix requires to consider all reasonable and
reliable information, including customers’ credit risks,
aging of receivables, existence of disputes and historic
payments, as well as forecasts of future economic
conditions. The groupings of various customer segments
and the estimation of expected credit loss rate involve
significant judgements and estimate.
EREERARBEREGTEREESIRR AR EERE - &
REETEHEAZRMESERAEZER  BEFPHNEER
b - BUCR RIS - BB FEAD KIAEN FRA R AR R
RRTER - EEF DA D ERFABEEBEEERNMETIR
BAHE K fhET -

Details of provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables are disclosed in notes 2.4, 3 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

JEWE ZERNBHEEBEREFBERENRS
Mizko.4 - 3219 o

P R

BB RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBREELT A EL
X ERL (BB

We performed the following procedures, among others, in
related to expected credit losses of trade receivables:

RFHEWE ZEREANBHREEE BT
B

(HEhB8HE) AT

° Obtained an understanding of the key internal
controls of provision for expected credit losses and
its design and operating effectiveness;

. TERIEHEEEEREN BRI EH KR AE
1TEE

o Discussed with management on the identification
of customer segments and estimates on expected
credit losses, reviewed its accuracy based on
historical incurred losses, and evaluated the
reasonableness of management’s expected
credit loss model considering current economic
conditions

s HEREMWRFPOMBEMNRAHEEERMGT R
EBEELEME BRI L ERE MRE B IEBERR
A EEENRREEEREANSEE

° For trade receivables with individually assessed
credit risk exposure, discussed with management on
the reasonableness of identification and analysed the
recoverability of such receivables :

s REAFEEEBRNEKEZRAMS - HEEE
7 i a0l B B MR R B B R D ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁﬁsﬁﬂﬁlﬂ%%ﬂ
BRI Bl

° For trade receivables with credit risk exposure
assessed based on provision matrix, evaluated
the reasonableness of estimates on the expected
credit loss model based on type of customers and
historical incurred losses; and

o FREBBEEEFEEERRAEKE FRN
AHAREBEEFRLMBEELNEIRIEL E’J?‘Eﬁﬁ
BEEAGFONEEYE &

A-«&
l:l/\

° Recalculated the management’s impairment
provision of trade receivables to ensure mathematical
accuracy.

o  EHMFHEERENREWE S RNATIEA R E R E
RE MR -
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Key audit matter
MR EZEIE

Inventory provision 17 & #&

As at 31 December 2021, inventories and related provision
amounted to RMB10,976,271,000 and RMB409,022,000,
respectively, which were material to the consolidated
financial statements.

RIE-—F+-_A=+—H GFEXHEBEEINAAR
#10,976,271,0007T & A R #409,022,0007T * ¥ & 1%
WMERMEBEK °

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The inventories of the Group are mobile
intelligent terminals and other products which are
subject to rapid product innovations and technological
upgrade and therefore have a high risk of obsolescence.
Management assessment on inventory provision is
judgmental and is based on assumptions, specifically the
forecasted inventory usage, estimated selling prices and
cost to be incurred to completion and disposal, which are
affected by expected future market and sales orders.

FERRAENSHFEMETOREESR - E5EF
BEXEREREHN MBI AR ENE B gL 0% K H A
Eom E&%ﬁﬁtﬁﬁ@% @ %“I%%ﬂ?iéi (GEIRSEYES b
i DERERAFERE  BAEERTRRHEEERNK
AFEZ R - EZ%{E REZEHREN G MIHEFT EMF
@,

The accounting policies and disclosures for inventory
provision are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TERECE
18 ¢

STBUR R BB R E VB RERE2.4 - 3K
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBREELT A EL

We performed the following procedures, among others, on
the inventory provision:
Bt EREET (AR EE) U TR :

° Checked management’s methodology and estimates
used in the inventory provision calculation;

s REMEFEREREEREMBNARMGR

° Assessed the reasonableness of the inventory
provision by comparing to historical write-downs,
actual selling prices and costs to sale;

o  HEBTHEMON - BEREEKEEKAE
ERBEEAE

TTHE - R

° Tested the aging of inventories and discussed the
long aging inventories with management to identify
any slow-moving, excess or obsolete items;

e BEFENRKLETEEIWERRIENTE
BRILERDE - ZHAERER

LA

° Observed the stocktaking process at the end of the

year; and

s BEFREERMEE X

° Performed subsequent sales review of inventories.

s  HEEETHRHEEREM-
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

BB RS
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BB RS
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is M.L. Chau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR L\OSS\,
BOftERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 B2 = F=—F 1+ = H=1—HIFE

2021 2020
S s S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
REVENUE $t A 5 89,056,978 73,121,075
Cost of sales $HEMA (83,027,813) (63,492,232)
Gross profit E) 6,029,165 9,628,843
Other income and gains Z A Rk Hzs 5 656,763 485,118
Government grants and subsidies BT # B % f 85 7 585,261 391,757
Research and development expenses 5t & F 3% E H (3,308,296) (2,913,274)
Selling and distribution expenses $H& &5 5 % (274,578) (236,855)
Administrative expenses TR 3 (1,041,338) (673,164)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net & BL& & i E &R E 7,785 1,694
Loss on derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised cost
RIEBERNE N AT 2N MEENEE (13,079) (896)
Other expenses Efifi % (133,061) (391,088)
Finance costs F4& KA 8 (43,329) (71,333)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B % Al Al 6 2,465,293 6,220,802
Income tax expense FTSHH % 11 (155,411) (779,431)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F & & A
Attributable to owners of the parent B2 Al1#A AJEE 2,309,882 5,441,371
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
AR L ERERFEARGNERERN 12
Basic and diluted Z7 [ 258
— For profit for the year — & 7l RMBAK¥1.037t RMBARM2.417C
202178 _,
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/CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
B RS RER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # 2 —F——%#+=-HA=1—HIFFE&E

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR /&% 7l 2,309,882 5,441,371

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H 4R 4 U zs

Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods: EEHEAIEH D BEE BN HMES IS

Receivables financing: fEWFIARLE :
Changes in fair value A # BEZE) (8,834) (140)
Impairment losses & & E518 92 90

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

HEIEINETSE A MIE K =58 (3,308) 1,477

Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods

HipfHaEfsBEsBanEasns (B8) WEFE (12,050) 1,427
OTHERCOMPREHEN&VE&OS&ANCOMEFORTHEYEAR,NETOFTAX
REEHMERE (BE),/ Was - MBRTIE (12,050) 1,427
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR N4 E 47 & s 4256 2,297,832 5,442,798
Attributable to owners of the parent &2 &% A A &G 2,297,832 5,442,798
\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION\
B BRI R

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERBI &&=

2021
—E_—F

RMB’000
AR®T R

2020
—E-FF
RMB’000
ARET T

Property, plant and equipment #1% « BiE K& 13 11,181,538 9,692,721
Right-of-use assets {5 A& & 14(a) 1,061,241 1,201,507
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

A8 - A EBERR R H B E 15 921,156 589,473
Other intangible assets E fb 2 & & 16 9,758 8,914
Loan to the ultimate holding company & F & 442 [% A &) 33 - 400,000
Deferred tax assets &R B & &= 27 201,447 =
Other non-current financial assets E it 3EmE S @ EE 17 170,215 14,593
Total non-current assets JER B4 E4AE 13,545,355 11,907,208
CURRENT ASSETS &g &E

Inventories 7 & 18 10,567,249 6,891,357
Trade receivables JEW Z 5 B8Rk 19 9,240,349 14,391,466
Receivables financing &Y B gL E 20 2,987,164 88,400
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

TERTRIE - A EBERR R & E 15 1,656,679 1,231,281
Pledged deposits & & i 7F5 21 351,244 487
Restricted bank deposits 5 [R #4817 17 2% 21 2,501 =
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & MR & S (EY) 21 2,824,741 3,465,889
Total current assets BN & E42E 27,629,927 26,068,880
Total assets BEE 41,175,282 37,976,088

2021 5% /
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B OB R

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—#1+=-HA=+4+—H

2021 2020
—F-—F —F_FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT

CURRENT LIABILITIES & & (&

Trade and bills payables [Ef & 5 BRI BN Rk 22 11,723,985 8,145,851
Other payables and accruals H b J& < BR 5k &2 fE =+ & B 23 4,176,101 4,295,401
Lease liabilities THE & & 14(b) 135,990 330,984
Derivative financial instruments $74 48 T A 24 - 587
Tax payable & %18 184,392 57,459
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings =t /2 8817 & £ i &3k 26 - 2,009,247
Total current liabilities i Eh & E42%8 16,220,468 14,839,529
NET CURRENT ASSETS g & &R E 11,409,459 11,229,351
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BE#&ER LS A E 24,954,814 23,136,559
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3E/igh & &

Deferred tax liabilities & AEFiIE 8 (& 27 403,899 312,616
Lease liabilities FAE & & 14(b) 373,775 404,596
Deferred income #EIEH A 25 150,037 147,054
Total non-current liabilities 3E7 ) B {E42%8 927,711 864,266
Net assets & & 518 24,027,103 22,272,293
EQUITY #£%8

Share capital &7 28 4,052,228 4,052,228
Other reserves H b 29 19,974,875 18,220,065
Total equity #5485 24,027,103 22 272,293

Wang Chuan-fu Wang Nian-giang
TEE Fal
Director Director
BH EE
\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES II\\l/EQUITY\
EHEREER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 B2 = F=—F 1+ = H=1—HIFE

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through other Statutory Exchange
comprehensive | Contributed surplus |  fluctuation Retained
Share capital income surplus reserve reserve profits
URAER
STEBFA
AftgahEn EE
k& AEBERE Ll Eofik | MERBRE BHEN gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT | ARETR | ARETR | ARETR [ ARETR | ARKTR
(note 28) (note (a))
(Mizks) (Pfzk(a)
At 1 January 2020 R=F=F§-F—H 4,062,228 (154" (46,323)" 964,484* (175,944)* 12,195,182 16,989,473
Profit for the year /27 - - - - - 5,441,371 5,441,371
Changes in fair value of receivables financing
EYTERENAL BEED) = (50) - - - - (50)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
RESHIBELNENZE - - - - 1477 - 1477
Total comprehensive income for the year A B A Mz A% - (50) - - 1477 5,441,371 5,442,798
Final 2019 dividend ~E - EREkRS = - - - - (159,978) (159,978)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve EEZ AT Bkl - - - 16,961 - (16,961) -
At 31 December 2020 A =324+ -A=T-H 4,052,228 (204 (46,329) 981,445 (174,467)°  17,459,614" 22,272,293
Profit for the year & &7 - - - - - 2300882 2300882
Changes in fair value of receivables financing
RUSERENDABES - (8,742) - - - - (8,742)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BESHIBELNERLZE - - - - (3,308) - (3,308)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE 4 HEEE - (8,742) - - (3308 2300882 2,297,832
Final 2020 dividend ~2-ZERERE - - - - - (543,022) (543,022)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve EEZ T Bk A - - - 19,448 - (19,448) =
At 31 December 2021 R=F-—F+-A=1-H 4,052,228 (8,946)" (46,323 1,000,893" (177,775)  19,207,026" 24,027,103
2021% % /
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RS BR

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 B2 = ZF=—F 1 =H="1—HIFFZE

Notes:

(@)

162

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) Company
Law and the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries,
each of the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC is required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profit after tax (after offsetting
any prior years’ losses) to its statutory surplus reserve. When the balance
of this reserve reaches 50% of its capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses or to increase capital. However, the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of capital after this
usage.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of
RMB19,974,875,000 (2020: RMB18,220,065,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS\,
Aﬁﬁﬁ%umi%

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 B2 = F=—F 1+ = H=1—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & & /E8MIESRE

Profit before tax Bk & 51 i 71 2,465,293 6,220,802
Adjustments for: FH# :
Finance costs gt& A4 43,329 71,333
Interest income &8 U A 5 (79,598) (50,468)
Government grants and subsidies B i 8 B K 1/ Bh 7 (63,041) (81,072)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
HEWE - MEMEREEEHNER 6 21,883 83,536

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

M BERREBITE 6 2,255,103 1,755,207
Amortisation of other intangible assets £ fth i & &= # §4 6 3,850 4,734
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & FEEETE 6 298,053 282,188
Impairment of trade receivables, net EW Z 5 8k R EFE 6 (8,148) 698
Impairment of loan to the ultimate holding company, net
ERTREER A RREFE - (840)
Impairment of receivables financing, net
N TR IR Bl & BB F R 6 92 90
Impairment of other receivables, net £ fib & U B ZUR (B FE 271 (1,642)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
FEREZA#HFE 6 320,611 3,347
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: A7 B1E (WzE) / BEFE :
Derivative instruments $74 T & 6 (587) (948)
Other non-current financial assets HIER B S B E E 6 178 (6,288)
5,257,289 8,280,677
2021% % /
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/ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHRERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 B2 = ZF=—F 1 =H="1—HIFFZE

2021 2020

—F-—F —F_FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Increase in inventories & &N (3,996,503) (1,493,792)

Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables JEWE Z 8 7R / (#&h0) 5,159,265 (4,824,794)

Increase in receivables financing & 48 7% 78 g & 3 11 (2,907,598) (43,310)

Decrease in amounts due from related parties & 7818 75 32X T8 > - 1,900
Increase in prepayments, other receivables and other assets

FERTRIE - Efth FEUR AR TR N HoAth B A= 1B N (425,669) (749,537)

Increase in trade and bills payables

FERHE 5 MR BN ARG N 3,601,247 1,649,065

(Decrease)/Increase in other payables Hth B BRZk (Ri4>) /10 (360,036) 609,133

Increase in deferred income #EIE Y A 1 1 66,024 106,072

Cash generated from operations &2 & & 4 KR & 6,394,019 3,535,414

Interest received B 47 & 79,598 50,468

Tax paid 2 HE (138,642) (376,937)

Net cash flows from operating activities 48 & /E IR & i = /F(E 6,334,975 3,208,945

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES & /EHHIRE RE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment

BEYHE  BEIZEEE (3,928,749) (2,803,954)

Purchases of items of leasehold land included in right-of-use assets

BEACAEEENEELMIAR (111,817) (102,856)

Purchases of other intangible assets ¥ & £ it £ i2 4 & 16 (4,694) (2,782)

Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and equipment

HEWE - BE KREHEB BPEHIEA 36,641 9,263

Purchases of equity investments B & X #1% & (155,800) —

Receipt of loan to the ultimate holding company

W Bl R AR P AR AR SR B 3K 400,000 -

Increase in restricted bank deposits and pledged deposits

SR BIERITE SR R B E R F RGN - 19,827

Purchases of financial products i & & Bl 2 & - (100,000)

Net cash flows used in investing activities & & EBFTAR &R E/FE (3,764,419) (2,980,502)
\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS\,
BEHRERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z—=%F——

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES s& EERR & mE

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
AR®T R

Fr=—A=1—HIFE

2020
—E-FF
RMB’000
ARET T

New bank loans #T#R1TE X 877,054 2,357,317

Repayment of bank loans #7717 & 7& 7k (2,868,498) (349,055)

Interest paid B3 F & (14,850) (35,356)

Lease payments {37 & 18 14(b) (295,814) (242,698)

Dividend paid 21 %8 (543,022) (159,978)

Increase in pledged deposits and restricted bank deposits

B RE 3R Z PR 6l $R 1T 7 K35 N (353,258) =

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

BEES (FTA),/ FEREREFE (3,198,388) 1,570,230

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RekBEEFEYORD) ENFE (627,832) 1,798,673

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

FUREMRESFEY 3,465,889 1,650,730

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EREBHZE - F(E (13,316) 16,486

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

FREEMREFEY 2,824,741 3,465,889
202178 _,
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/ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR T aE

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—#1+=-HA=+4+—H

1.

166

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
on 14 June 2007.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 20 December
2007.

The registered office of the Company is located at part of Unit
1712, 17th Floor, Tower 2, Grand Central Plaza, No.138 Shatin
Rural Committee Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Group provides world renowned customers with new material
development, product design and development, parts and
components as well as complete machine manufacturing, supply
chain management, logistics, after-sales and other one-stop
services. Its products cover four major areas including smartphone
and PC, new intelligent product, automotive intelligent system and
medical and health.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the company is Golden Link Worldwide Limited, an enterprise
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is BYD Company Limited, a company
established in the PRC whose H shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and A shares are listed on the Main Board of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Company name

ARER

Lead Wealth International Limited (‘Lead Wealth”)
(EHERERAD)
FRERARNA ([

BYD Precision Manufacture Co., Ltd. (‘BYD Precision”)
(HEEREHEERAR)
HEHEEREERAR ([ EHEE )

Huizhou BYD Electronic Co., Limited (‘Huizhou Electronic’)
ENLTEEFERAA)
EMtEeETERAR ((EMET)) "

BYD Indlia Private Limited (‘BYD Incla’)"™*
BYD India Private Limited ([ BYD India ) **

Place of
incorporation or
registration and
operations
BAlIAE RS
e

British Virgin Islands
ABRAES

PRC/Mainland China

hE /AR

PRC/Mainland China

RE /RN,

India
g

C\

B S R 2R Y

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

RAREEER (F)

FRENEARANER
ARBEEZMBRANFEOD

Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registered equity attributable
share capital to the Company Principal activities
BREER/ EAAEERER AN IEEH
kA
Direct Indirect
=43 [}
US$50,000 = 100 Investment holding
50,000%7 REER
1US$145,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of mobile
145,000,000% T handset components, modules
and other products
RERHEFRTHN RAR
HftER
US$110,000,000 = 100 High-level assembly
110,000,000%7 BkTER
INR2,562,804,780 = 100 Manufacture and sale of mobile
2,562,804,780E handset components and modules,

manufacture and sale of battery,
charger, iron-phosphate batteries
used in electric bus, electric truck,
electric car, electric forkift and its
components & spare parts, building
and maintaining monorail projects
HEREEFRTIAES
VERHERPNLNE -
BYEE BPE TYNER
HEPHMASE 788
&ﬁaﬂ‘ﬁmﬁﬁkiﬁﬁﬁ

?“

RER

%3}?

]

2021 %
A
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/ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR T aE

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF = —4F

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Place of
incorporation or
registration and
Company name operations
ARER ERRIRERR
Send
Xi'an BYD Electronic Co., Limited (‘Xi'an Electronic’) PRC/Mainland China
[ERHTEETERAH) " mE /RERL,
ERNEEETARAA ((BRET))
BYD (Changsha) Electronic Co., Limited (‘Changsha Electronic’) PRC/Mainland China
(ROHEHEFERAR) - hE /RERD
AL TEEFERAR (RDET))
BYD (Shaoguan) Electronic Co., Limited (“Shaoguan Electronic’) PRC/Minland China
(PELTEETERAR)" hE /BN

+=HA=+—H

(Continued)

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

AR TARLE (MBS T))

*

*k

168

RAREEER (F)

BRKEQRANER (&)

Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registered equity attributable
share capital to the Company Principal activities
BRALER/ AOREHFRER A IEXEK
ARRE
Direct Indirect
Bk 3
RMB100,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of mobile
AK#100,000,0007T handset components
RERHETRTHN
RMBA50,000,000 = 100 Manufacture and sale of mobile
AK#50,000,0007C handset components
RERHETATHN
RMB30,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of mobile
AR30,000,0007 handset components
HERHEFRTHM

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

under PRC law.

Huizhou Electronic is registered as a Sino-foreign joint venture under PRC

law.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

under foreign law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS\

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
receivables financing and derivative financial instruments, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has

power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

B S R 2R Y

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H
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SO EE
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/ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—#1+=-HA=+4+—H

2.1

170

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED

21 mREE ()

SOFEE (&)
B I8 1 B B AN 2 B O B S R AR MO R 5 HI
A WRA—HEFERERR - WEQ
AR RERAEERGZEHE L BEFE
HARR - LHEAHAREZTIERER
EZBRIE -

BaREkEMGEA RaSEXSBO IREBR
AEBERBRAREE AR ERER - BIE
HRSIBFEREREH AR - AL
SEKBERARIZHARZHNMESEARNR T
MEENAE #%5 KA AXERE
MEBNE GHIR B R 28U -

e FERBRER ey = @6 EE
FE-EXNEHRES  AIAKERE
A EEENEFRNREHER - HBAFN
PRBREEREEEE (WRREZEHIE) -
ARER X H N

MASEEREEH B AR ZERE - AJE
BEEER)ZHNBARNEE (BIEEE)
R EME ¢ ()21 e A A 25 A0 BR T B K (i)
REENEENEFTRIERE - WRBHE
R FTRRERN AR EE : (i)FTRBE
AR EM A 1 BE R (i) ERNE L EENR
EREETE o AT H AR S MR N R A
REBRGHOETN ) ERERKB TR
FmEA) - KB EEEMAEEE
EHEMEEESAGARAEEER -



C\

\\\

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS\

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions beyond
30 June 20217 (early adopted)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4

and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative
risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of
HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform
on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy.
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—#1+=-HA=+4+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

172

(a)

(Continued)

The Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
December 2021. No significant modification gain or loss arises
as a result of applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021. However, the Group has not received covid-19-related
rent concessions and plans to apply the practical expedient
when it becomes applicable within the allowed period of
application.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial B M R ER 2 #E] REER] (BB T
statements. HAER) o
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework' (BEUBREEN)ERNET AR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an (BAUBREEAEI0RR REZHEREN AT
HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture® (BeEd) Eo8% BERTZHY
(Z3——5) 0B BEHER IR
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or (BHeEl) S 15R0E: BEEAER
Non-current?* ViEIEE i
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies? (B El) S 1% R ERRTRE
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 (BEUBREE) ERRE
ORI
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates? (BheEl) Sesng:l Bif s’
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities (Bhes RS 15085 BE-ZGFEAHRER
arising from a Single Transaction? BRABNELRE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: (BRemEA)S16%0EE 7% BEKdE
Proceeds before Intended Use' (ERERERZ TR E

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract!

Amenaments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
Hustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 417

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1,
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the

corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

Hong Kong
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK (IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK (IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it
complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

B S R 2R Y

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

23T EMERERN(ERMBRE

A (&)
(BREEEMDF1RBABIERRD
HIERBNETBRBRABIBRRB N

#um@m’]%ﬁm c ZEERTEH  HERE
BEERENENZIBRNERNTERER
o RNZERNTSE B 2 &M /H\ﬁﬁé
RBEEHURTCEEREARE - BENIET
XRERTELTEERZABRBENMNA G
HNEE - RFERTEBRESEER
BERRR - ZRFEINR T _=F—F—
Bk &MBHFERMEY - S EEW
FER - AFFIRRIER - 2SR BETE
UAKENPBERRELEANEATE -

A

(BREEFERDF1RETHRBEENE
AIERERBREEERRAREREN M
FEBASHEE - MEREBYHHRE
NEMER —HZERE » FFBEREHA N
EEAHEFEARVMBRRNEIEMER
ERBEZFVHRERMELAIRE - %
EHBRREMNBEKN (BBMBHREE
AN ERHREF2RMAETHNAFER M
BORAR SRR ERHE T IR ST
BE (BB GFER) F1RMNETR =
T - A B ZRABNFEHRHE

i@l*;mﬁm?ﬂgﬁﬁ B E BB RS

ERDEBEBHREF2MNERRENIEET

FERANE - REETRBLUAS - %S
ENEBTEHAREOYBRRE L
AEARE -

2021 5% /

LEAE 7 (BR) BRAHE 175



/f

/D

/ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR T aE

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—#1+=-HA=+4+—H

2.3

176

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start
of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits or other component of
equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments
shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in
which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to
a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable
to the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are
as follows:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment
to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

e HKFRS 16 Leases. removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its listed equity investments and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or

disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair

value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person,
() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the

other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment,
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

other than construction in

any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful
lives and residual value are as follows:

Estimated useful lives

2AEEETHERRBE (A)
W% - BERRBNITE (&)
BEYE  BELRBEENFTEDNNE
BORREMF AT ERFHEHARAEH
RREEFE -  TERAFAERAFHLR
SHEEWT :

Residual value

fhEt Al A F FlerEE
Freehold land Not depreciated -
KA ERE LI RS
Buildings 10 to 70 years 0%-5%
BF 10E£70%F
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms and 5 years -
HEMEEE REEFIRASSF (ABREERE)
Machinery and equipment 51to 12 years 0%-5%
] 5ZE12F
Office equipment and fixtures 5 years and below 0%-5%
MA=EREREE S5ERLAT
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years 0%-5%
Bl 3E5F

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (Continued)

Construction in progress representing property, plant and
equipment under construction is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of
one to five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 44 to 99 years
Buildings 1 to 20 years
Machinery and other equipment 1 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
LEASES (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
LEASES (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of office equipment and laptop computers that are considered
to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement
of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For receivables financing, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in
other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and

payment has been established,

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group

has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

For receivables financing, the Group applies the low credit risk
simplification. At each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether
the receivables financing is considered to have low credit risk
using all reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group
reassesses the external credit ratings of the receivables financing.
In addition, the Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

B S R 2R Y

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

2AEEETHERRBE (A)

TREERME (&)

—RIT R (&)

REREBH - AREFER I AERE
TRTANGEERRETRELN - &
TRHER - ARER SR T AR HRE A H
HAMENRRESB T ARRER B
HIBAMBORRETHLR  AEREF
BERAEBZHANABZAEARNERLY
BH BRELRAELEER

LEKRERENS AREERKEE
REEE REREAH  AEEHER
—YIBACETVLEXRASENAAF 2
REBAEANER - FHEREFIERE
EERER/EFREERR - R -
AEEEHFHRUAARENINBEER
AEAR o tESh - A RBRB B ARER - Al
AEERBEERBRARE LT

& FHRIBCD B0 A RER » RMIANEER
REMEEERN - A EETHRT -
i A EB SN ERE B R BR - At AR E
AREMEERAEERN  ARETKA
EFBWBREESRKE - AIAKE IR
ARBETMEEELN - MELZSEAMK
EAEFRRERE  RIMHESREE -

2021 %
A

LEAE 7 (BR) BRAHE 193



/f

/D

/ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR T aE

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—#1+=-HA=+4+—H

2.4

194

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Receivables financing and financial assets at amortised cost are

subject to impairment under the general approach and they are

classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs
except for trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED

2AEEETHERRBE (A)

EMEERE (&)

—RT = (&)
FEUWGRIAR B R A HX AT EN SR E
ERBE—RITAATHE - LRAT R
ERMEERBENERS R HERMBL
AR TXHL) NEEEZERARARE
EERRSN ©

1 — eRIANGEERRENIERR
WARBELN BEEEBFERAS
R12EARBEEERERE

B2 — eRTANGEERRBNIERR
BEEM HEYHCELECER
ENEREE  AEBRBFERAS
RNERABRBEEBRSEE

B3 — SREENHREAHAEERE (1
HYFBELAREELEEREN
SRTHR) BEERBRASINE
RARHEESRSEE

L%

RTESBREREANBY RIHAKEE
ATIHAERRZREEANT O ENERE
HHENERE SRR AEEERML
FATEEHEEEBR - REGLE - £AF
BYEEREERRNES  RMNXEH
SHHEREFRABHEEERERE
BEE - AREERBENEEEBHER
B BYBEREM  UREBARLER
B ERTE MR =IEL A -



C\

\\\

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS\

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payable, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and derivative
financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest

rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk. Those
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when
the hedged item affects profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Cost of moulds is determined at the actual cost
incurred in the production process. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

INCOME TAX
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS\

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group sells products to a customer who is also the supplier
of key materials used in the manufacturing of products. The Group
obtains the control of the materials purchased from the customer
and provides significant services to integrate materials with
other goods and services into a portfolio of outputs. The Group
considered itself as a principal in the arrangement and accordingly
recognises revenue on a gross basis.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery and acceptance of the goods.

(b) Provision for services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised over the
scheduled period on an input method because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS\,

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Medical benefits

The Group’s contributions to various defined contribution medical
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC are expensed as incurred.

Pension scheme — Mainland China

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries, which operate in
Mainland China, are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Pension scheme — outside Mainland China

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution plans organised by the relevant governmental
authorities in various areas other than Mainland China. The
Group’s liability in respect of these plans is limited to the
contributions payable at the end of each period. Contributions to
these plans are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Housing fund — Mainland China

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to a defined
contribution housing fund plan operated by the local municipal
government. Contributions to this plan by the Group are expensed
as incurred.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final
dividends are disclosed in the note 37 to the financial statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS\

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

The Group treats specific inter-company loan balances, which are
not intended to be repaid in the foreseeable future, as part of its
net investment. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date
on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration.
If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at
the dates of the transactions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Principal versus agent considerations

The Group sells products to a customer who is also the supplier
of key materials used in the manufacturing of products. The
Group needs to determine whether it is a principal or an agent
in these transactions by evaluating the nature of its promise to
the customer. The Group is a principal and therefore records
revenue on a gross basis if it controls promised goods before
transferring the goods to the customer. Otherwise, the Group is
an agent and records as revenue the net amount that it retains for
its agency services if its role is to arrange to provide the goods.
To assess whether the Group controls the goods before they are
transferred to the customer, the Group has considered various
factors, including but not limited to whether the Group is (i) the
primary obligor in the arrangement, (i) has general inventory
risk, (i) has latitude in establishing the selling price and (iv) has
significant involvement in the determination of product and service
specifications.

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED

2AEEETHERRBE (A)

ShE ()
BREELAWNELZBNEMER S Kk
R ARFFAER KB R o HERINE
B BEZBERIEBHEMEE K
;A D BN IR R ER o

WERINEBELENERHE RS EKE
EENEENRBERAEFELNEMAA
BEAE AGEREIXBNEERER

fE - WREHERRE -
EEET ARG

RAEAKENVERERBEREEEFELF
WA X BERABNBRESESER
Ht S RBEARKRAEREOHE - A
At R - REBR LG AL TAME - 7
EEEHLRREHHRIZENEEN
BEMNKREEFHENHE -

F

REBAEE ST BRNBED » BRP Rk
HYBHRANERRTBBNREAZE
MEFTIEB SN - BEEECFHL A T HIE

FTEEFANBAEAZEFR
AEERBEREPHER R % EPRAK
th 2 P an BUE B AR TP E A A RIS RO £
BE - AKRETEBEBTEEE TP A%
MO ERABEEZERFTREIER
FEABERREA - HAKRERAEPEER
BmA s AEER  MATERER
A BMAEBBEELZERA - A
AEESREA - HRAT S ERER
BmRENFE(KERETRLTHREHRR
m) e RFEARERTERRERRER
ZEEFEmR  AREEEESERE
BRETNERAKERE()EXH LT
MEBRMTA - ()RBEFEN—RER -
(i) A#EE DREESEMN(vV)HEmIE DL
RIGRBAEAIRA o



C\

\\\

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS\

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Deferred tax on withholding tax arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for withholding
taxes arising from the distributions of dividends from certain
subsidiaries levied in the relevant tax jurisdiction is subject to
judgement on the timing of the payment of the dividends. Further
details are included in note 27 to the financial statements.

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on aging for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are

analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use
assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Depreciation

The Group calculates the depreciation of items of property, plant
and equipment on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives after taking into account their estimated residual value,
estimated useful lives, commencing from the date the items of
property, plant and equipment are placed into use. The estimated
useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the period that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
the Group’s items of property, plant and equipment.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing, and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are included in note 27 to the financial
statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Write-down of inventories based on the lower of cost and net
realisable value

The Group, pursuant to the accounting policy for inventories,
writes down inventories from cost to net realisable value and
makes provision for slow-moving items and obsolescence by using
the lower of cost and net realisable value rule. The Group makes
estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion, and the
costs to be incurred in disposal based on the historical experience
and the prevailing market conditions.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

3.

B S R 2R Y

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

FESEHE R A (&)

fEEr T RERER (&)

WRIZH AR T EFFEME B2 EAEEM
HFE

REFESHEE  AEEERATHF
S ER #IRFE - I KA K 7] #
BEEMETREEEFHNERZERE
HEE - AEEERNBELRLRITH
o EEREE - ERERARHEELK
o

HE — (HEEERFIE

AR A T AR S R
R AR SRR (EERER
AR DHEREAE  BEERNEA
AR B R B LUE B R B EE RUE R
AEBEBLZEE  TIXALERRR
AR AR AL EXN 2RI - @
e - R R BT ARE B
BRI - 3 A T R )R (AR A
HYRERSZHEAANE) REAL
PSR 1T S B DA ST B2 B R B
(AT I VAN 2 I B S 1B
F) - BUAfRIR AR - B TREHABRET
R - A RE R TEE S ARE (0TS
FI) HEIE R EHAIE - WA TRE
BIEHE T (a3 (PIMHE D AN BB
) -

2021 %
A

LEAE 7 (BR) BRAHE 207



% :

/ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR T aE

31 DECEMBER 2021 —E=—4%#1+=-H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFIEFR
The Group’s primary business is the manufacture, assembly and REENEEXZBREE  HERHEETF
sale of mobile handset components, modules and other products. MEY  RARHMER - RETER -
For management purposes, the Group is organised into one AEBIZITHEENREREEERSRIEAE
operating segment based on industry practice and management’s RA—REEESE - BEEERAEER
vertical integration strategy. Management monitors the results of BREENUGRERS BERRBAFEELR
the Group as a whole for the purpose of making decisions about Ko BiEE—DPRU 2RO - DRI
resource allocation and performance assessment. No further RIRURA R BR T AT e A (ERZN &2 B A U A K
analysis thereof is presented. Segment performance is evaluated BRFR BT Al — B0 714 o
based on the revenue and profit before tax which is consistent
with the Group’s revenue and profit before tax.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION WEFE
(@) KEINREFHKA

(a) Revenue from external customers

PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)

2021
—E_—F

RMB’000
ARBFR

2020
—E-FF

RMB’000
ARETIT

RE(BREES BN EE 41,222,478 51,105,296
Overseas &4k 47,834,500 22,015,779
89,056,978 73,121,075

The revenue information above is based on the locations of

the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)

LB ABR T IREFHRED o

(b) FwBEE

2021
—E_—F

RMB’000
ARET T

2020
—E-FF
RMB’000
ARETIT

R (REEE  BPFIRAE 12,455,222 11,231,125
Overseas /&9 718,471 261,490
13,173,693 11,492,615

FRAFERBHEEEMTDREERE D -
HERFT MR ERE - MHRIERAAEMH
ERSBEERREE ©

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes equity investments, loan
to the ultimate holding company and deferred tax assets.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years accounting
for over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as follows:

Customer A' EFA'
Customer B! &F B!

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —F=—4+=A=+—FH
4. BEIHEHR (&)
TERFER

EEFE  RAGEAEERAHEER10%H
BEWOR :

2021
—E_—F

RMB’000
ARBT R

34,663,598
22,635,933

57,299,531

2020
—E-FF

RMB’000
ARBTT

Customer A' EFA" 19,236,410
Customer B! &F B! 14,541,686
Customer C' &F C' 13,995,132
Customer D' 2FE D! 7,567,356

55,340,584

U Revenue from major customers comes from the sale of mobile

handset components, modules and other products.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers = F & RUA

T EEZPHBARABNEEFHRIEE R
HEEMER

5. LA - Htl A R W=

WARI DTN

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

89,056,978 73,121,075

2021 5% /
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA - Httg A K Wz (48)
(Continued)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS EFERKA
() Disaggregated revenue information () FEELAEF

For the year ended
31 December 2021
BE-F——F

+=B=t-ALFE

2021 2020

Segments 7B —E-—fF —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Types of goods or services & 7 = R 5 3 B!
Sale of mobile handset components, modules and other products*

FHEE - BANEMEREE 88,976,161 73,058,147
Rendering of services ARFSIE 80,817 62,928
Total revenue from contracts with customers &F & R A 4258 89,056,978 73,121,075

Geographical markets #2115
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau, and Taiwan)

FE(BIEEE  BFREE 41,222,478 51,105,296
Overseas /&4h 47,834,500 22,015,779
Total revenue from contracts with customers & F & R A 42%8 89,056,978 73,121,075
Timing of revenue recognition Y A 75265 S

Goods transferred at a point in time &R 2hEZE 2 § 5 88,976,161 73,058,147
Services transferred over time A —EX BB 2 IR 80,817 62,928
Total revenue from contracts with customers &F & R A 42%8 89,056,978 73,121,075

*

Y OBEPEERNEEESETHREBME R

The sale of medical protection products is included in the sale of

mobile handset components, modules and other products. AN EMEREER ©
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised TREREAREHB 2 WAERSE
in the current reporting period that were included in the ERgE Byt AaREaE,RRBEEM
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and NE TR ZBLHEFEPER :
recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous
periods:

2021 2020
—2-—F| -—T_TH

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period: Rk & BT A AR B&EZ WARER -
Sale of mobile handset components, modules and other products*
FHEM - EEAREMEREE 359,075 412,913
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Continued)
(i) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December 2021 are as follows:

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

. WA Bt AR W ()

EFaRWA (&)

(i)

BRIEE
AEBZBEHEETERBAINT -

R-FE-_—F+=-_A=+—HBHEEZE
BRINBHEME(CRERKI D RERK)
MR ZEUT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET ARETFT
VAT exclusive | VAT exclusive
FEEEH NEER

Within one year —%F A 469,713 336,545
After one year —&F A 14,890 69,210
484,603 405,755

Other income E ik A

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETFF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT

Bank interest income R7T 7 B U A 65,987 32,418
Other interest income E b &5 Ug A 13,611 18,050
Sale of scrap and materials & L & ¥kt 407,657 286,252
Compensation from suppliers and customers /&R & & F R 5 E 67,828 65,066
Others Hfih 101,680 83,332
656,763 485,118

2021 5% /
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRFLATRF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBEKRKRIDEFNER (GFA) T7&
Ig :

2021 2020

—B=-—-F —E-TEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET T ARET T

Cost of inventories sold* T & 15 & HIBK A 82,634,600 63,430,864

Cost of services provided® 12 K IR A AN 72,602 58,021

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - B= LR EITE 13 2,255,103 1,755,207

Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# FAEEETE 14(a) 298,053 282,188
Research and development costs: 5T ERFHZE A 7N :

Current year expenditure 2N E [ 52 3,308,296 2,913,274
Lease payments not included in the measurement of

lease liabilities W ARt AHE B Bt 2MHEERE 14(c) 126,324 157,096

Auditors’ remuneration 4% £k & %7 B 1,440 1,440

Amortisation of other intangible assets** -t 4 7 & e ## §it## 16 3,850 4,734

Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’, supervisors’ and
senior executive officers’ remuneration (note 33(c))):

BERANAX (TERES - EERSMITHRABFHM (HEE33(c)) :

— Wages and salaries L& & 3 i 8,977,678 9,575,879
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions & k& |51 &4 3K 603,481 409,833
9,581,159 9,985,712
Impairment of trade receivables, net** &I E 5 BR ZUREIF E#* 19 (8,148) 698
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value®###
T S MOR ZE AT B IR R e 320,611 3,347
Impairment of other receivables, net E fth & Uk BE TR B F 58 271 (1,642)
Impairment of receivables financing, net &M FXIE fl & H) Rl (B F 58 92 90
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
HEME - BERREHEBNER 21,883 83,536
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: A7 f&E (Wzs), /BB - FE
Derivative instruments $74 T H (587) (948)
Other non-current financial assets £ IERENE g E E 178 (6,288)
Foreign exchange losses, net [&E 518 - jF{E 15,806 243,450
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 6. F?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘i%ﬂ (#&)
*  Cost of inventories sold represents “Cost of sales” in the consolidated HEFTENKAEGHIBERERP [HEK
statement of profit or loss after excluding write-down of inventories to KN TREFEMBZA 2R FE
net realisable value
# |ncluded in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement o BETASHEERMTRAX ]
of profit or loss
## |ncluded in “Impairment losses on financial assets, net” in the M BEARMIERRN [ EREERBEREEF
consolidated statement of profit or loss %
## |Included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss it B ASPHEERM [ SHEKZ ]
GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES 7. BB R,

2021 2020
—B-—F —EB_FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT

Related to assets E2¥& = 1HEE

Others E At 63,041 81,072

Related to income E2UR A FE[E3

Subsidies on industrial development (note (a)) 172 E w85 (M5 () 369,281 2,851

Subsidies on research (note (b)) A4 EL (BT E(b)) 13,812 90,175

Subsidies on employee stability and training (note (c))

1B B 1€ RIEFImAL (M () 43,998 95,720

Subsidies on operating expense & & {7 5z B4 63,636 71,485

Others HAth 31,493 50,454
585,261 391,757

20215% /
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —E=—4%#1+=-H=+—H

7. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES 7. BB R AL ()
(Continued)
Notes: Ktat -
(@) The item represents subsidy income obtained by subsidiaries of the (@) ZEEIEAEEZEMNEB AR B BT
Group from the government for industrial development. Relevant BHMAEWA  AREEXREE - R4 H
expenditures incurred during the reporting period were recognised as BEAMNEBRE Y CERSBITMEL -

government subsidies.

(b) The item represents subsidy income obtained by subsidiaries of (b) ZIBE HeAEE % KB A 7 B TR
the Group from the government for Research and Development BB A - AR o RIRE
expenses. Relevant expenditures incurred during the reporting period M S B R AT o

were recognised as government subsidies.

(c) The item represents subsidy income obtained by subsidiaries of the (c) ZBEEASBEZHENEARRBRMTIE
Group from the government for maintaining employee stability and WA A - (ERBREEREIATRIIRE
expansion and training. Relevant expenditures incurred during the A - RIREHEEENHBERIERAK
reporting period were recognised as government subsidies. fI AL ©

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMA

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as REFBELEHRMEKARDHAT

follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Interest on bank borrowings $£17 & 5K Fl &2 14,850 35,356
Interest on lease liabilities A& & EF & 28,479 35,977
43,329 71,333
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

9. EERZETHRASHMH

FANESERERTHABNTMER EH
A (BB REEGI)E383(1)(@) * (b)
) (g - ARAF (HEEEFEER)
BOE2HHTRAOT -

2021 2020

—B-—F —EFF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Fees 8% 600 600
Other emoluments: E b Zr Bl

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & ~ 285 MBIz 12,121 15,432

Pension scheme contributions (B A4 =t 2|4t 5k 56 44

12,177 15,476

12,777 16,076

There were no discretionary bonuses or compensation paid for
loss of office or as inducement to join the Company for directors
during the year (2020: Nil).

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year were as follows:

FABERE S D A BB IEAL SRR
MEIMARRANER(ZFT_FF
&)

(@) BILIFMITES

REAXNTHBIFRATEETNES
T

2021 2020

—B=—F —E-TEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Mr. Mampilly, Antony Francis Antony Francis Mampilly /4 200 200
Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John $E B %t & 200 200
Mr. Qian Jing-jie 5L 4E 200 200
600 600

There was no other emolument payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2020: Nil).

RAFE  BEERABIIFATES
XHEMEM(ZT_FF : &) -

202153 /
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —E=—4%#1+=-H=+—H
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

e
RMB’000
AR® T

31 December 2021
—E-—%+=ZA=+—H

Executive directors: #{TE= :

9. EEREZETHRASHM (F)

(b) BITESRIFNTES

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

e EZUR
BYF =
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Pension
scheme
contributions
BrRE

T AR
RMB’000
AR®T T

Total
remuneration

FEfeE
RMB’000
AR® T

Mr. Wang Nian-giang /358 %4 - 8,060 28 8,088
Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong JT [A148 % 4 - 4,061 28 4,089
- 12,121 56 12,177
Non-executive directors: JFHTESE :
Mr. Wang Chuan-fu EE4gE4 - - - -
Mr. Wang Bo T4 4E - - - -
31 December 2020
—ECTFE+-_HA=+—H
Executive directors: $i{TE % :
Mr. Wang Nian-giang /&8 %4 - 10,491 22 10,513
Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong /T [A158 50 4 - 4,941 22 4,963
- 15,432 44 15,476

e

Non-executive directors: JEEITESE -
Mr. Wang Chuan-fu &g 4 =
Mr. Wang Bo T4t 4 =

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2020: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2020: three) non-directors and highest paid
employees are as follows:

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

10. A8 BREFHHES

RAFER AERSHFHMEEREMA

TECTF MB)EF HEMFEBH
REMMEY - REFEBK =R (ZF_F
F:ZR)FRESRESFTMEBNFTMHF
IBEIIEAT

2021
—E-—F

2020
—E-FF

RMB’000
ARBEFT

RMB’000
ARBT T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ ~ 28 R EWHIZ= 7,285 8,715
Pension scheme contributions E R4 5T 2] 7k 84 47
7,369 8,762

There were no discretionary bonuses or compensation paid for
loss of office or as inducement to join the Company for the above
highest paid employees during the year (2020: Nil).

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

B ) Ll B R B S TR
IBTEAT kR B 78 (B S MDA AR 2 R0 52 (=
ToTF &)

BUTHMHNEENEESETSHIMEE A
g /(i N

Number of employees

RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 A K #2,500,0017T% A E#3,000,0007T 2 3
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 A E#2,000,001 7% AR #2,500,0007T 1 =
3 3

202153 /
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1.

218

#4=A=+—F

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are
subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25%
on their respective taxable income during the year.

BYD Precision renewed its status of a high and new technology
enterprise in 2021, and was entitled to a reduced enterprise
income tax rate of 15% from 2021 to 2023.

Huizhou Electronic renewed its status of a high and new
technology enterprise in 2021, and was entitled to a reduced

enterprise income tax rate of 15% from 2021 to 2023.

Xi'an Electronic which operates in Mainland China was entitled
to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year pursuant to the Western
Development Policy.

Shantou Electronic was approved to be a high and new
technology enterprise in 2020, and was entitled to a reduced

enterprise income tax rate of 15% from 2020 to 2022.

BYD India is subject to income tax at a rate of 26% (2020: 26%).

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. 88 (&)
The major components of the income tax expense for the year are FHNAMEREAZHEZHKID
as follows: s 8

2021 2020
—B=-—-F —E-TEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT

Current — China BE — &

Charge for the year & Rz 264,536 326,041
Current — Elsewhere B8 — H b [& 1,040 100
Deferred (note 27) i{EiE (FizE27) (110,165) 453,290
Total tax charge for the year F AT IE 7 4258 155,411 779,431
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax BHRARAR A REKRKIBDHE AR RAE
at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and B ERE R IR B R E BB L B 5 A B9
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense MIEY HERERMETENFIES B ¥
at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate B UARERABRR (EEEMRR) BER
(i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows: REBRIAT -

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTF T
Profit before tax Bx%¢ A% A 2,465,293 6,220,802
Tax at the applicable tax rate 3% i@ A KT E R FIA 616,323 25.0 1,555,201 25.0
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or enacted by
local authority &7 & 17 3 & 3 R & hts ~ BUE B (257,408) (10.4)  (585,129) (9.4)
Expenses not deductible for tax 7~ ] 15 &9 B 52 26,851 1.1 17,748 0.3
Super-deduction of research and development costs
Tt 5% B B B AN R RR 4R ] (293,809) (11.9)  (210,455) (3.4)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods
EARAE M IEEE (53,437) (2.2) (9,644) 0.2)
Tax losses and deductible differences not recognised
AERTEBER R AR ER 116,891 4.7 11,710 0.2
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate
BRASEERHXRAENHIE L 155,411 6.3 779,431 12.5
202145 7
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —E=—4%#1+=-H=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. B AT EREREE )N ELEESR
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BR
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for the Emﬁ§g$%%ljﬂ$ﬁﬂiﬁq@ﬂﬂgﬁﬂﬁ
year is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary XA AREERNREND /T ERR
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of In#EE19 802,253,204, 5ooﬂX (—E—-F
ordinary shares of 2,253,204,500 (2020: 2,253,204,500) in issue £ : 2,253,204,5000%) & °

during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share Bz - —@®#p-—_F-_T&+ - A

amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 5+—E|JJ:¢E : #}%%ﬁﬁ = E;Eﬂéﬂﬁk‘:'

2020 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially | BIREAEF  DEAAREBRZZAE

dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years. EWEFE LB S Es ENDRITEEm
B e

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: FRERBFIZ TEESE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBETT

Earnings 27|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
used in the basic earnings per share calculation
BRAESRERZNNG R AT ERERTE ARE ST 2,309,882 5,441,371

Number of shares
&8 E

Shares 1%
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

used in the basic earnings per share calculation

FARETESRERRFNFAE BT E R INEFHE 2,253,204,500 2,253,204,500
\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.43% - BERRE

Freehold Machinery Office
land and Leasehold and equipment Motor | Construction
buildings | improvements equipment | and fixtures | vehicles in progress Total

KARE HAzZ

THRET | RENRKE | RERRE | RERER L ERIRE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 | RMB'000 RMB'000 [ RMB'000
ARRTR ARBTR | ARMTR | ARMTR | ARMTR | ARMTR | ARMTR

31 December 2021 —5=-5+=A=1-H

At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021:
RZSZEE+A=T-ARZE--5-A-A:

Cost A 1,539,435 1,106,298 16,755,545 1,421,264 46,778 432,312 21,301,632
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 25147 & JsifE (334,959) (357,089)  (10,026,277) (862,002)  (28,584) - (11,608,911)
Net carrying amount ¥ /& 1,204,476 749,209 6,729,268 559,262 18,194 432,312 9,692,721
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated depreciation and

impaiment R=F=—%-A—H ' IR E:THERAE 1,204,476 749,200 6,729,268 550,262 18,194 432312 9,692,721
Additions 275 11,872 348,558 2,093,117 333,986 12,886 1,014,270 3,814,689
Disposals {tiE - - (57,765) (6,678) (1,458) - (65,901)
Depreciation provided during the year F R & & (47,297) (244,292) (1,718,807) (238,523) (6,184) - (2,255,103)
Exchange realignment & 5 % (4,549) - 233 (201) (24) (327) (4,868)
Transfers &3 219,121 - 384,850 333 - (604,310) -

At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment

R-E--E+-A=1-F REHERAE 1,383,629 853,475 7,430,896 648,179 23,414 841,045 11,181,538

At 31 December 2021: R=E-—£+-A=+-F:

Cost Fi & 1,763,237 1,454,856 19,007,643 1,701,460 56,204 841,945 24,915,345

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 23H7E RsiE (379,608) (601,381)  (11,666,747)  (1,053,281)  (32,790) - (13,733,807)

Net carrying amount & ¥/ 1,383,629 853,475 7,430,896 648,179 23,414 841,945 11,181,538
2021 5% /
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13.¥% - BER & (&)

Freehold Machinery 0

and and Leasehold and equipment Motor  Construction
buildings improvements equipment xtures vehicles in progress
KAgh

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTTE ARETR ARETTE  ARETR

3§ BERGE  EE IR i

31 December 2020 Z2=F£+ =18

At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020:
RZB-NFTZA=t-AR=E-Z5-A-H:

Cost A 1,509,122 820,340 15,419,262 1,302,629 40,082 368,066 19,450,001
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Z&H47& sifE (296,083) (212,684) (9,398,507) (900,809) (24,550) - (10,832,583)
Net carrying amount ¥/ 1,213,089 607,656 6,020,755 401,820 15,532 368,566 8,617,418
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated depreciation and

mpairment R=E_F£-A—H  NRZHTERAE 1,213,089 607,656 6,020,755 401820 15532 358566 8617418
Additions 75 16,393 285,958 2,008,780 388,926 8,619 235,997 2,944,673
Disposals {tiE = - (86,822) (14,034) (345) (929) (102,124)
Depreciation provided during the year F AT &R (45,082 (144,405 (1,332,569 (27619 (553) - (1785207)
Exchange realignment & 5 % (12,159) - 689 (111) (74) (384) (12,039)
Transfers &:2 32,235 - 118,435 10,274 - (160,944) -

At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated depreciation
and impairment

R-E-FEL-A=1-F MREHERAE 104,476 749,209 6,729,268 559,262 18,194 432312 9,692,721

At 31 December 2020; R=B-FE+-F=+-F:

Cost & 1539,435 1106298 16,755,545 141,064 46,778 432312 21,301,632

Accumulated depreciation and impairment Z&47& R sifE (334,959) (357,089 (10,026,277) (862,002  (28,584) - (11,608,911)

Net carrying amount (& 1,204,476 749,209 6,729,268 559,262 18,194 432312 969,721
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I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 — & ——#+_-H=41+—H
14. LEASES 14.8HE
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE AKEBEREEA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold
land, buildings and machinery and other equipment used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 44 to 99
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease
terms between 1 and 20 years. Machinery and other equipment
generally have lease terms of 1 to 5 years and/or are individually
of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and

the movements during the year are as follows:

AEEREQEFERANZBEE L
BF  BESREKEPHANEMBRER
FITHEAR - REZFIMHEGRNK -
RAEFWERE T (HHR44F995)
RIEfEH —RMEMR - WEEEETHON
R BFHENHEE —RB/1E20%F - #
BREMBENER-RB/IESF R
HERNEEREK - —RME - ARETF
EAKEINEZELBERHESE -

(@) EAREEE
RER - ARBEERAELENREE
REBHWT

Machinery

Leasehold and other
land Buildings equipment Total
et BT | AEREMRE Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR AR®TR
As at 1 January 2020 R=Z-_Z&—fA—H 485,642 693,154 4,494 1,183,290
Additions 7 102,856 208,321 - 311,177
Disposals 1% (8,787) = (8,787)
Depreciation charge FTER % (12,424) (268,656) (1,108) (282,188)
Exchange realignment [ 7 3% (1,961) (142) 118 (1,985)

As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
RZE-TF+-A=+—HK=ZE=—F—HF—H 574,113 623,890 3,504 1,201,507
Additions 37 111,817 61,753 268 173,838
Disposals (1% - (18,124) - (13,124)
Depreciation charge f &% (13,021) (283,986) (1,046) (298,053)
Exchange realignment [ %, 3% (759) (1,818) (350) (2,927)
As at 31 December 2021 R=E=—F+=-A=+—H 672,150 386,715 2,376 1,061,241
202158,
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14. LEASES (Continued)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

14.78E (&)
AKEBEREBA (F)

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Carrying amount at 1 January A— A — B/ ERHEE 735,580 752,092

New leases ¥t E 41,520 190,209

Accretion of interest recognised during the year 9 AR RERFI S H) 18 10 28,479 35,977

Payments 155X (295,814) (242,698)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ =8 =+—HKKREE 509,765 735,580
Analysed into: DA :

Current portion ;7R E)E8 5 135,990 330,984

Non-current portion JERE)EE 7 373,775 404,596

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

HERENIHMASTRA G ER
KM L6 NIKEE o

() HBHEEFBAIRBam AN EET -

2021 2020

—B=—F —E-TEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities & & &5 8 28,479 35,977

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 1 & ENITER X 298,053 282,188

Expense relating to short-term leases

B S AR X 124,854 156,529
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets

HEEBEEEHEFANAX 1,470 567

Total amount recognised in profit or loss Bz MER A AE & 58 452,856 475,261
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14. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

THE GROUP AS A LESSOR

The Group leases certain of its properties and vehicles under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was RMB30,419,000 (2020: RMB13,079,000).

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

14.78 (&)

AKEEEREBA (F)
(d) FHEMBE 2 7HRE G Z N
31 H5E o

AEEERBEAA

AEBRBEEHERBHBE S T
REH - HEKRRK —RERKEFL KM H
- WARERERRTTSMA R R ERA
LHE - AEERFREIANESWKAR
AR®30,419,000t (ZZEZFF : AR
#13,079,0007T) °

RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H  XxEER
EREAEFH B Y A B A8 & T & A R 2R
MM ARITEEWREEMKAT

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARETFIT
VAT not VAT not
inclusive inclusive
(TEEZES) (((TeIELER)
Within one year —% A 14,801 13,912
After one year but within five years —F & B R FR 439 8,227
15,240 22,139
2021 5% /
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15. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 15. 784 FE - HtEWRR R EME
OTHER ASSETS E

31 December | 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_THF

+=A=+-RA [+t=A=t+—~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR | ARETI

Non-current portion: 3ER B35 :
Prepayments for items of property, plant and equipment

M - BB kR EIEE AN FIE 921,156 589,473
Current portion: REI 5 :
Deposits and other receivables &4 & £ b /& U BR =X 1,591,553 1,197,704
Impairment allowance Ji B # & (316) (45)
1,591,237 1,197,659
Prepayments — current B3 TE — R &) 65,442 33,622
1,656,679 1,231,281
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to LiESRANFTBENE/REE A BELR
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and HA T 48 #B /K FX IE N2 360 A 2R I =0 8% B FE W BR
past due amounts. At 31 December 2021, an impairment loss of KRR —_BE-_—F+=-_HA=+—8 "' Bt
RMB316,000 (2020: RMB45,000) has been provided. RBEBEARKSI16,0000(ZE=F

= AR#450007T) °
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2021 —E=-—%+=-H=+—H
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

16. b BILEE

Software

Lo

RMB’000
ARBFT

Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated amortisation

RZZEZ—F—A—BHAA - ks E5TEH 8,914
Additions &7 4,694
Amortisation provided during the year = A & &4 i (3,850)
At 31 December 2021 R=ZZE—_—F+_-_A=+—H 9,758
At 31 December 2021: A-ZZE-_—F+_-_A=+—8 :

Cost A2 37,320
Accumulated amortisation 2t & (27,562)
Net carrying amount BREFE 9,758

31 December 2020 —ZE_-_Z&+_-H=+—H

Software

LSS

RMB’000
ARETT

Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated amortisation

REZZEZTF—A—BHA - ks 25TEH 10,866
Additions 7R 2,782
Amortisation provided during the year = A & 58 (4,734)
At 31 December 2020 R—ZE_ZEF+_-_A=+—H 8,914
At 31 December 2020: W-_Z-_ZTF+_-A=+—H :

Cost F 7~ 39,673
Accumulated amortisation 25t & (30,759)
Net carrying amount BREFE 8,914

2021 5% /
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17. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 17.HERBISREE

2021 2020

—B-—f —_E_TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Listed equity investments, at fair value EiiERKRE @ LARBETE 14,415 14,693
Other unlisted investments, at fair value M IE EHIRE - LALBEE 155,800 =
170,215 14,593
The above equity investments at 31 December 2021 were i%ﬁﬁ(\\:g:—i‘i’:ﬁ E—?—\_ H A &
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as *X;éfﬁ’ﬁﬁu@ﬁE{EEfEEEJr)\TEEE}‘J
the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss EREAE - WHARARELRERRER
t oY SSEE -

through other comprehensive income. T ARAMAR & Wm0 A o B E R B

A
18. INVENTORIES 18.%7 8

2021 2020

—E-—F —E_TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Raw materials [R#1#} 2,402,959 1,331,479
Work in progress £ 5 317,267 38,505
Finished goods & i 7,835,802 5,515,263
Moulds held for production B fft £ Z FE & 11,221 6,110
10,567,249 6,891,357
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 10. B E FRX
2021 2020
. —EET
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETFIT
Trade receivables JEWE 5 IR 9,279,580 14,502,826
Impairment JE{E (39,231) (111,360)
9,240,349 14,391,466

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit.
The credit period is generally two to three months. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had a certain concentration of credit risk as
18% (2020: 32%) and 44% (2020: 59%) of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers, respectively. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

REFREXPHEZGERRNZBRER
XN EEHRTAME=—(AR - BREF
HAREERERTE - AEBBKRERIKE
WEKRESRERBREEES  UREERE
HIFPFIUR D EERR - S REEE TS
HEBBER c NIEHR - ARAEE
18% (ZZ =T F : 32%) N44% (=ZF =
T 59%) WIEE RN D Bl AAEE
BABEPRAARFE R  BMIAEBEHER
ETEESTRERE - A& B3 &3 HE W
B o BRRERTEE A E R M EIME
E o [EIRE SRR TITFALE o

RBEBR - BREEZRFIIREZEHR
RREEBRERORESITOT -

2021 2020
—B=—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTTT
Within 90 days 90K 8,730,521 13,787,063
91 to 180 days 91 =180k 507,384 587,382
181 to 360 days 181 = 360K 2,444 17,021
9,240,349 14,391,466

202158,
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 10. BN E SRS ()
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade e E 5 BE 2R E M B R R S EE 5 1
receivables are as follows: T
2021 2020
—B=-—-F —E-TEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥ET T
At beginning of year %] 111,360 117,160
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment losses, net
CREBIERE), RERSIEFE (8,148) 698
Amount written off as uncollectible J¥h &% 4% Uk [ #) 7RI (63,981) (6,498)
At end of the year REF R 39,231 111,360
There are no significant changes in the loss allowance. EEREEERNES) -
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a RNEHmE B HARBEEREBEETRES
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision W UErEEHEEEE - BEXEREA
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various ERUBERXANSEFHIZERER S
customer segments with similar loss patterns by product type. HEBEIRE - ZErE R T B E A
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the R EERBEEENSRS BB ESH
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information BRBEEMN - 2RI KRR BRI
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current FERMAREA S FEER - — KM= @ fE
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, WE SRR NEHAER —F BN HEE
trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one year 8 - BT AN -

and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 10. EIRE Z IR (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on AT S5 A& E W E 5 R E R EE
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: EHEERRER
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--%+Z-A=+—H

Aging as at 31 December 2021
R-BZ-F£+ZA=1+-ANEKR

Within 90 days | 91 to 180 days |181 to 360 days Over 1 year
90HMA 91HZ%180H | 181HZ360H 150

Expected credit loss rate TBHEEBBER 0.21% 0.21% 0.21% 100.00% 0.42%

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BREI&E (ARETT) 8,748,850 508,450 2,449 19,831 9,279,580

Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEIEE B (AR T ) 18,329 1,066 5 19,831 39,231
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZEF+A=+—H

Agmg as at 31 December 2020

ET_A=T—- Bk
Within 90 days | 91 to 180 days | 181 to 360 days Over 1 year
90AM [ 91HZ180F | 181HZ360R 1ENE
Expected credit loss rate TE#i{E & EHE X 0.15% 0.18% 0.19% 100.00% 0.77%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) SR E£A(E (ARET ) 13,808,229 588,442 17,053 89,102 14,502,826
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEIEE &2 (AR T ) 21,166 1,060 32 89,102 111,360
The net carrying amount of due from the holding companies and ExmEEKIEZERATIERZB AT Z
fellow subsidiaries included in the above are as follows: BEEDEEWT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Due from the ultimate holding company & & 4232 i% /A =] 7118 159,650 156,295
Due from the intermediate holding company J&H F /T 12 A% A &) 508 150,390 132,893
Due from fellow subsidiaries F& Y[R Z M8 A 713IE 1,380,173 3,559,639
Due from other related parties %H&Eﬂﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬂlﬁ 2,899 6,390
1,693,112 3,855,217
The balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and on credit EEATIEIKIR B BHEEE K
terms similar to those offered to the major customers of the A AN & BRBIRMERS
Group.
2021% % /
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20. RECEIVABLES FINANCING 20. Bl IERE
2021 2020
—®_—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Bank acceptance bills #2177 21 349,350 88,777
Trade receivables JEUX 2 5 B8R 3K 2,647,025 =
2,996,375 88,777
Less: other comprehensive income — change in fair value
w o Ethige s —AnBEZS 9,211 377
2,987,164 88,400
The Company has changed the business model for a portion NN B A5 FE W R TE A H 264 FE URBR S e S
of its receivables to target both to receive the contractual cash BEREE SRR HNRERBR S RE
flows when due and the sales. Accordingly, this portion of the BEENNUHEEAEBRE - Bt » B3
receivables is classified as a financial asset at fair value through EWEZSEAUAARBEFEL T AH
other comprehensive income (which can be reclassified to profit or iz S Wz (2R EHFoEEER)
loss in subsequent periods). REREE °
The Group reclassified bills receivable into financial assets at REBBEIKEZEEHDEZUAALBE
fair value through other comprehensive income, presented as HEViAEMGEAEWEZNEREE 2
receivables financing. As of 31 December 2021, the accumulated ) AEEKZERE HE_ZT - —Ft+—
impairment provision for receivables financing provided by the A=+—H  AN&EEpEWRZERE TR
Group was RMB264,000 (31 December 2020: RMB173,000). St piERE ARE264,000T (ZE=F

F+-_HA=+—H : AR¥173,0007T) °
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21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

N.RERBRITERUARZREBITF

=h
TA

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETFT

Cash and bank balances I & R1T 4% 2,824,741 3,465,889
Time deposits & Hi7F 3K 353,745 487
3,178,486 3,466,376

Less: Pledged deposit j& : B #EIFFR (i) (351,244) (487)
Restricted bank deposits 2[R il $R 1717 3K (ii) (2,501) -

Cash and cash equivalents ¥4 NI & ZEY (iii) 2,824,741 3,465,889

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(il)

At 31 December 2021, bank deposits of RMB351,244,000 (2020:
RMB487,000) was pledged for guarantee credit.

The balance of restricted bank deposits as at 31 December 2021
mainly represented the balance of a guarantee deposit required by the
court under pending litigation.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
RMB1,257,423,000 (2020: RMB2,338,394,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits

are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of

default.

(i

(i)

R-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H 8BITEX
AR#351,244,0007T (ZZE=FF : AR
#487,00070) B IFESEREE ©

R-ZE-—F+-_A=+—0  TRHR
TR E EIREFAR KA AR AT
TRARTE & AR o

RBEHR  AEEUARE (AR
BDAENRERREEBNAARE
1,257,423,000C (ZZE—_Z4F : AR¥K
2,338,394,0007T) - ARKEAT A A H i
BEAEEE - MR IR B A A SNE F
GOk 4EE  EERNTEEERTE @ A%
BB BT TIMNE EENRTTE
ARBHBAEMEY -

P47 IR E B RITERA K ERDLH
FIESHMFS  RITEBREEFER
T RO 3 B3 405060 BL (S8 B 1P 0847

2021 %
A
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22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 2. ENESRIAREMNERE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of RBERR - BRNESERRENEEE
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BEEHHNRERSTOT ¢
2021 2020
—B-—F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within 90 days 90 H A 11,320,806 7,461,850
91 to 180 days 91 HE180H 351,278 534,718
181 to 360 days 181 H Z=360H 44,997 139,870
1to 2 years 1E£24F 3,954 6,532
Over 2 years 2F A 2,950 2,881
11,723,985 8,145,851
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and normally settled BNEZEFIIRE - —MRIEI0BE180
within terms of 30 to 180 days. AR AS -
The balances due to the holding companies, fellow subsidiaries EXFEENEZERAR - AEMERR R
and other related companies included in the above are as follows: HA BB R RIGEHRIA T -

2021 2020

—B-—F —EFF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Due to the ultimate holding company J&{< fx 445 i& A B 508 71,850 57,509

Due to the intermediate holding company J&{f /12 A% A 7 F1E 4,589,085 3,559,689

Due to fellow subsidiaries &R Z K& A 7158 5,083,646 3,131,627

Due to other related parties J& {< £ fib B8 58 75 708 - 156

9,744,581 6,748,981

The balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable e T IR « 8 B BN B REE o

on demand.
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HiEN R R ESER

2021 2020

—B-—F —EFF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET T ARETIT

Contract liabilities & R & & (a) 484,603 405,755

Advance from customers TEUL & P # K 30,204 10,883

Other payables E fb & BR 3¢ (b) 2,087,011 2,136,892

Accrued payroll fEft T& 1,574,283 1,741,871

4,176,101 4,295,401

Notes: Bt -

(a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as @ R=F—_-FER_F_FF+_H=+—

follows: HERABENFBERINNT
31 December
2020
ZE-THF

+=-—A=+—~”
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T

Short-term advances received from customers 2 W& F 58 i

Sale of goods E¥$HE 484,603 405,755
Total contract liabilities & [F) & (&48%8 484,603 405,755
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver AERBERREARNEMNE B RN -
goods.
(o) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of (o) EMEMERLTEFHE  FHFRR/=(E

Ao

three months.

2021 5% /
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24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24.fTHESMTIA

Assets Liabilities Liabilities

BE a8\ 3 A&
RMB’000 | RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTT | ARKTT

Foreign currency forward contracts 9 & A4 A - - - 587
Current portion i &) &6 5 - - = 587
25. DEFERRED INCOME 25.JEEWRA
2021 2020
—B-—fF il Sk .5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBETT
At 1 January ®—H—H 147,054 122,054
Received during the year & R E U 606,297 425,626
Returned during the year F R3RiE - -
Released to the statement of profit or loss #[Eli8z5 % (603,314) (400,626)
At 31 December X+ - H=+—H 150,037 147,054
Less: Portion classified as current liabilities J& : D AR B EIH S — -
Non-current portion FEi7 8 &85 150,037 147,054
Various government grants have been received for basic research = mt B AR 9T K B B E ED UK ER % TE X T 4
and development activities. Government grants received for which B Bk EFBEREY AR D WETHEE
related expenditure has not yet been undertaken are included in B AMBERAEEELEI A o & FEE
deferred income in the statement of financial position. A certain EREzER@mBME st AREW A - I
grant received relating to an asset is also credited to deferred EHEEAETRHETHREEFHRNEFEIRESE Y
income and is released to the statement of profit or loss over HAEE[O1B 253k o
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

Current B1HA
Bank loans — unsecured $R1TE R — K

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

26.5T BRITER

31 December 2020
—E-FF+=-A=+-H

Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
B F=E (%) ARMT T

1.85-3.72 2021 2,009,247

2,009,247

(@) The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s bank
borrowings approximate to their fair values.

(b) All borrowings are denominated in RMB.

27. DEFERRED TAX
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
year are as follows:

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Depreciation
in excess

of depreciation | Impairment | Government Tax
allowance of assets grants losses Total

EREN

(@) NEBRAABRITERZFREESR
HAFERS -

(b) FIEEZEUARBEHE -
27 BRI 1E
FERWETHBELEERSEEHMOT :

EEBEEE

BERE AERE BRRE [ BEER St it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 [ RMB'000 [ RMB'000 | RMB'000
AR®TR | AR®TR | ARMTR [ ARMTR | ARBTR | ARBTR

At 1 January 2021 R=E-—&—F—H 215,632 26,408 14,378 - - 256,418
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 11) ERRBER:TA /(%) HETHE

(FzE11) (89,023) 36,251 1,709 249,415 (1) 198,341
At 31 December 2021 R=E-—£+-f=1-H 126,609 62,659 16,087 249,415 (1) 454,759
At 1 January 2020 R=Z=FF—-F—H 250,290 34,763 12,979 91,980 201 390,213
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 11) ERREBHER:TA /(1) HETHA

(BtE11) (34,658) (8,355) 1,399 (91,980) (201)  (133,795)
At 31 December 2020 R =E-FE+-A=1-H 215,632 26,408 14,378 = = 256,418

202178 _,
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27. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 27 EFEFE ()
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES EEREERE

Withholding Fair value
taxes on adjustment
the earnings Depreciation arising from
anticipated to in excess of trading
be remitted by depreciation financial
subsidiaries allowance assets
B A BEESREE
B FE TEREN BENAR
NEF BN BREGE BERZ Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®T R ARET
At 1 January 2021 R=E=—F—H—H - 569,035 - 569,035
Deferred tax (ored|ted)/charged to the statement of profit or loss
during the year FRREER (Gt A),/ MBREETHIE - 88,176 - 88,176
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+_-A=+—H - 657,211 - 657,211
At 1 January 2020 R=ZE=FF—H—H 15,957 232,897 684 249,538
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to the statement of profit or loss
during the year FRRBRE (FTA)/ TR EEET B (15,957) 336,138 (684) 319,497
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-_FF+-A=+—H - 569,035 - 569,035

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and EE2MB®g ETEREEFHBEEENARG

liabilities have been offset with an amount of RMB253,312,000 ERM AN K+ E AR 253,312,000
(2020: RMB256,419,000) in the statement of financial position. THE2EEIE (ZDE-_ZF : ARK
256,419,0007T) ° N3RS 15 & M &
AR BIRIER AR

RMB’000
ARETT

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

RE B KT ERELETIEEEFE 201,447
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

RE IR KT ERELEH RS EFE 403,899
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27. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the

following items:

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

27 EERIIE (&)

EERREE (&)
WARBATIEB ERELERAEE

2021 2020

—B-—F —EFF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET T ARETFIT

Tax losses THiIEE#E 428,379 144,598
Deductible temporary differences B 155 E b 14 = & 141,355 326,028
569,734 470,626

The above tax losses will expire in one to ten years for offsetting
against future taxable profits in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above
items as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the above items can be utilised.

As at 31
liabilities recognised on earnings anticipated to be remitted

December 2021, there were no deferred tax

by certain subsidiaries in the foreseeable future (2020: Nil).
No withholding tax has been provided for the earnings of
approximately RMB19,770,725,000 at 31 December 2021
(2020: RMB17,934,013,000) expected to be retained by the
PRC subsidiaries and not to be remitted to a foreign investor
in the foreseeable future based on several factors, including
management’s estimation of liquid funds available other than in
the Mainland.

FAFEERAIR -2+ FARREHE
EEEORRERDEN - ARRBHTA
A] BEEE A A K 85 B R B0 A DA 35 | st
AIEMIAR - MR LA B ERET
HIREE °

MR_TE-_—F+_F=+—H HERE
THEBARNRABRRREBETEELNR
MERELEHBEEE(ZZSF : &) -
R_ZE-_—F+_A=+—H RESHE
BT P B KRE AN R BN E (A RHE
NHNZERZ  ASEWERTEHHPH
MiE A R(RE B TR A8 B R RELIR
IMEEBEEMRFOARKE19,770,725,000
T (ZZ=FF : AR%17,934,013,000
TT) BABTEHIRL
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28. SHARE CAPITAL
SHARES

Issued and fully paid 2 21T R &2
2,253,204,500 (2020: 2,253,204,500) ordinary shares
2,253,204,500% (ZZT =Z 4 : 2,253,204,500%) &A%

28. |k Z

g

2021 2020

—E_—F

RMB’000
AREBT

—E-FF

RMB'000
ARBTT

4,052,228 4,052,228

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

AR TRAB BT -

Number of
shares in issue Share capital

ERITROHE B

RMB’000
AR®ET R

At 1 January 2020 R=—Z —=FF—H—H 2,253,204,500 4,052,228

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

R FF+_-_A=+—HEK=_ZFE-_—F—HF—H 2,253,204,500 4,052,228

At 31 December 2021 R=—E=-—&+=-H=+—H 2,253,204,500 4,052,228
29. OTHER RESERVES 29, H %45

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 161 of the financial
statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for business
enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s entities which
are registered in the PRC has been transferred to the statutory
surplus reserve, which is restricted as to use.
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

ACTION AGAINST FOXCONN

On 11 June 2007, a Hong Kong High Court action (the “June
2007 Action”) was commenced by a subsidiary and an affiliate of
Foxconn International Holdings Limited (the “Plaintiffs”) against the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group (the “Defendants”)
for using confidential information alleged to have been obtained
improperly from the Plaintiffs. The Plaintiffs discontinued the June
2007 Action on 5 October 2007 with the effect that the June 2007
Action has been wholly discontinued against all the Defendants
named in the action and this finally disposed of the June 2007
Action without any liability to the Defendants. On the same day,
the Plaintiffs initiated a new set of legal proceedings in the Court
(the “October 2007 Action”). The Defendants named in the
October 2007 Action are the same as the Defendants in the June
2007 Action, and the claims made by the Plaintiffs in the October
2007 Action are based on the same facts and grounds in the June
2007 Action. The remedies sought by the Plaintiffs in the October
2007 Action include an injunction restraining the Defendants
from using the alleged confidential information, an order for the
disgorgement of profit made by the Defendants through the use of
the confidential information, damages based on the loss suffered
by the Plaintiffs and exemplary damages. The total damages
sought by the Plaintiffs in the October 2007 Action have not been
quantified.

On 2 October 2009, the Defendants instituted a counter-action
against Foxconn International Holdings Limited and certain of its
affiliates for their intervention, by means of illegal measures, in the
operations involving the Company and certain of its subsidiaries,
collusions, written and verbal defamation, and the economic loss
as a result of the said activities.

As at the reporting date, the case remains in the process of
legal proceedings. After consulting the Company’s legal counsel
representing the Company for the case, the Board is of the view
that the estimate of ultimate outcome and amount to settle the
obligation, if any, of the litigation cannot be made reliably up to
date.

B S R 2R Y

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

30.RAREE

ETERAERN
R-ZFZELFRNA+T—H  BELHEERE
BRBEBRDBET —RHHE AR N —EB
2A([RE]) RAEESSERREMAFL
(ZZ2FLFEXNAFRD  BEARAR
AEEETHBAR (THE]) ERERS
RERIPEIESHEEER - BEEHH W
EN T LFNAFBREEREIA R
ZRBARACHEAREMNELE  REE
RZZBEZ+FE+ARBEEFELZTTLER
HErEA o RIA - JRE FABT IR 3T — & H
ERRF ([ ZZZ2LFTAFR]) - —F
FLETARRHRER_FELE A
RHAWEEER  BREE_FZTLF T+
AFRBPRENBARPER _FTLFEN
AHFBPNEREERER - FREE-T
TLF+AFRPRENBRITEEER
SEIREEREARTER RSRE
X EE A E BT RS R B A R B
EREEXNBREINEITERES -
REE_TTLFTARBPTERNES
RESBERRARETE

RZZZNFTAZHE  #HEHETRE
BRIERARABREETHEARNAT
BEFRTHARGBREETHERFN
HRTR  SEROEHS X
BB RITT RRERER

QA
K -

RAREBH - ZFBRRDERERFR
BEER - BRBANREFRRARBNAR
AVERER EZERAREEENRLE
BT AT AR A IR R N T A 5R
AAXNNBEBTIALE (F) -
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31.§#tR&REXRME

CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions (a) ERFRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to FA - ASEGRHEELH EBF -
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB62,021,000 MEREMBENEERHFNER
(2020: RMB208,321,000) and RMB62,021,000 (2020: BEERHEAGENIEREFTED
additions of RMB208,321,000), respectively, in respect of Al ARE62,021,000L (ZE ==
lease arrangements for leasehold land, buildings, machinery F: AR¥208,321,0007T) K ARE
and other equipment. 62,021,0007T (ZZE=FF : REAR

#208,321,0007T) °

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEEBFIEENBEED

2021 ——

Interest-bearing

bank borrowings Lease liabilities

E‘h@ﬁﬁ fEl FA *EEEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AR¥T

At 1 January 2021 R=—Z-—%—F—H 2,009,247 735,580

Changes from financing cash flows B&E &R EEE (2,006,294) (295,814)

New leases ¥ & - 41,520

Interest expense F| 25X 14,850 28,479

Foreign exchange movement 9NE & &) (17,803) -

At 31 December 2021 R=E=-—%+=-A=+—H - 509,765
2020 :gigi

Interest-bearing

bank borrowings Lease liabilities

FTEIRITEK HEBE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

At 1 January 2020 R—Z-ZF—H—H - 752,092

Changes from financing cash flows Bl &R &R E &5 1,972,906 (242,698)

New leases #f & - 190,209

Interest expense F|8.F 35,356 35,977

Foreign exchange movement 9 & 985 -

At 31 December 2020 A=Z-ZFF+-F=+—H 2,009,247 735,580
\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31.8#BEE&REBRMEE (&)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEBRS LR
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated HREHRERERANEER R
statement of cash flows is as follows: HAAZES YT

2021 2020
—B=-F —E-TEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Within operating activities 4% & )& B) A 126,324 157,096
Within investing activities % & /& &) A 111,817 102,856
Within financing activities @& )& B A 295,814 242,698
32. COMMITMENTS 32.7&IE
(@) The Group had the following capital commitments at the end (a) NEBRBRERES T7IERAIE :

of the reporting period:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Contracted, but not provided for: B&]4) * {BRETIREA -

Plant and machinery &= & # 22 898,980 365,686
Building #&5F 291,708 174,498
1,190,688 540,184

20215% /
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B.BEIRS
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) RAMBmEREAMIBOFALNRZ S
financial statements, the Group had the following material Gh $Eléﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’q\¢lﬁﬁ\?ﬁﬁ%

transactions with related parties during the year: TERRXS

Year ended 31 December
BZE+T-A=1—HIEE

244

Nature of transactions

REMtE

Sales of plant and machinery

HERE RS

Purchases of plant and machinery

FRERSE L

Purchases of inventories

FEES

Sales of inventories

HEFR

Lease and ancillary services payments

HEREERBNR

Exclusive processing services received

EREBR MRS

Exclusive processing services provided

RIEBRINT ARG

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Related parties 2021
BER —B--F
RMB’000
ARET T
Ultimate holding company 2,242
ISR A
Fellow subsidiaries 22,148
EESHZING
Ultimate holding company 18,102
EZQ* HI'L/'\
Fellow subsidiaries 87,151
EE-NG]
Ultimate holding company 9,585
H_Zy% I'L/\
Fellow subsidiaries 315,445
EES-YNG
Ultimate holding company 19,965
E_m% NG
Fellow subsidiaries 2,727,190
EES N
Ultimate holding company 128,251
SESE NG
Fellow subsidiaries 827,175
EES-NG
Ultimate holding company 164,198
SR AT
Fellow subsidiaries 368,995
EESING
Ultimate holding company 9,798
H,Zy% I'L/'\
Fellow subsidiaries 50,769
EESNG]

2020
—E-TF
RMB’000
ARETTL

5,728

2,174

31,827

60,996

93,663

756,100

80,739

14,353,146

125,845

810,076

195,587

674,931

14,063

119,219
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) B.AELRS (&)
(@) (Continued)

(@ (&)

Year ended 31 December

Related parties

BERL —EC-F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETT

Agent fee for procurement service (v) Intermediate holding company 37,800 33,276
RERBHRIEE RIMER AR
Fellow subsidiaries 20,609 22,160
EES=ING
Sales of glass casing products (vi) Fellow subsidiaries 14,222 49,107
HERBRRER EESIING
Purchases automotive core components (vii) Fellow subsidiaries 269,725 21,811
and special-purpose electric vehicles RZKBAT
REAERLEBHREDERE
Electricity fee received (vi) Ultimate holding company 1,338 2,824
WHEE RAERAT]
Fellow subsidiaries 82,299 72,486
EESIEYNG
Purchases of batteries (ix) Ultimate holding company 351 61,233
BEEMN REZER AT
Fellow subsidiaries 1,497,977 780,014
EESIZYNG
Exclusive construction services received (x) Fellow subsidiaries 81,415 -
BERUEBZREZERY EESHYNG
2021% % /
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33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(@) (Continued)

246

Notes:

(i)

(i

(il)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The sales and purchases of plant and machinery were made at
net book values.

The sales and purchases of inventories were conducted in
accordance with prices and terms mutually agreed between the
parties. In the opinion of the directors, the transactions were
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business.

The payments were charged on an actually incurred basis or in
accordance with terms mutually agreed between the parties. In
the opinion of the directors, the transactions were conducted in
the ordinary and usual course of business.

The processing service fees and revenue were charged and
received for the depreciation of the relevant machinery and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The agent fee for the procurement service was charged at a
certain percentage of the total amount of procurement provided
by the fellow subsidiaries on behalf of the Group.

The sales of glass casing products were conducted in
accordance with prices and terms mutually agreed between the
parties. In the opinion of the directors, the transactions were
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business.

The purchases of automotive core components and special
purpose electric vehicles were made in accordance with prices
and terms mutually agreed between the parties. In the opinion
of the directors, the transactions were conducted in the ordinary
and usual course of business.

(vii) The sales of power supply services were conducted in

accordance with prices and terms mutually agreed between the
parties. In the opinion of the directors, the transactions were
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business.

(ix) The purchases of batteries were conducted in accordance with
prices and terms mutually agreed between the parties. In the
opinion of the directors, the transactions were conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business.

(X) The construction services were conducted in accordance with
prices and terms mutually agreed between the parties. In the
opinion of the directors, the transactions were conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business.
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3B.HEELXRS (&)
(o) EERREDT HYAERR

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

BYD Precision, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
provided an entrusted loan of RMB400,000,000 to BYD Co.,
Ltd. (“BYD”), the ultimate holding company of the Company,
through China Merchants Bank. The loan was unsecured,
bore a fixed interest rate of 3.5% and has been paid in 2021.

Except for the entrusted loan to the ultimate holding company,
the balances with related parties are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of the Group’s trade balances with the holding
shareholder, fellow subsidiaries and other related companies
as at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in notes 19
and 22 to the financial statements.

FERERITAAR B REIER QA
tbEa R m AR AR ([ thin |) 24t
L EZRAREE400,000,0007T ° Z &
FAEER  BEMERS. 5%WH=
T —FEXf o

RAB2EWMB AR ERET BB

BRBEEERARNETERI - HEH
BRHESRREER 28 REEE
ERHR -

AEERHERREIZRER - AR
MEBARREMEERRNE S &K
ZHBEERM SRR E19 MM E
22 °
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (Continued)

B.BEELXRS ()
(o) BEIETHAES - (B)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total lease liabilities

with these related companies under non-cancellable leases
falling due as follows:

RNR-ZBE-—F+-_A=+—81 ' K&
ERETREAEEZSHENT

MEIREMEEREARNT

2021
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Lease liabilities — current FAE & & — 7 F)

Ultimate holding company &x#&$% % A &) 28,856 94,528
Fellow subsidiaries [F ZFT&E A &) 91,352 228,128

Lease liabilities — non-current & & & — JER )
Ultimate holding company & 42 A% A 7] - 14,371
Fellow subsidiaries [ ZHIE A 7 33,761 47,221
153,969 384,248

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amount of
right-of-use assets relating to such rental contracts amounted

\
N
N

- —4%+-_HA=+—H"' A
BZEHeANEREEENE

to RMB100,811,000. (31 December 2020: RMB314,112,000).

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

HEEAARK100,811,0007T (=
T-TF+-_A=Z+—H: ARK
314,112,0007T) °

(©) ANEEEEEEABSHHRI -

2021 2020

—E-—F —E_THF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T AREEFIT

Short-term employee benefits %2 Hi{& E 18 7 12,815 19,036
Pension scheme contributions iE k& &t 2| ¢t 7 56 63
12,871 19,099

248

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9
to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items set out in
(a) above also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021

FINANCIAL ASSETS

EHELE]]
assets at fair

value through

4.2 ITEDHE
RI|ERR ST A
T
—_E_—F
cREE

Financial
assets at

fair value
through other
comprehensive

BrRREED

profit or loss income
DAREBENE | ADABEE
WY ABEN | At AEMERE
SREE | KENEREE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated Debt amortised
as such investments cost Total
DS (55009
BHEERLR BEBRE MemEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%BTT AR¥TR AR®T T AR¥T T
Trade receivables B E 5 8E K - - 9,240,349 9,240,349
Financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets
AARMTE - EtERERFREMEEN S REE 100,000 - 315,243 415,243
Receivables financing
KRR E - 2,987,164 - 2,987,164
Pledged deposits 2 #1773 - - 351,244 351,244
Restricted bank deposits &5 &R 1777 2% - - 2,501 2,501
Cash and cash equivalents ¥4 MR & ZEY - - 2,824,741 2,824,741
Other non-current financial assets H IR EE B E & 170,215 - - 170,215
270,215 2,987,164 12,734,078 15,991,457
2021% % /
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY M.EMITEDHE(E)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHRR  SeB T ASENEREEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T : (&)
(Continued)
2021 (Continued) —E-—F (&)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES TRaE
Financial
liabilities Financial
at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
DA REEE
IWETABEMN |G E
SRIEE NEemas At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ET T AR¥T T
Trade and bills payables B & 5 KR RENZE - 11,723,985 11,723,985
Lease liabilities 78 E & (& - 509,765 509,765
Financial liabilities included in other payables
AARMEREROERAE - 2,087,011 2,087,011

14,320,761 14,320,761
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4. ¢RI EDHE (E)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIFERR  Se@m T AN ENEREER

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T : (%)
(Continued)

2020 —E-—TF
FINANCIAL ASSETS THMEE

Financial
assets at fair

Financial
assets at
fair value

through other

value through | comprehensive
profit or loss income
PAAT(EME? WAREBEE
WEt AR iR &
WaRnEREE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated Debt amortised
as such investments cost Total
R AGTE
R EE A Lt BHRE MEeREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT
Trade receivables B E 5831 - - 14,391,466 14,391,466
Loan to the ultimate holding company
A AIE IR A R IR E = = 400,000 400,000
Financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets
AARNRER  HieERESREMEENSRERE 100,000 - 44,640 144,640
Receivables financing
AR E - 88,400 - 88,400
Pledged deposits B %177 3X - - 487 487
Cash and cash equivalents H & RkIR & FEY) - - 3,465,889 3,465,889
Other non-current financial assets EMIER B & B & E 14,593 = = 14,593
114,593 88,400 18,302,482 18,505,475
2021% % /
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (. eMIAEDE (&)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REERR  SemITEDENKREED
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T (&)
(Continued)
2020 (Continued) ZETF (&)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES cHAaE
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
AR BEE
Wit Az A SERR AT 2
WeEmBaE etz §=Ni st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AR¥EFTT ARBTTT
Trade and bills payables fEfIE 5 85K & & R - 8,145,851 8,145,851
Derivative financial instruments TS T & 587 - 587
Lease liabilities HE & (& = 735,580 735,580
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
HEIRIT REAMER - 2,009,247 2,009,247
Financial liabilities included in other payables
FAHMENEROSRAG - 2,331,998 2,331,998

587 13,222,676 13,223,263

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EMIANAIABERAAEBERE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS &

There are no significant differences between the carrying amounts AEEERMIANKAERAABELE
and the fair values of the Group’s financial instruments. BARER -

Management has assessed that the fair values of short-term EEEEHERATHER R kRS
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade ZEY  2EWER  BRESER B
receivables, receivables financing, trade and bills payables, WHERE BNEZERARENER
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other AFATRNFOR - e REMRKERNE
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables, amounts BMEE StAHMENRTNEHAE -
due from/to subsidiaries, amounts due from/to the ultimate holding R/ FEAHTE A RIFRIE - B BN &
company and the immediate holding company approximate to RERAREREZEZBRARFBAAAEE
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of HHREERS  WHETEARZETLA
these instruments. BREME -
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The corporate finance team reports directly to the chief financial
officer and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the
corporate finance team analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair
value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2021 were assessed to be insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments and
receivables financing with various counterparties. The carrying
amounts of these derivative financial instruments and receivables
financing are the same as their fair values. The derivative financial
instruments and receivables financing are measured using
valuation techniques similar to forward pricing, using present value
calculations. The models incorporate various market observable
inputs including the credit quality of counterparties and foreign
exchange spot and forward rates. The carrying amounts of
derivative financial instruments and receivables financing are the
same as their fair values.

B S R 2R Y
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BL.EMTANDIABERIAEBERE

A& (%)

MBRERENARBARMBEKER
tEEMTARAEBEFENBRRMIE
Fr oo B 5 B B B i 1R B A AR B RN = AT
ZEEWE - NEREAY - AFFHKE
Gofrem I ABENEY  WHETER
BEFERANEEGAE - HEAMBGEE
BERLME - B REEBFMA B
BERERER  UREPHRFEHBER

o

TREERABNAABENZIARE
BR57 (MIFRAHBREE) EARS
THARZEEAR o TAJTARBRE
REHERAEE :

EHBRARENRAAEBEIIETISRERE

EEO

AERITEREMEBEROA AL BELSABBE
RAEHEUGR EERBRFMFEEAE
WIAMZRIAISHETHEBHRKE S
MERFTE RZBEZ—F+=ZA=1+—
B BRAEEEFBRITREMERD
FBHORBRMEBNAABEEZSIHAE
WAREK o

AEEEZEHFHILITESRTAR
EWRIERE - ZFTESR T ANREK
RERENEAEERENQAEENE
Rl - TAESBTARBYFSIARENARE
B REREBBUZGERIITE - it
FERAFATATSAERBAZE - &
BHFHEEERE - URIIMNERH K EH
X - ZENMESRMTARERFIARE
MEEEEEAARBERR -
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EMIAENAABERAABEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) & (&)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY AREEEBR

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TERAPAAEEERTANAABEET=
of the Group’s financial instruments: B4 :

Assets measured at fair value: KA BEGTEEE -

As at 31 December 2021 R-B=-—-%+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AREBEEFEREANBAE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable [unobservable
markets inputs inputs

SR % BERUEE | EAFTUEER

HRE HEAE HEAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%) (£=8%) (BF=8) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Receivables financing fEM A RS - 2,987,164 - 2,987,164
Financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets

FTARMNFUE EERGRA L EEENEREE - 100,000 — 100,000
Other non-current financial assets HHIERE S RIEE 14,415 - 155,800 170,215

14,415 3,087,164 155,800 3,257,379
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35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EMIENAIAREBERAAEBERE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) & (&)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) IREBEREAR (&)

Assets measured at fair value: (Continued) UR A BEGENEE - (&)
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF+_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AR EEEERNHAR

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs
AR T % BEARAHE | EATAER
R E BB AE BB AE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—) (FZR) (B=%) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT

Receivables financing fEWFIE R & - 88,400 - 88,400
Financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets

STATEMFIE - At ERGERRAMEEN SREE - 100,000 - 100,000
Other non-current financial assets Eft3EReI & B &= 14,593 = = 14,593
14,593 188,400 - 202,993

2021 %% /
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EMIAENAABERAABEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) & (&)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) AREEEHR (&)

Liabilities measured at fair value: URAIEEGELEE

There were no financial liabilities measured at fair values as at RSB —F+Z"HA=+—H ' FEEUA
31 December 2021. REEFENERES -

As at 31 December 2020 RZZBZTF+_HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ARBEFEERORAR

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERMSE | EAREEN [EANATERN
WwE BAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—&) (F=%) (B=&) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ £/ T A - 587 - 587
- 587 - 587

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR W E—HEB KL EDN L BET
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into &#&EE - JiEGFE="RFE AGEBH (T =-F
or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil). o) o

\ANNUAL REPORT 2021
256 BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED




. D

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS\
MR M

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EMIAENAABERAABEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) & (&)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) IREBERER (R

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EBEBEIT BENEE

There were no financial assets disclosed at fair values as at R=ZB-_—F+-A=+—H HEEW
31 December 2021. EAREBEENEREE -

As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE_ZEF+_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AABEMEERNGAE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant

in active observable |unobservable

markets inputs inputs
ERMIEN | EXTEREN [EXFTHEN
#wE WAE WAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—-%) (B=8&) (B=8) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Loan to the ultimate holding company & F &&= A & - 400,000 - 400,000
- 400,000 - 400,000
2021% % /

LEAE 7 (BR) BRAHE 257



% :

/ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR T aE

31 DECEMBER 2021 —E=—4%#1+=-H=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EMIAENAABERAABEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) & (&)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) AREEEHR (&)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: ERFZAAEEEE -

There are no financial liabilities disclosed at fair value as at 31 RZE_—F+_A=+—H8 TEUR
December 2021. AEERENCRAE -

As at 31 December 2020 RZZBZTF+_HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ARBEFEERORAR

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERMSE | EAREEN [EANATERN
B BAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—8) (BE=#) (E=R) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings =t 2817 1E 5 - 2,009,247 - 2,009,247
- 2,009,247 - 2,009,247
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise bank loans, balances with related companies and
cash and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has no significant
interest risk as the Group did not have long-term debt obligations
with floating interest rates.

B S R 2R Y

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

36.FEMEEEEREEK

AEENTESRTIA (TETAERIN B
BRRTER  BEEARNERANRES
MiRTTHESG -  WESBMTANETERRZT
RARBNEBEEES - AEEREM
TREMEERAE WEEKBHEEKE
EHRWE SRR N ENESRK o

AEESRTAMEEANTIERRAINE
Rk EERRERBDECRER E=S
BRI E BT AT Al B IR A TE 1tk 5 AL B
MR °

F =R 2 b
RZEZ—FR_TFTFF+_A=+—
B AEETESAFERRE  DEAXN
EEVEIERBEHEST -

2021 %
A

LEAE 7 (BR) BRAHE 259



/f

/3

/ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R AR T aE

31 DECEMBER 2021 —E=—4%#1+=-H=+—H

36.

260

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. In addition, certain
portions of the loans from related companies are denominated
in currencies other than the RMB. The Group tends to accept
foreign currency exchange risk avoidance or allocation terms
when arriving at purchase and sale contracts. The Group takes
rolling forecast on the foreign currency revenue and expenses and
matches the currency and the amount incurred so as to alleviate
the impact on business due to exchange rate fluctuations.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the United
States dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values

of monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

36. B E B B B Z R BUR ()

SN B

AEEEXRZFERRR - AHEARKER
EEMANIFZEMNINEEEETNE
B o Ubsh - ETREBERRNETIAA
REAINNEEINE - REBERNRER
BB A [R5 A e SIME R e 3K 0 B R
Ko AEBHINERANFEZEITREE
Al BEEREFRSBECR - URKEX
KEBHEBELENTE -

TEWIJ/T\EF)’TE,HJ‘@ FHRFE A EMNER

C AEEBRBAEN (AEREEREE

’“ﬂﬁ@m%ﬁ)&ﬁﬁl%\ REBEHR
HETEXRA RS IERBNGURE -

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
United States | (decrease) in Increase/
dollar | profit before | (decrease) in
exchange rate tax equity*
EER RRBE A2 Fl Rz
2, i) | 8, CEL) | & Oid)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AR¥ET T AR¥T T
2021 —F=—%
If RMB weakens against United States dollar
MAREHETRE 5 (44,391) (44,391)
If RMB strengthens against United States dollar
i AR ¥ ETHE (5) 44,391 44,391
2020 ZE-EF
If RMB weakens against United States dollar
MARE R ETRE 5 192,174 192,174
If RMB strengthens against United States dollar
i AR H ETTHE (5) (192,174) (192,174)

*

Excluding retained profits and exchange fluctuation reserve
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing

basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

MAXIMUM EXPOSURE AND YEAR-END STAGING

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. For listed receivables financing,
the Group also monitors them by using external credit ratings.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

As at 31 December 2021
12-month ECLs

+=f@A
BHEERR

Stage 1
F-K&
RMB’000

ARBTR

36.

Stage 2
KR

RMB’000
ARBTR

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

M EREEERERBCR (F)

FERR

AEEEERATREEBENE =TT
BE - ARBENBRRAYMEBENEE
ﬁﬁ?&%ﬁ’]%?‘thﬁf%%ﬂzr BESN
USSR FERTFEZER - MARBEIRK
E’\JﬁtﬁﬁﬂﬂTiﬁ :

B AR A & FREER
TRINRERAKB EERRNEEER
REERBRSEAMO - T EZENEH
B (FRIFAEMBANEBZRNARE N
BIFERHER)  WER+T-A=1—8H
m@*%%ﬁﬁ°ﬁtﬁﬁw%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
 REETVEBERINSEEFRET

ER . fEVMNcHEATHEENEEE
4EFE o
R-ZE-_—%+=-HA=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

ERABEMEEER

Simplified
Total
@t
RMB’000
ARET R

Stage 3
E=MEE
RMB'’000
ARETR

approach
4%
RMB’000
ARET R

Trade receivables* B E 58 - - - 9,279,580 9,279,580
Financial assets included in prepayments,

other receivables and other assets
SIABNGE  EENERREMEENSREE

- Normal** IE&** 315,558 - - - 315,558
Receivables financing EY AR E 2,996,375 - - - 2,996,375
Pledged deposits {773 351,244 - - - 351,244
Restricted bank deposits %R #1777 5 2,501 - - - 2,501
Cash and cash equivalents & R3E £ SEY 2,824,741 - - - 2,824,741

6,490,419 - - 9,279,580 15,769,999
2021% % /
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. B EMEE B ERBE (4)

36.

262

AND POLICIES (Continued)

MAXIMUM EXPOSURE AND YEAR-END STAGING
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

12-month ECLs
+=fA

718

Stage 2

F-IER FRE

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARMTR | ARETR

Trade receivables™ FEWE 58k 2" = -
Financial assets included in prepayments,

other receivables and other assets
STABNFIE - At ENERRENEENSREE

SUNG RPN EE )

RZZF_EF+_A=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

FRARBEEESR

Simplified
Stage 3 approach Total
R it it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT

= 14,502,826 14,502,826

— Normal* [E&** 44,685 - - - 44,685
Recelvables financing fEYz AR E 88,777 = = = 88,777
Loan to the ultimate holding company & F &R AR A 7 400,000 - - - 400,000
Pledged deposits #1737 487 - - - 487
Cash and cash equivalents & KR & EEY 3,465,889 - - - 3,465,889

3,999,838 - - 14,602,826 18,502,664

* For trade receivables to the Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 19 to the financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash

equivalents or have available funding through an adequate amount
of committed facilities from banks and related companies to meet
its commitments over the foreseeable future in accordance with
its strategic plan. At the end of the reporting period, all of the
Group’s financial instruments would mature in less than one year.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

Financial liabilities

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

36.UKEMEEBZEREE (#)

RBE SRR
AREBHNRRREBTMNRITREAER
AAENEERE  RERHNRS NME
CEHEEVHABRAES  UREHKR
TEIER R ARKREITE AR - RBREH
R AEERENERTASK —FAE
5 o

AEERBEHROSBERRES R
FRNHROFEEOT -

EHEE

Less than less than

3 months | 12 months

=@ANE

BHH
EEX | PR=@A T=fEA —ZRE BALE nE
RMB’000 | RMB’000 [ RMB’000 | RMB’000 [ RMB’000 | RMB’000
AR®TR | ARSTR | AR%TR | AR%TR | ARETR | AR%TR
Trade and bills payables JEN B ZERRENZE 6,904 11,320,806 396,275 - - 11,723,985
Lease liabilities FE & & - 79,400 72,924 145,980 401,797 700,101
Other payables E A fERF R 93,125 1,093,689 900,197 - - 2,087,011
100,020 12,493,895 1,369,396 145,980 401,797 14,511,097

2021 5% /
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.VKEKREEEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) nBESRER (&)
Financial liabilities (Continueqd) THEE (&)

3to
On Less than less than
demand 3 months | 12 months

=EANE

E0N
2K | PR=@A | +=@EA| —=nF| BBLF it
RMB'000 [ RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 [ RMB'000 | RMB'000
AREBTL | ARETR | ARBTRE | ARBTL | ARBTR | ARBETR

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

STERT REMER - 456,232 1,569,507 - - 2,025,739
Trade and bills payables BB ZERRENZE 9,413 7,461,850 674,588 - - 8,145,851
Lease liabilities HHE & & - 135,132 221,514 168,348 427,344 952,338
Other payables E 1 fE/F8R5k 126,686 1,608,918 596,394 = - 2,331,098

136,099 9,662,132 3,062,003 168,348 427,344 13,455,926

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT EXER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBEXAEENTEERRERAKHE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and HEBEZRNENRRBRIEFNEARLLE -
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business U HARENEEMBERITBIREE -

and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEBREBEEBERANANELERELER
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or REREFLAE BRRFIXBHEELR
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend B ARERERBIRMT THRROKE
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue BRROEARACHFHBETHR - BE_F
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies T+ A=+ AR -EFT
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 A=Z+—HALFE TEHEREANH
December 2021 and 31 December 2020. 2 BURSKARFIELERL

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net REEUEARE B X (BMERFERARE
debt divided by equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the @) ERHEER c ARENHEAKELRE
gearing ratio as low as possible. B ERBERFIHE -
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37. DIVIDENDS

Proposed final RMBO0.103 (2020: RMB0.241) per ordinary share
EEARAEREARARK0103T (ZEZF : ARK0.2417T)

I IE AR AL

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZF=—4#1+=-HA=+4+—H

37. &
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
232,080 543,022
232,080 543,022

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

38. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE DERECOGNISED IN
THEIR ENTIRETY

In the ordinary course of business, the Group has factored a
part of receivables to financial institutions without recourse for its
short-term financing needs, and has entered into non-recourse
receivables factoring agreements with a number of banks to
transfer certain receivables to those banks (the “Receivable
Factoring”). Under certain receivable factoring agreements,
the Group is not required to undertake default risks and the
delayed repayment risk from the debtors after the transfer of
receivables, and all risks and rewards related to the ownership
of the receivables are transferred. The definition of termination of
financial assets is met. Therefore, the Group derecognised the
receivables under the factoring agreements at carrying amount.
As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of transferred
receivables under the relevant factoring agreements amounted to
RMB19,794,790,000 (31 December 2020: RMB1,135,392,000),
and the loss related to derecognition amounted to
RMB13,079,000 (31 December 2020: RMB896,000).

39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021
of RMBO0.103 per ordinary share (tax inclusive) was proposed
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on
29 March 2022. This intended to distribute cash dividends of
RMB232,080,064 in aggregate based on the total share capital
of 2,258,204,500 shares of the Company as at 29 March 2022.
The proposal of the final dividend is subject to consideration and
approval at the Company’s forthcoming general meeting. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in the
consolidated financial statements.

AEEZBZARBBWEAFTARARABRRRE
ERRBAF RS AR AIEE -

EREEER

EEHERRANTHMEE

AEBEAEEFPRACHME T RES
7 FEU AR FA B A 5 VIR 245 € R
# YHZREBITILEBPENER
ERREWS B TEREREET
ZERT([EWERRE]) - EETE
WER IR ek T+ NEETF 2 RIERE
WERFEEENES A ZORBRATEEE
HER  EEBEVERREEZAAN
ERRFRE - FEREEBMEEGGT - B
It - AEEHZRE R T 8 FEREE IR
REEEERMEER R E_—F+_A
=+—H HEREBEWRETDEZNE
R EEEE A AR 19,794,790,000
T(ZE-TE+-_A=+—H: ARE#¥
1,135,392,000 ) - BEHEEEREBALN
BB A ARE13,079,0007L (— 2 —=4
+=A=+—H: AR¥896,0007T) °

39. HEHREE

BEEEeRN_ZE-__F=A=+1H
BBAERR  BRpEE_ZT=—F
+ZA=+—HLEFESREREER
AR0.1037T (5F) RIREAAR B o 2R
BERARARR -_ZE-_—_F#=A_-+NB8
2,253,204,500 R IR N @B DR E AR
#232,080,064 TR SR B - REARE
MNEZASRARREEREAS EEH
ML EBRITAIER « NRNEHBRBAEE
AU RERBRAEMKRE -
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

40. R 1 A 2 B AR R

EBEARANBEHRZHEMARRAEKHE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: SN

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ HREB&EE

2021
—E_—F

RMB’000
AREF T

2020
—E-FF
RMB’000
ARETIT

Investments in subsidiaries &R E A &) 20,202,294 18,408,007
Right-of-use assets f FR#EEE 137 303
Total non-current assets IERENE E 4258 20,202,431 18,408,310
CURRENT ASSETS #iBI&EE

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

AR FRIE « e R EMAmEUKERK 14 13
Due from subsidiaries F&Uk[T/E A FZIE 3,868,160 3,878,312
Cash and bank balances IR 4 & R1T4 85 2,471 14,949
Total current assets 21 & &= 42 (E 3,870,645 3,893,274
CURRENT LIABILITIES # B & &

Due to subsidiaries FEfI B A 7ZIE 13,448 13,448
Contract liabilities & [F & & 30,885 14,911
Trade payables FEE S8R 1,440 620
Total current liabilities i Eh & E42%58 45,773 28,979
NET CURRENT ASSETS R B &EFE 3,824,872 3,864,295
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ #E&E

Lease liabilities THE & & 200 312
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEZERABERE 24,027,303 22,272,605
Net assets & & FE 24,027,103 22,272,293
EQUITY %

Share capital &4~ 4,052,228 4,052,228
Other reserves H 19,974,875 18,220,065
Total equity #5425 24,027,103 22,272,293

Wang Chuan-fu £ &18
Director %
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Wang Nian-qgiang T &5

Director &%
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FEf—H=1+—H

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

41,

COMPANY (Continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company’s other reserves is as follows:

Fair value
reserve

of financial
assets at

fair value
through other
comprehensive
income

RMB ‘000
AREFT

31 DECEMBER 2021 —&F ——

C\

40. AR R 2 M BARR K (F&)

AARHE A ERR LT -

Exchange
Fluctuation
reserve

Retained
profits

ShE
KE REiY 1)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARET T

At 1 January 2020 R=F=FF—A—H (154) (175,944) 13,113,343 12,937,245
Profit for the year i&“mﬂ - - 5,441,371 5,441,371
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
MEBINEBEENER =5 - 1,477 - 1,477
Expected credited loss for receivables financing
ERHERENBREEER (50) - - (50)
Total comprehensive income for the year
REERANGEE (50) 1,477 5,441,371 5,442,798
Final 2019 dividend
—NERERE - - (159,978) (159,978)

At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021

“E_TFEF_A=+—-RAR=F=_—5—A—H (204) (174,467) 18,394,736 18,220,065
Proflt for the year & - - 2,309,882 2,309,882
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
ARISRINEREAEIE R 25 - (3,308) - (3,308)
Expected credited loss for receivables financing
U ER AN RAEEBE (8,742) - - (8,742)
Total comprehensive income for the year
AEEEAWHER (8,742) (3,308) 2,309,882 2,297,832
Final 2020 dividend
—Z_TEREKRE - - (543,022) (543,022)
At 31 December 2021 R=F=—F+=-A=1+—H (8,946) (177,775) 20,161,596 19,974,875
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. EM B &

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the board of directors on 29 March 2022.

MERRECHEFER _FT-__F=H
“TARERL R

202153 /
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/ FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HFEHE

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B | ZE2FF | ZE-NE| ZT-N\F| ZZ—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARBTL | ARSTE | ARSTR | ARETR

(Restated)

(/=E=5)
REVENUE A 89,056,978 73,121,075 53,028,376 41,047,139 38,774,422
Cost of sales $HERHA (83,027,813) (63,492,232) (49,071,048) (36,875,156) (34,510,484)
Gross profit FE 7 6,029,165 9,628,843 3,957,328 4,171,983 4,263,938
Other income and gains E A K iz 656,763 485,118 561,599 558,070 493,442
Government subsidies B fif i B 585,261 391,757 236,979 287,390 240,161
Research and development costs fiff 3% &2 3 i AX (3,308,296) (2,913,274) (2,087,846) (1,588,654)  (1,200,632)
Selling and distribution costs $4%& & 2 5 A< (274,578) (236,855) (256,786) (229,238) (229,098)
Administrative expenses 17 f 3%z (1,041,338) (673,164) (619,132) (535,819) (434,024)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net
TRVEEREISEFE 7,785 1,694 (15,961) (57,333) -
Loss on disposal of financial assets at amortised cost
BRERBERATENSREENEE (13,079) (896) (21,195) (42,805) -
Other expenses E (133,061) (391,088) (27,568) (27,762) (97,620)
Finance costs F & ik 4% (43,329) (71,333) (31,218) - (44,040)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX %A% F 2,465,293 6,220,802 1,696,200 2,535,832 2,992,127
Tax I8 (155,411) (779,431) (98,555) (347,212) (407,259)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

RABRERZFEAEBGEERER 2,309,882 5,441,371 1,597,645 2,188,620 2,584,868

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EE R & &

TOTAL ASSETS & E#A(E 41,175,282 37,976,088 28,026,974 26,051,172 25,386,326

TOTAL LIABILITIES &{E#E 17,148,179 15,703,795 11,037,501 10,225,840 11,195,013

Total equity #2540 %8 24,027,103 22,272,293 16,989,473 15,825,332 14,191,313
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